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RMHE

YUEN MAN YING
F & Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of EGL Holdings Company Limited and its subsidiaries,
| am pleased to present to you the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

During the Year, the industry experienced a slight slowdown due
to uncertainties from the Sino-US trade war, volatility in equity
markets, unforeseen constraints from business and economic
conditions such as appreciation of the Japanese yen against the
Hong Kong dollar. These uncertainties were further aggravated by
the aftermath of natural disasters (including an earthquake with
a magnitude of 6.1 on the Richter Scale in Osaka in June 2018,
the closure of the Osaka airport for more than 10 days during a
typhoon, an earthquake with a magnitude of 6.7 on the Richter
Scale in Hokkaido in September 2018, and typhoons “Jongdari”,
“Trami”, “Jebi” and “Mangkhut”). Despite this adversity, the Group
marketed with a competitive pricing strategy to maintain our tourist
trade volume. Although the results before income tax that was
recorded during the Year was below our expectation, nevertheless
the year-on-year performance has improved slightly from 2017.
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During the Year, the Group recorded total revenue of approximately
HK$1,776.6 million (2017: HK$1,624.6 million), being an
increase of 9.4% as compared with last year, while gross profit
margin slightly decreased from 18.0% last year to 17.7%. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$34.8 million (2017: HK$28.6 million), being a year-on-year
increase of 21.9%. For the details of our business performance,
please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report.

The total dividend for the full year of 2018, including the interim
dividend of HK1.0 cent per Share, will be HK5.0 cents per Share
(the total dividend for the full year of 2017 was HK3.0 cents per
Share, including the interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per Share).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has always committed to providing and exploring
diversified travel products and services for our customers, to
bring to them unique and pleasurable travel experience, with
more moments of joy. In the face of rapid market changes in the
travel industry, the Group persists in rising above our competitors
with innovation, keeping abreast with market dynamics at the
forefront of our industry, consistently launching travel products
with both different themes and diversified features, tailoring for
each customer innovative journeys while delivering our heartfelt
services. With the emergence of budget airlines, online travel
agencies, and intensive promotion by online travel product sales
platforms, the travel and consumption patterns of tourists have
changed. In response, the Group has stepped out of the mode
of traditional brick-and-mortar stores, into exploring and mapping
new business frontier, from our own branded travel buses and
hotels, further to providing both online and WhatsApp enquiry
services through the Group’s own branded mobile application
for online travel agency and other sales platforms, going on
further to strengthening our offline services so that customers
can enjoy continuous support and enquiry services. With more
comprehensive and customised caring services, we live up to our
promise for quality offerings.

2018%# Annual Report 2018 007
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Osaka Hinode Hotel ( RERIEDFIEJE ) , the first brand hotel of
the Group, opened for business in November 2017. Within a half
year, the hotel was awarded an Excellent rating of 4.2 points out
of 5.0 points by Hotels.com, and later was awarded an Excellent
rating of 8.8 points out of 10.0 points by Agoda.com, being
accolades awarded from our customers. The Group is sincerely
grateful for the appreciation and compliments from our hotel
customers. Following the opening of the Osaka Hinode Hotel, our
strategy is focused on prospective businesses through increased
market demand for hotel accommodation, due to the new “Private
Lodging Business Act ( ({EF=EBAEE)X) )” which was
implemented in Japan in June 2018, the estimated completion in
2020 of the second runway in Okinawa, and later on the hosting
of the Olympics, World Expo, G20 Summit and other factors. In
January 2018, with total consideration of approximately HK$67.3
million, the Group acquired for hotel construction four parcels of
land with an aggregate site area of approximately 2,103 sg.m.
at prime central location in Okinawa. In July 2018, with total
consideration of approximately HK$3.3 million, the Group further
acquired two parcels of land adjacent to the land noted above,
with an aggregate site area of approximately 225 sg.m., to expand
the development scale of the hotel, in order to meet the growing
demand for accommodation needs of tourists in the future.

To cater for the individual needs of free independent travellers,
to provide them with more flexibility in arranging a more enriched
itinerary by joining local tours while in Japan, the Group invested
and established a travel agency in Japan with the Group’s local
business partner, a non-connected person, for the operation of
providing local package tours. Such company has commenced
operation in the third quarter of 2018.

True to our brand concept of “Bringing More Happiness to
Customers (X4 X AZ — 2 F )7, our team is dedicated
to arranging innovative and satisfactory journey for customers.
The Group is much honoured to have been awarded numerous
industry exemplar awards during the Year, which signifies that our
products and services are well recognised and perceived by all
sectors, and this has truly inspired our team. Awards won by the
Group during the Year included from the world’s most authoritative
international travel websites “TripAdvisor”, being the exceptional
award for “Favourite Travel Agency — Tours ( & B k1T 4 — iR
77H#)”, and also from U-Magazine of Hong Kong for 4 tourism
awards of 2018, namely “My Favourite Korea Tours (& & = & &
BIE) ", “My Favourite Australia Tours (& EZERMNE) ", “My
Favourite Overseas Wedding Services ( B & E E /S IMEERT) 7,
and “My Favourite Japan Tours (B &EZE HZAE) " which the
Group has now won for six consecutive years. Our team sincerely
appreciated the intense recognition and encouragement of our
customers. Since the “Quality E-Shop Recognition Scheme” was
first launched by The Hong Kong Retail Management Association
(HKRMA) in 2017, the Group’s e-shop has always been
recognised as a “Quality E-shop”. The HKRMA’s comprehensive
and objective assessment system for e-shops have assured
customers to enjoy online shopping with ease of mind, at our
e-shop.
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The Group constantly refreshes its tourism products for customers
to enjoy brand new travel experience, and also constantly adds
new tourism elements into our products of overseas domestic
tours and special theme package tours. During the Year, the
Group was designated as Hong Kong’s only franchiser and
the first travel agency outside of Japan, to providing franchised
special train relating services for “Train Suite Shiki-shima” and
“Twilight Express Mizukaze” luxury train, both of which gain
huge popularity in Japan, allowing customers to experience a
brand new superior and comfortable train journey. Our special
theme package tours, Kenya package tours in East Africa were
launched with strong recommendation giving the opportunity to
customers to witness the Great Animal Migration. In addition, the
Group affiliates with designated airlines to launch direct flights
to both Shikoku Tokushima and from Komatsu to Shoryudo in
Japan, to provide in-depth tours for customers. We also launched
our seasonal product series with the theme of “In Family Tour,
Happy Landing with Parents and Kids (iRIE4)E 2 ik — 5K
48 Happy Landing ) ”, which was designed to enrich children with
knowledge, improve their adaptability in daily life and self-care
ability, and increase communication and interaction opportunities
between parents and children. During the Year, the Group also
co-organised “EGL Mega Malaysia 2018” with Malaysia Tourism
Promotion Board (Hong Kong office), allowing customers to
experience the glamorous Malaysian scenery in a colorful themed
promotional moving showroom, and got the chance to taste durian
ice cream and participate in interactive games. In addition, the
Group is much honoured to be the sole travel agency in Hong
Kong designated by the Japanese government to receive hotel
accommodation grants, which fully subsidise all our Hokkaido
tourism products. In response to the local government’s “We are
Genki Hokkaido ( 7MiM it /&38) " themed publicity program,
the Group launched a series of events to promote Hokkaido
sightseeing facilities, so that customers can know more of the
charm of Hokkaido, in concerted effort with mutual benefits, to
revitalise sightseeing in Hokkaido Japan.

In terms of online marketing, the Group has also co-operated with
Citibank, becoming the first travel agency in Hong Kong to use
the Citi Pay with Points service. Customers of this bank can use
credit card bonus points to offset the amount of the purchase
transactions when they shop at our website, which would enhance
their online shopping experience.
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SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group has always committed to fulfilling its corporate
social responsibilities with respect to community development,
consumers, staff and many other areas, together to build an
even better society. The Group has already established an
“EGL Caring Society Team”, in order to host and organise
charitable events to promote community development with the
benefit of our knowledge of the tourism industry as well our
own resources. In addition to making donations continuously to
institutions in need and endeavouring to build up a harmonious
and friendly community, the Group also emphasises on cultivating
employees’ awareness of social responsibility and encouraging
them to participate in charitable community activities to support
people in need. The Group introduces volunteer activities into
staff orientation, like in the process of interaction with elderly
Alzheimer’s patients. The employees would be concerned and
listen to the needs of these patients, and assist them in skills
training, therefore to experience care amongst people, and to
realise that “It is more blessed to give than to receive”. During
the Year, the Group participated in the “Good Employer Charter”
held by the Labour Department of Hong Kong to promote jointly
a decent human resources management culture, and pledged to
adopt good up-to-date employee-oriented good human resource
management measures, so as to build a harmonious relationship
in the workplace. During the Year, the Group organised a number
of staff activities, including autumn barbecue, cake baking class,
handcrafting Easter dolls, preparing Mother’s Day carnations,
bowling competition, mobile video competition, Christmas tree-
based environmental decoration competition and team-building
games. All these activities enhance the warm relationship among
colleagues, family members and friends as well as promote team

spirit and mutual support.
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During the Year, the Group cooperated with “Youth.ROC” for the
third consecutive year to sponsor fifteen students to participate in
the “2018 Penghu Bay Beach Running Carnival (2018 i#& %
B MEFE) " held in Taiwan. The Group actively encouraged
youngsters to explore the world, challenge themselves, and to
install charges in life, to understand the value of team spirit, and
to land a life with health and confidence through running. Also,
the Group sponsored EGL football team to participate in the “Fair
Trade Cup — Hong Kong Corporate Football Championship 2018”
organised by Fair Trade Hong Kong. Together with Fair Trade Hong
Kong, the Group appeals to Hong Kong football enthusiasts to
look at the exploitation of labour during the course of production
of footballs, thereby to improve the livelihood of Pakistani football
labour and to support the promotion of a fair trade economy.

In addition, the Group is committed to advocating the concept
of “Green Office” and steps up to implementing energy-savings
measures to reduce energy consumption by the Group. Apart from
the Group’s offices, the Group actively improves energy efficiency
during the course of providing travel agency related services.
The Group believes that the efficient use of energy can save
operating costs and reduce the consumption of natural resources
at the same time. The Group makes great efforts to enhance the
environmental awareness of its employees and customers by
encouraging them to use the resources in a responsible manner,
particularly in terms of energy-savings and waste management,
with a view to minimising the impact of the Group’s business
operations on the environment.

BUSINESS PROSPECT

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 12
March 2019, a hotel development project with a construction
contract sum of JPY3,750 million was carried out in March 2019
on the above-mentioned Okinawa acquired land immediately
after finalising the detailed planning on hotel design and
architectural style. The Group expects the construction of the
hotel development project to be completed in the third quarter of
2020 and to commence operation in the fourth quarter of 2020.
As for the hot spring bath building under construction in Osaka, its
construction was also completed in March 2019, and the project,
named as “Hinode Deep-water Hot Spring GEDF /R EHKER) 7,
is expected to commence operation in early April 2019.

20185 % Annual Report 2018 011



2018[E & 2018 REVIEW

FERE
Chairman’s Statement

REMAMNIFREERRKE HHERBEERRS
Bk HEBLETTERR LR R e - EH ™5 R &
TNEABARE & - AN 5 B 8 B4R 2 Tt B i i 2E an e T A
¥OREANTERERONRE BRES—UEANT
FAF2 BREEEZEMOOKERR -

AARFRARKEZFIBEABRNARZ EREXHE]
FXAR2018F M — AR EME XA LTHRE FHEE
MNEHAA MR BEFALEERET ARBR
EEAX L RARBERELBAFTERETA R
EREEGROEBEORBHES ARBIFMNZ TR
REEMRRYE AEENEBRRETP REBBH
BT HREIBRIMEB L - AABERAERR TP ¥
BEH EEENEZEE T 2 EEMHR AR ROH
BEREAM-REESERINETUNORE -

FRERPTEF

X

b

% 20193 A22H

012 smEERAERALT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

In recent years, the global financial market fluctuated in the wake
of volatile political situation, and more risk-aversion behaviour has
been observed in the market, making it possible for the Japanese
yen to appreciate against the Hong Kong dollar. In the face of
market risks and uncertainties, the Group has never been deterred
from diversifying our travel products portfolio. We endeavour to
offer tailored and premium services to cater for different needs of
each customer, for each to achieve a truly authentic and enjoyable
travel experience.

During the Year, | was most honored to receive “The Order of the
Rising Sun, Gold and Silver Rays” from the Japanese government,
to become the only recipient thereof in the Greater China region in
2018. Embracing such enthusiasm to promote Japanese culture,
I will continue to lead the Group to bring in-depth Japanese
culture to customers, and to explore for more worthwhile
Japanese sightseeing spots for our customers in the future. | am
confident that, with the heartfelt serving spirit of our team and
our innovative and diversified travel products and services, the
Group’s business growth will be as solid as a rock under the
support of our customers and business partners. | would like to
express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers,
business partners, management and staff members for their trust
and support. Let’s work together to move ahead from excellent to
magnificent.

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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GROUP OVERVIEW

In 2018, the Group came across natural disaster, unexpected

business and economic conditions like appreciation of JPY
against HKD, economic downturn led by Sino-US trade war
and volatility in equity markets. Notwithstanding the challenges
faced during 2018, the Group wrote a glorious page in its well-
diversified business development by winning numerous awards
and high ratings in both travel related business and hotel operation
business, the Group regards it as great achievement in the
past year and also testifies to the customers’ satisfaction and
compliment as recognition of the Group’s commitment towards
delivering sustainable and long-term high-quality services with
more happiness to customers in our endeavours.
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Despite the Group’s revenue and gross profit increased by
9.4% and 8.1% respectively to approximately HK$1,776.6
million in 2018 (2017: HK$1,624.6 million), and to approximately
HK$315.3 million in 2018 (2017: HK$291.8 million), gross profit
margin decreased from 18.0% in 2017 to 17.7% in 2018. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company increased by 21.9% to
approximately HK$34.8 million in 2018 (2017: HK$28.6 million).

Basic earnings per share for profit attributable to owners of the
Company for 2018 was HK6.93 cents (2017: HK5.68 cents).
Details of utilisation of net proceeds from the IPO will be discussed
in the sub-section headed “Report of the Directors — Use of
proceeds from the IPO”.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The principal activities of the Group comprise provision of package
tours, FIT Products and ancillary travel related products and
services as well as the ownership, development and management
of hotel business.

Revenue and gross profit from various travel related business
segments for the years are set out as follows:

2018 2017
& =5 ER=E g EHM EF*
Gross Gross
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue profit margin  Revenue profit margin
TR FTER BAt FHIL FHT B
HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$000 HKE000 %
IRAT Package tours
-BAR - Japan 926,968 123,659 13.3 972,115 155,304 16.0
E =P - Non-Japan 569,895 66,249 11.6 485,787 54,357 11.2
&1TE &t Total package tours 1,496,863 189,908 12.7 1,457,902 209,661 14.4
BETED XM FIT Products and ancillary travel
TRATHE A E om X PR 75 related products and services 212,527 75,461 355 164,102 79,160 48.2
Mt Total 1,709,390 265,369 15.5 1,622,004 288,821 17.8
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FPACKAGE TOURS

Revenue from package tours mainly represents tour fees
received from customers for outbound package tours. The main
source of the Group’s revenue is derived from package tours,
which contributed 84.2% to the Group’s total revenue during
2018 (2017: 89.7%). The decrease was attributable mainly to
well-diversified business mix with the commencement of hotel
operation business since November 2017.

Japan-bound package tours remain the major source of the
Group’s revenue, which contributed 52.2% (2017: 59.8%) to the
Group’s total revenue during 2018. In 2018, natural disasters
like typhoons and earthquakes, economic downturn resulted
from trade war between China and United States and also JPY
strengthening against HKD, number of customers decreased
by 4.4% from 103,234 in 2017 to 98,679 in 2018, revenue
decreased by 4.6% from approximately HK$972.1 million in 2017
to approximately HK$927.0 million in 2018, whilst gross profit and
gross profit margin decreased simultaneously by 20.4% and 2.7
percentage points as compared to 2017.

Comparatively speaking, the result of non-dapan-bound package
tours had been much improved in 2018, number of customers
increased from 72,367 in 2017 to 82,202 in 2018, revenue
increased by 17.3% from approximately HK$485.8 million in 2017
to approximately HK$569.9 million in 2018, whilst gross profit
and gross profit margin increased by 21.9% and 0.4 percentage
points as compared to 2017. Price-cutting trend in the market
for the tours bound to Europe, Korea and Taiwan and also the
earthquakes occurred in Taiwan Hualien in early 2018 put a
hurdle to the performance of non-dapan-bound package tours
during the first half of 2018. In the second half of 2018, tours
bound to countries like Australia, Europe and Korea were well-
perceived by customers and improved the overall performance of
non-Japan-bound package tours in 2018.
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FIT PRODUCTS AND ANCILLARY TRAVEL RELATED
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Revenue from FIT Products and ancillary travel related products
and services mainly represents income from sale of air tickets,
hotel accommodation, public transportation tickets, theme park
admission tickets, commission income from travel insurance
services and handling fees for remittance services provided
to souvenir and merchandise suppliers in Japan. With more
budget airlines and online sales platforms joined the market
which intensified market competition and price-cutting trend in
tourism industry, the Group adopted more competitive pricing
strategy to the sales. Revenue recorded an increase of 29.5%
from approximately HK$164.1 million in 2017 to approximately
HK$212.5 million in 2018, which contributed 12.0% (2017: 10.1%)
to the Group’s total revenue during 2018. However, gross profit
and gross profit margin decreased by 4.7% and 12.7 percentage
points as compared to 2017.

HOTEL OPERATION

The Group’s first hotel in Osaka has commenced its operation
since November 2017, which provides quality hospitality services
for guests worldwide, and contributed 3.8% (2017: 0.2%) to the
Group’s total revenue during 2018, amounted to approximately
HK$67.2 million (2017: HK$2.6 million).
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FEHBHE KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
2018 2017
FEF = Gross profit margin 17.7% 18.0%
KBTI 2 Operating profit margin 2.1% 2.4%
& Net profit margin* 2.0% 1.8%
FlEBEEX Interest coverage ratio 9.4f%times 103.2f&times
188 [0l 3 R~ Return on total assets* 3.8% 3.4%
RAGIEB NELRERE R E Return on equity attributable to
owners of the Company* 9.8% 8.5%
B L 2 Current ratio 1.3f&times 1.6f&times
TR & Gearing ratio 29.6% 29.7%

* AR ETE LIEARRES ARG R -

Wz K EF
FLHLXEEEBNREONT —EBME | DEEH
AEEUW SR EMAF o

HEFIX

AIRETRA BRESMERZINESNEEER
BARNEEHERIXNEIER D AEENHERX
B 12.0% % £986,400,0007% 7T (20174F : 98,200,000
BIL) R EERANR017TFFRERIARFPIEAL R A
MRB TRAAKIER D FTE
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Profit in calculation refers to the profit attributable to owners of the
Company.

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

Please refer to the discussion on the Group’s revenue and gross
profit in the sub-section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Business Overview” above.

SELLING EXPENSES

Frontline employee costs, advertising and promotion expenses
for media advertising and promotional activities are key elements
of selling expenses. Selling expenses of the Group decreased by
12.0% to approximately HK$86.4 million (2017: HK$98.2 million)
which was primarily contributed by the significant decrease in
frontline employee costs after restructuring frontline departments
at the end of 2017.
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employee costs, directors’ remuneration, bank charges, rent and
rates and management fee and depreciation on property, plant
and equipment contributed to majority of administrative expenses.
Administrative expenses of the Group increased by 22.0% to
approximately HK$204.7 million (2017: HK$167.8 million), the
increase was primarily contributed by the significant increase in
expenses for hotel business of approximately HK$31.3 million and
increase in staff costs for travel related business of approximately
HK$5.4 million as compared to 2017.

FINANCE COSTS

Imputed interests of approximately HK$126,000 (equivalent to
approximately JPY1.8 million) incurred on the bank borrowings
for construction of hot spring bath building were capitalised into
construction in progress in 2018 (2017: HK$1.2 million (equivalent
to approximately JPY17.2 million) on the bank borrowings for
construction of hotel building). After capitalisation of the above-
mentioned imputed interests, finance costs of approximately
HK$3.9 million was incurred (2017: HK$0.4 million on the bank
borrowings for construction and decoration of hotel building and
acquisition of five travel buses) on the bank borrowings which were
used to finance the construction and decoration of hotel building,
the acquisition of travel bus and daily operations of travel related
business.

INCOME TAX CREDIT

The income tax credit of the Group in 2018 amounted to
approximately HK$2.1 million (2017: income tax expenses
of approximately HK$9.3 million), the credit was mainly due
to deferred tax credit arising from hotel business in Japan as
depreciation rates of property, plant and equipment for accounting
purposes and for tax purposes in Japan are different.
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
and HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” have
been assessed and opening adjustments have been made of
which details are set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements. The other new or amended HKFRSs that are effective
from 1 January 2018 did not have material impact on the Group’s
accounting policies.

INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO

Interest coverage ratio of the Group decreased from 1083.2 times in
2017 to 9.4 times in 2018. This is mainly contributed by decrease
in profit before interest expenses and taxation resulted from the
factors driven to higher administrative expenses as mentioned
above, and more finance costs on bank borrowings were borne for
hotel and travel related business operation in 2018 as compared
to 2017.

Interest coverage ratio is calculated by dividing profit before
interest expenses and taxation by finance costs over the
respective years.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN, OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN
AND NET PROFIT MARGIN

Operating profit margin of the Group decreased from 2.4% in 2017
to 2.1% in 2018 was primarily attributable to higher increase in
administrative expenses comparing with increase in gross profit as
mentioned above, whilst net profit margin increased from 1.8% in
2017 to 2.0% in 2018. The increase in the margin was primarily
attributable to income tax credit in 2018 as mentioned above.

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s current ratio was 1.3 times
(as at 31 December 2017: 1.6 times). The slight decrease in
current ratio was mainly attributable to increase in current portion
of bank borrowings of approximately HK$15.1 million and increase
in customer deposits received of approximately HK$15.1 million.
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GEARING RATIO

The Group’s gearing ratio was 29.6% (as at 31 December 2017:
29.7%) as the Group had further drawn down the bank borrowing
for construction of hot spring bath building, whilst its impact
was net-off by additions of property, plant and equipment, and
construction in progress for hotel spring bath building.

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total interest-bearing
loans with the total assets as at the respective year ends.

RETURN ON TOTAL ASSETS AND RETURN ON EQUITY
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMFANY

Return on total assets and return on equity attributable to owners
of the Company were 3.8% (2017: 3.4%) and 9.8% (2017: 8.5%)
respectively. The increase in return on total assets and return on
equity were mainly due to increase in profit attributable to owners
of the Company in 2018 as compared to 2017.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group had withdrawn bank borrowing of approximately
JPY349.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$24.7 million)
for construction of hot spring bath building, the carrying amount
of the bank borrowing as at 31 December 2018 amounted to
approximately JPY346.1 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$24.5 million) (as at 31 December 2017: Nil).

Regarding to the construction of Osaka Hinode Hotel completed
in 2017, the carrying amount of the bank borrowings as at 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately JPY3,365.7 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$238.5 million) (as at 31 December
2017: HK$242.9 million).

For acquisition of five travel buses in the last year, the carrying
amount of the bank borrowing as at 31 December 2018 amounted
to approximately JPY92.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$6.6 million) (as at 31 December 2017: HK$8.0 million).
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Furthermore, the Group had withdrawn bank borrowings of
HK$214.4 million to finance the short-term needs for travel related
business operation, all bank borrowings had been repaid in 2018
(as at 31 December 2017: Nil).

Other than the above, the Group financed its operation with its
own capital, with the total equity attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$355.0 million (as at 31 December 2017: HK$336.2 million). As
at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash at banks and on hand
amounted to approximately HK$230.0 million (as at 31 December
2017: HK$263.4 million). Cash at banks and on hand were mainly
denominated in HKD accounting for approximately 50.9% (as at
31 December 2017: 71.6%), MOP accounting for approximately
8.1% (as at 31 December 2017: 4.3%), Renminbi accounting
for approximately 2.3% (as at 31 December 2017: 6.9%), Euro
accounting for approximately 6.3% (as at 31 December 2017:
1.8%) and JPY accounting for approximately 23.3% (as at 31
December 2017: 8.5%).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had pledged bank deposits
of approximately HK$6.3 million (as at 31 December 2017:
HK$29.6 million), majority of which were pledged to certain
licensed banks in Hong Kong and Macau to secure letters of
guarantee issued to certain third parties on behalf of the Group.
As a result of the corporate guarantee provided by the Company
and the Executive Directors guaranteed to maintain the control
over the management and business of the Group, a decrease
in pledged bank deposits was recorded. The Group’s total
guarantees amounted to approximately HK$17.9 million (as at 31
December 2017: HK$18.5 million), which were mainly issued to
the Group’s suppliers, such as airlines and hotels, to guarantee
the Group’s trade payable balances due to the suppliers. Also, as
at 31 December 2018, property, plant and equipment of Osaka
Hinode Hotel and that of hot spring bath building and travel
buses of approximately HK$287.6 million (as at 31 December
2017: HK$269.8 million) were pledged for the bank borrowings as
mentioned in the sub-section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Financial Review — Capital Structure, Liquidity and
Finance Resources”.
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Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other pledge of assets
as at 31 December 2018.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND FUTURE CAPITAL
EXPENDITURES

The total estimated capital expenditure for construction of
hot spring bath building was approximately JPY787.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$55.8 million translated at
the exchange rate of 0.07087 as at 31 December 2018) and
the construction work was completed in March 2019. As at
31 December 2018, the capital expenditure of approximately
JPY367.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$26.0 million)
was settled in March 2019 (as at 31 December 2017: HK$1.2
million). The Group financed its development costs through internal
resources and bank financing.

In addition, the Group had capital commitments of preliminary
construction work for hotel development in Okinawa of
approximately HK$4.8 million (equivalent to approximately
JPY68.3 million) as at 31 December 2018 (as at 31 December
2017: HK$61.9 million for acquisition of freehold land in Okinawa).
The Group plans to construct a new hotel in Okinawa which is
expected to be completed in 2020 by entering a construction
contract with contract sum of JPY3,750.0 million as disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 12 March 2019.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had capital commitment of
approximately HK$2.5 million (as at 31 December 2017: HK$1.6
million) to acquire property, plant and equipment for its travel
related business.

For future capital expenditures other than above-mentioned and
refurbishment and face lifting of existing branches to be financed
by proceeds from the IPO as stated in the sub-section headed
“Report of the Directors — Use of proceeds from the IPO”, the
Group currently intends to finance such expenses by internal
resources.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Directors considered that there were no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2018 (as at 31 December 2017: Nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK AND
TREASURY POLICIES

Foreign currency exchange risk exposure is encountered by the
Group to the extent that receipt from customers and payments
to suppliers may not be reconciled, subject to prevailing foreign
currency fluctuations. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had
one floating to fixed interest rate swap contract with a bank in
Japan to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk and cash flow
changes of its floating-rate bank borrowings. Other than the
swap contract, the Group didn’t rely on hedging arrangements,
the Group had implemented foreign exchange risk management
procedures to closely monitor the risk exposure. The procedures
were established to prevent carrying excessive cash balance
in foreign currencies, of which the purchase amounts were
limited to the corresponding costs of travel elements based on
estimated sales amount for a defined period (one week for JPY
and other foreign currencies), to cover the foreign exchange risk
exposure in connection. The objective of our foreign exchange
risk management procedures is to cover the foreign exchange
risk exposure in connection with those costs of travel elements
denominated in foreign currencies to be incurred for a defined
period of not more than two weeks. Since 1 January 2018, the
defined period has been standardised to one week (other foreign
currencies with defined period of two weeks in 2017 or before).
The procedures do not allow us to exercise any judgement over
the future direction of foreign exchange fluctuation and are strict
procedural steps for our operational staff to follow. The Group will
review the procedures from time to time and make appropriate
changes when necessary. Other than the transactional foreign
currency exchange risk, assets and liabilities of the group entities
are mainly denominated in its respective functional currency. The
Group’s treasury management policy is to place surplus cash into
bank deposits with licensed banks in mainly Hong Kong, Macau
and Japan. Also, working capital are centrally managed to ensure
proper and efficient collection and deployment of funds, and
sufficient funds to settle liabilities when they fall due. Net exchange
gain of approximately HK$6.1 million was recorded in 2018 (2017:
HK$10.2 million).
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BHER 2R - TE4T - BRI S RIFFETEI W BMEREH) -

HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMPLOYEE'’S
REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total workforce of
635 employees (as at 31 December 2017: 658), of which 207
(as at 31 December 2017: 211) were full-time tour escorts.
Employees’ remuneration packages are determined with reference
to the market information and individual performance and will
be reviewed on a regular basis. The remuneration policy will
be reviewed by the Board from time to time. Emoluments of
Directors are determined by the Remuneration Committee of the
Board after considering the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparing with market conditions. In addition to
basic remuneration, the Group also provides medical insurance,
provident funds and other benefits in kind to the employees.
To intensify personnel training and development, the Group
provides a series of employee training programmes, which aims
to accelerate professional growth and identify competences and
talents of diversified teams. Through operating talent development
scheme and also Youth Upward Mobility Mentorship Program,
the Group has successfully extended the recruitment channels
and enhanced the opportunities on the hiring of high quality
and suitable staff. High potential staff will be groomed and
developed intensively according to the promotion plan towards
the management level. To attract and retain the suitable personnel
for the development of the Group, the Group has adopted
Share Option Scheme since November 2014. Pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme, share options may be granted to eligible
employees of the Group as a long-term incentive. No share
options were granted, cancelled, lapsed or exercised in 2018.
During 2018, there was no significant change in the remuneration
policies, bonus, Share Option Scheme and training scheme of the
Group.

20184 % Annual Report 2018 025
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OUTLOOK

The Group continually instils new momentum into business
development by grasping any golden opportunities to achieve
well-diversified business mix to maximise the benefit brought by

synergy.

Immediately following commencement of business of the Group’s
first hotel “Osaka Hinode Hotel” in November 2017, the Group had
acquired six parcels of land in Okinawa for hotel development with
construction work commenced from March 2019 as disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 12 March 2019. The Group
expects the hotel development project to be completed in the third
quarter of 2020 and to commence operation in the fourth quarter
of 2020, the hotel will bring synergy to meet hotel accommodation
needs to the Group’s package tours and FIT business.

Construction of hot spring bath building had been completed in
March 2019 and will commence operation in early April 2019. The
hot spring bath building and Osaka Hinode Hotel will be the focal
point within the same lot as an attraction to hotel customers.
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Five Year Financial Summary
HE12AMBLEEE
For the year ended 31 December
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
FTHT FAT FAET FHET FAT
ES Results HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g Revenue
ik Package tours 1,496,863 1,457,902 1,505,955 1,660,538 1,524,714
BHRTERRE T FIT Products and ancillary travel
BR1T AR B E o e AR related products and services 212,527 164,102 174,277 197,803 160,531
B IE & E Hotel operation 67,224 2,580 - - -
1,776,614 1,624,584 1,680,232 1,858,341 1,685,245
E7 Gross Profit
IRATE Package tours 189,908 209,661 164,573 304,729 224,689
BHRTERREMIIRTT FIT Products and ancillary travel
TARAE T M AR related products and services 75,461 79,160 99,350 130,022 116,274
HIEEE Hotel operation 49,920 2,946 - - -
315,289 291,767 263,923 434,751 340,963
Ha A R F 5 Other income and gain, net 9,590 14,096 10,038 1,111 6,274
JEIGEE & N R ESE Share of results of associates 3,081 2,148 3,462 1,485 -
MREEE D A 2 BB Impairment on interest in an associate - (3,839) - - -
B I8 K PTAS B A A Profit before interest and income tax 36,857 38,188 23,048 175,687 90,175
BE KK Finance costs (3,913) (370) - - -
e e,/ (Ax) Income tax credit/(expense) 2,120 (9,314) (3,714) (25,253) (15,668)
F [ F Profit for the year 35,064 28,504 19,334 150,434 74,507
RS EMS CFF) /  (Profit)/Loss attributable to
B non-controlling interests (247) 55 (664) 35 -
KNABEER AEMRGF Profit attributable to
owners of the Company 34,817 28,559 18,670 150,469 74,507
BREE Per share data
FREF Earnings per share
—EARREE OBI) - - Basic and diluted (HK cents)* 6.93 5.68 3.72 29.95 18.20
Bt = Financial ratios
ERE Gross profit margin 17.7% 18.0% 15.7% 23.4% 20.2%
ERBX Operating profit margin 21% 2.4% 1.4% 9.5% 5.4%
F R R Net profit margin* 2.0% 1.8% 1.1% 8.1% 4.4%
488 B[O 3R R~ Return on total assets* 3.8% 3.4% 3.0% 24.1% 15.7%
18 72 [0 R Return on equity* 9.8% 8.5% 5.8% 41.9% 31.8%
e =& Current ratio 1.3f5times  1.6f5times  1.7f5times  2.3fZtimes  1.9fZtimes
TEIR L X Gearing ratio 29.6% 29.7% 8.4% = Nil Z Nil

EAREE LIEARBEE AEERF - .

Profit in calculation refers to profit attributable to owners of the

Company.
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M12831H8
As at 31 December
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
TET FET FHET FET FHET
BEREE Assets and Liabilities HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BEE Total assets 912,476 845,660 632,556 624,114 474,570
BEE Total liabilities (554,325)  (506,699)  (308,851)  (263,041)  (240,571)
EmBEE Total equity 358,151 338,961 323,705 361,073 233,999
FABARKNRITER Bank borrowings included in
total liabilities (269,638)  (250,931) (53,287) - -
EREH Total equity
KRB EBAELER Equity attributable to
owners of the Company 355,015 336,154 321,120 359,209 233,999
IR Non-controlling interests 3,136 2,807 2,585 1,864 -
358,151 338,961 323,705 361,073 233,999
Krat - Notes:

1. RAFE R AR B ERR1.0781L - & $£5,024,5008 7 1.

KEEIRMKM (20176 :2.081l) - BESEZAF
ft‘*mikﬁﬁﬂ“% BER4.08 I (20174 1 1.08L) - 12

FARIREEFARARBREN20190FRBRAFTAE
%ttfé??ﬂ'ﬁﬁ

2. JFEE M E MR 418,600,000/ TR E E2014F12 2.

ABTBEIEFEARR AR AEMEEMAHE -

3. AEBEMN2018F1 1B EVRERBT B KRS ER 3.

FORNEBFBMBMESERNE 1R - REMEZBE
FEOHBEMNTREES - WESHBRZEBFIE
ERERA TS IR M iE2(a) 3 5 -

028 =H=EiERAR~AT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

An interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per share of HK$5,024,500
was declared and paid during the Year (2017: HK2.0 cents). Final
dividend of HK4.0 cents per share (2017: HK1.0 cent) in respect of
the Year was proposed by the Board. The proposed final dividend
is subject to the approval by the Company’s shareholders at the
2019 AGM.

Non-recurring listing expenses of approximately HK$18.6 million
were deducted from the profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at
1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
comparative information is not restated. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 2(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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M2018F12A381H A2 a2 o #5 k& HFELD
63,000,000/ 7T (20174 : 72,500,000/ 7T ) °

The Directors submit herewith their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$63.0 million (2017: HK$72.5
million).

030 =mEiEERAERADR  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the

Company and the Group as at 31 December 2018 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 221 of this
annual report. The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK1.0
cent (2017: HK2.0 cents) per Share during the Year. The Directors
recommended the declaration of a final dividend of HK4.0 cents
per Share, which is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at
the 2019 AGM, which, if approved, is expected to be payable on
Friday, 28 June 2019 to the Shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 12 June
2019. There was no arrangement with any Shareholder under
which he/she/it has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion of the Group’s future business development are set
out in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 12 and the
sub-sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Business Overview and Outlook” on pages 15 to 17 and on page
26 of this annual report respectively.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Certain principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group may

affect its business, operating results and financial conditions,

including:

()

(")

OCCURRENCE OF NATURAL DISASTERS,
ACTS OR THREATS OF TERRORISM, WARS,
TRAVEL RELATED ACCIDENTS, OUTBREAK
OF CONTAGIOUS DISEASES OR OTHER
CATASTROPHIC EVENTS

The demand for the Group’s travel related products,
services and hotel accommodations may be materially
and adversely affected by natural disasters, acts or
threats of terrorism, wars, travel related accidents,
outbreak of contagious diseases or other catastrophic
events. Such events may significantly and adversely
affect customer sentiments and demand for travel related
products, services and hotel accommodations to the
affected destinations or for travel activities in general. The
occurrence and timing of such events cannot be predicted
or controlled by the Group and may have significant and
adverse impact on its assets, business operations and
operating results, particularly if the Group is, or is perceived
to be, not reacting appropriately in the wake of any such
event.

CHANGE IN ECONOMIC CONDITIONS OF MAJOR
MARKETS

The Group’s business is based in Hong Kong and Macau
and its revenue is mainly derived from the sale of travel
related products and services in Hong Kong and Macau.
Any economic downturn or recession in Hong Kong or
Macau could lead to decline in demand for the Group’s
products or services and its overall business and operating
results may be materially and adversely affected.
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CHANGE IN ECONOMIC, SOCIAL OR POLITICAL
CONDITIONS AND LAWS AND REGULATIONS
RELATED TO JAPAN

The business and operating results of the Group might be
adversely affected if there is any material adverse change in
the economic, social or political situations relating to Japan,
including its foreign relationship with other Asian countries,
or laws and regulations, including building regulations and
health and safety regulations or if there are any serious
natural disasters or disastrous accidents occurring in
Japan, which may adversely impact customer demand for
travel related products and services of the Group related to
Japan and as well as the hotel accommodations in Japan.

HIGHLY COMPETITIVE HOSPITALITY INDUSTRY
IN JAFAN

Osaka Hinode Hotel,
face competition from other accommodation options in

which is located in Osaka, might

Japan currently existing or which may come into operation
in the future. The success of the Group’s hotel operation
will depend on its ability to compete in aspects such as
room rates, quality of accommodation, service level and
convenience of location.

Further description of possible financial risks and capital risks

facing

by the Group are set out in note 38 and note 37 to the

consolidated financial statements and the sub-section headed

“Management Discussion and Analysis — Foreign Currency

Exchange Risk and Treasury Policies” on page 24 of this annual

report.
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An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the “Five Year
Financial Summary” and the sub-section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review” on pages 27 to
29 and on pages 18 to 25 of this annual report respectively.
Particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the Year, if any, can also be found in the
above sections of this annual report and notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and has implemented certain policies to minimise
the impact on the environment caused by its business activities.
The Group has implemented internal recycling program on a
continuous basis for consumables such as toner, cartridges and
paper to minimise the operation impact on the environment and
natural resources. Recycled papers have also been used as
printing materials. The Group also implemented energy saving
practices in offices and branch premises, where applicable. To the
extent practicable, the Group completed the upgrade of electricity
systems to achieve the energy saving to workplace. The Board is
of the opinion that the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in all
material respects during the Year. The Group endeavours to refine
the approach to addressing its environmental, social and ethical
responsibilities along with improving its corporate governance and
should generate greater value for all of its stakeholders including
its shareholders, employees, customers, and suppliers as well as
the communities.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the
Company prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing
Rules will be published within three months after the publication of

this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Group provides a
fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity to its staff, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings and
development resources to the employees so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry
and, at the same time, improve their performance and self
fulfillment in their positions.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide products and services
which satisfy the needs and requirements of the customers.
The Group enhances its customer relationship by continuous
interaction with customers to gain insight on the changing market
demand for different products and services so that the Group can
respond proactively. The Group has also established procedures
in handling customers’ feedbacks and complaints to ensure
customers’ opinions are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains sound business relationship with its
suppliers and service providers, including land, airlines and
hotel operators, globally. In order to have a better and close
monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s management
conducts performance review regularly targeting the Group’s major
suppliers and service providers, and communicates with them for

rectification and improvements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years are set out on pages
27 to 29 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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s EXTES LIST OF PROPERTIES
R2018F12A31H  ANEBHEEFIEREMETBA As at 31 December 2018, details of the properties held for
YIEFFEBWT development and owner occupation which are owned by the

Group are as follows:

Y E PROPERTIES FOR DEVELOPMENT
R EFT B4 B4 20185
hEhifEsE wBRAERE LEEE BE 12A31HZ
f ot vE Aotk (FRXK)  (FHXK) T A% TIMEER
Stage of
Percentage Approx. Approx. Completion
Interest  Aggregate Gross as at
inthe  Site Area Floor Area Existing 31 December
Description Location Property (sg. m.) (sg. m.) Land Use 2018
BEARRME B2 KBR T A BR 1R % & 8 36 100% 266.01  1,008.33 BRAKRE FERERIF
(Ktita) Af—T B2%31 k2%S32
A site at Ebisunishi 2-31 and 2-32, Ebisunishi, Hot spring bath  Superstructure
(Note a) 1-Chome, Naniwa-Ku, building in progress
Osaka-Shi, Osaka-Fu,
Japan
P B 3 AR B 2% 48 7 8 T 41 75.3-346 100%  2,330.34  6,350.68 BIE MBI R
(Hiitp) 3-348-1+3-350 + 3-353-6
3-353-7%3-361-11
A site at Makishi 3-346, 3-348-1, 3-350, Hotel  Planning stage
(Note b) 3-353-6, 3-353-7 and

3-361-11, Makishi,
Naha City, Okinawa, Japan

Kiat - Notes:

(a) REBER2017F 1R 42K E137,500,000B B (HHERL () The land parcels were acquired by the Group in 2017 at the
9,625,000 7T ) 7 Bl [A] R 2 Y& 37 55 = J5 We BE 35 o aggregate consideration of JPY137,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$9,625,000) from two independent third parties

respectively.

(b) REBER2018F1 AR K {E970,000,000E B (g () Four land parcels were acquired by the Group in January 2018

MR #967,900,0007% 7T ) [ — & ¥ 37 55 = 75 Uk BE PO 1 3h, at the aggregate consideration of JPY970,000,000 (equivalent to
¥ o AR E B 7201847 A 12 421X (246,000,000 H [E (18 approximately HK$67,900,000) from an independent third party.
B 493,220,000/ 7T ) M — R E = WEE BIMNR Another two land parcels were acquired by the Group in July 2018
18 1 358 o at the aggregate consideration of JPY46,000,000 (equivalent to

approximately HK$3,220,000) from an independent third party.

036 =F=miERAR~AT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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KEEFHEREE HOTEL OWNED BY THE GROUP
AP P EL BOnBRAEE MHMOBREEE
BIE S vE BEBE AHERER (SEHK) (FFHXK)
Approx. Approx.
Percentage Aggregate Gross Floor
Interest in the Available Site Area Area
Hotel Name Location Property Rooms (sq. m.) (sg. m.)
RBRED R G B 2R KB A BR R R & 100% 352 1,602 9,884
BXAEA-TH2&
13%2%33

Osaka Hinode Hotel 2-13 and 2-33 Ebisunishi,

1-Chome, Naniwa-Ku,

Osaka-Shi, Osaka-Fu, Japan

B 7
AR B 2 B A B A [ AR AT (T 2 8 -

BE HESIEOALARAZ LTRSS

RAFE ARAREEAMBARMERE HEX
BRIARRBER EHES -

BABE#

MEEiRARRERE MBI REARELRE
B2 REARB AR PIRRARREEHRK

BER

S BN A S EEH & =183 #231,0007 7T (2017
© 396,000/ 7T) °

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the Company
during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately HK$231,000 (2017: HK$396,000).

2018% % Annual Report 2018 037
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B AMB0% °

AEETZHEBEANANFEMERBEOLLAT

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers represent less than 30% of the
Group’s total turnover.

The percentages of purchases for the Year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

IEAE
BERBHEAOL
Percentage of
the Group’s total

purchases
BARHER The largest supplier 13.1%
AAEEEE Five largest suppliers in aggregate 31.7%

RWEEMAN MEES HETBREALHETMNEE
EMAAEBARBEBEITRAE%NA EZBRR  RAFE
EHAREBEMNRARETP B ER#x-

038 =H=miEmAR~AT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest during the Year in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. Any Directors
to retire shall be those who have been the longest in office since
their last re-election or appointment but as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Accordingly, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen
and Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric will retire from office and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2019 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group as at the date of this report are set out on pages 73 to
76 of this annual report.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Details of the change of emoluments of the Directors for the Year
are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant
statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors)
of the Company. The permitted indemnity provisions are provided
for in the Articles of Association and in the directors and officers
liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential
liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be
brought against such Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts or appointment
letters, concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Group were
entered into or subsisted during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or subsisted during
the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
2019 AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which the directors
and chief executive of the Company were deemed or taken to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
therein, or were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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BEEnS

Name of Director

HEEE B

Name of
Associated
Corporation

INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE ASSOCIATED

CORPORATION OF THE COMFANY

FEMEE (AEEAEED
EEtE EERGBE BMYBE D

Total Number of
Shares Held in
the Associated

Nature of Interest Corporation

Approximate %
of Interest in
the Associated
Corporation

RXHEEE ([RELE]) ] BISE LRI A (HTaET1) 8,850 (L) 26.70
(EERPTESE)

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (“Mr. Yuen”) Evergloss Founder of a discretionary
(Chairman & Executive Director) trust (Note 1)

BEREE ([HELE]) 12 e B 12 MEEHEEN#ER 7,650 (L) 23.08
(FITES) (K7at2)

Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen (“Mr. Huen”)  Evergloss Interest of a controlled
(Executive Director) corporation (Note 2)

RS AE (TRELE]) 1 B B 38 BEREAA 3,300 (L) 9.95
(FITES)

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu (“Mr. Leung”)  Evergloss Beneficial owner
(Executive Director)
E5rLt ([Fxx]) 2 ik B 12 SR mARETHEEA 9,150 (L) 27.60
(FITES) (HtiF1%3)

Ms. Lee Po Fun (“Ms. Lege”) Evergloss Beneficiary of a trust &
(Executive Director) beneficial owner

(Notes 1 & 3)

L e L) Long position

Hfat - Notes:

1. FE (Fiducia Suisse SAZ 2 EWB AT HERESE 1. The 8,850 shares in Evergloss were held by Likang, a wholly-

$£8,850/% J& {7 * Fiducia Suisse SA%&The Yuen Family
2014 TrustfyZ5EA * M The Yuen Family 2014 Trust%
RAFEUASFFLAIRAAREELLET (BRRE

ERBEAN) RRBRXBEARINBIEET-

2. HE (AP LEER2EER) FEREEIR7,6500%

Betn e

3. 9,150M% 1B i B 32 B {5 7 F & (Fiducia Suisse SAZ
= EMB AT )H4E8,8500 %15 »Fiducia Suisse SAE
The Yuen Family 2014 Trustf)52sE A > T2+ A% =
AEZHEAZ— BT 300 REEERMHBEELTIES

BEmlEA AR

owned subsidiary of Fiducia Suisse SA which is the trustee of The
Yuen Family 2014 Trust, which is a discretionary trust set up by
Mr. Yuen whose discretionary objects are Ms. Lee and Ms. Yuen
Ho Yee, wife and daughter of Mr. Yuen respectively and both an

associate of Mr. Yuen.

2. The 7,650 shares in Evergloss were held by Kwok Lai, which is

directly wholly-owned by Mr. Huen.

3. Out of the 9,150 shares in Evergloss, 8,850 shares were held by
Likang, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fiducia Suisse SA which is
the trustee of The Yuen Family 2014 Trust. Ms. Lee is one of the
beneficiaries of the trust. The remaining 300 shares in Evergloss

were held by Ms. Lee as the beneficial owner.

2018% # Annual Report 2018
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company, or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which had been recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO or which had been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, the persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

HEBITIRAE
BB
Approximate
Percentage of
the Issued

FERDAR

Total Number of

Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest Shares Held Share Capital
1 i & 12 ERBEAA 375,000,000 (L) 74.63
Evergloss Beneficial owner
Fiducia Suisse SA ZEEAN (B it1) 375,000,000 (L) 74.63
Trustee (Note 1)
HILL David Henry Christopher NEEGEE N ERS (M 72) 375,000,000 (L) 74.63
Interest of a controlled corporation
(Note 2)
HILL Rebecca Ann BB E e (A7423) 375,000,000 (L) 74.63
Interest of spouse (Note 3)
BEESEEQA EnEA A 29,826,000 (L) 5.93
Value Partners Limited Beneficial owner
BEEEARAA REEGEB e (A iF4) 29,826,000 (L) 5.93
Value Partners Group Limited Interest of a controlled corporation
(Note 4)
SESEREES EnEB A 30,134,000 (L) 5.99

Value Partners High-Dividend Stocks Fund

Beneficial owner

L) Long position

042 smEERAERLDT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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375,000,000 f& {7 (R IR RE E IR F5 - IR IE B 12 9 7l
£ %I B ~ Yohki Ryokoh Limited ([Yohki ] ) % Bl A& 49
26.70% }226.24% ° F| fE & Yohki¥J AFiducia Suisse
SAZ & Ad] Fiducia Suisse SAEMIBEEE R iEE
HE A BI()The Yuen Family 2014 Trust: A%
EESRNEZFFT L LR LRAREBELZ L (A
RAEEMNBEA) ARNBIZ R AR IORBEE: (i)
Happyyau Family Trust: £ 2588 % A AL 3= 7 M B &
A NREETRRE=AHBEIFZAZINBERE
%‘«Eo

Fiducia Suisse SAERHILL David Henry Christopher’t
A 8 B 375,000,0000% A& 15 A 1 25 -

HILL Rebecca AnnZ &= &HILL David Henry
Christopherst 4 B L 48 + 18 4 1% A& 72375,000,000% %
DR EER -

ZEHRAROABEESEERAFERESR MEE
A EEQARAMEREEERAREZERES R
RRZEARARERD PR EE -

B R EEIN R2018F12A31H - fiEHEM T E

R AL (EFRAR A H

BITRABBRIN RAR

A A7) S AR R A P 4 A (T () A 2l 3Ok ﬁﬁﬁ/,ﬁﬁ'ﬁf’

5 R ERE &P EXVELFE2 3D FAE S A A A

M

PR ER - RERHER AR ARIRE %%&H;EKWMEU%S%
GmEF B MATEHERE -

Notes:

375,000,000 Shares were held by Evergloss. Evergloss was owned
as to approximately 26.70% by Likang and 26.24% by Yohki
Ryokoh Limited (“Yohki”). Both Likang and Yohki are wholly owned
by Fiducia Suisse SA, which is the trustee of two discretionary
family trusts, namely () The Yuen Family 2014 Trust, which is a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. Yuen whose discretionary objects
are Ms. Lee and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, wife and daughter of Mr. Yuen
(i) Happyyau
Family Trust, which is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Yau Shui

respectively and both an associate of Mr. Yuen;

Fung whose discretionary objects are Ms. Li Siu King, wife and an
associate of Mr. Yau Shui Fung, and Tung Wah Group of Hospitals.

Fiducia Suisse SA was held by Mr. HILL David Henry Christopher
who has a deemed interest of 375,000,000 Shares.

Ms. HILL Rebecca Ann is a spouse of Mr. HILL David Henry
Christopher who has a deemed interest of 375,000,000 Shares.

Such number of shares were beneficially owned by Value Partners
Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Value Partners Group
Limited who has a deemed interest of such shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, there was no

other substantial shareholders or persons (other than the Directors

or chief executive of the Company) who had any interest or

short position in the shares or underlying shares in the Company

which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock

Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of

the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

2018% % Annual Report 2018 043
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the option as disclosed under the section headed
“Share Option Scheme” below, none of the Company, any of its
holding company, its subsidiaries and its fellow subsidiaries was
a party to any arrangements which would enable the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2018, the Directors were not aware of any

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

business or interest of the Directors and their respective close
associates that had competed or might compete with the business
of the Group and any other conflict of interests which any such
person had or might have with the Group.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Board on the basis of their performance, qualifications,
competence and job nature. The remuneration of the Directors is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and is decided
by the Board, having regard to the financial results of the Group,
individual performance and comparing with market conditions. The
Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive
arrangement for eligible employees.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the retirement scheme of the Group are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital is
held by the public under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation of
independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

GENERAL DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE
13.18 AND 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report, the
Group entered the following facility letters containing covenants
relating to specific performance obligations on the controlling
shareholder of the Company which were subject to announcement
disclosure under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules and requirements
of disclosure in this annual report under Rule 13.21 of the Listing
Rules, the details of which are set out below:

(i) On 11 May 2018, EGL Tours as borrower and the
Company, Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee,
each as guarantor or security provider, accepted the offer
from a bank for the grant of general banking facilities
(including two revolving loan facilities (the “Revolving Loan
Facilities”) and corporate credit cards (the “CCD”) in the
aggregate amounts of HK$70,600,000 (collectively, the “1st
Facilities”). The Revolving Loan Facilities have no fixed term
and are subject to periodic review of the bank and the CCD
is subject to the terms and conditions issued by the bank’s
card centre to EGL Tours.

20184 % Annual Report 2018 045
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Under the facility letter for the 1st Facilities, EGL Tours has

undertaken to the bank, among others, the following:

(a)

it shall ensure that Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung or
Ms. Lee any one shall remain chairman or director(s)
of EGL Tours and the Company and maintain control
over the management and business of the Group;

it shall ensure that Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung
or Ms. Lee, shall at all times collectively maintain,
directly or indirectly, not less than 45% beneficial
shareholding in the Group; and

the major operating account to be maintained in
the bank with new average bank balance of the
companies which includes EGL Tours, Great Port
(being a company controlled as to approximately
60.63% by Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms.
Lee collectively) and the Company of not less than
HK$50,000,000.

The bank shall have an unrestricted discretion to cancel or

suspend, or determine whether or not to permit drawings in

relation to the 1st Facilities. The 1st Facilities are subject to

review at any time and also subject to the bank’s overriding

right of repayment on demand including the right to call

for cash over on demand for prospective and contingent

liabilities.
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(i

On 9 October 2018, EGL Tours as borrower accepted
the facility letter (the “2nd Facility Letter”) issued by a
bank offering for the grant of general banking facilities
and foreign exchange facility in the aggregate amounts of
HK$48,300,000 (collectively, the “2nd Facilities”), the 2nd
Facility Letter of which was countersigned by the Company
as a guarantor.

Under the 2nd Facility Letter, EGL Tours has undertaken to
the bank, among others, the following:

(@) any of Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee
shall remain chairman or directors of EGL Tours and
maintain control over the management and business
of the Group; and

(b) Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee shall at
all times collectively maintain, directly or indirectly,
not less than 45% beneficial shareholding of EGL
Tours.

Pursuant to the 2nd Facility Letter, the bank has the
overriding right at any time to require EGL Tours to
immediately make payment and/or cash collateralisation of
all or any sums actually or contingently owing to the bank
under the 2nd Facilities.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO

The net proceeds from the IPO of the Company after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses were
approximately HK$115.8 million. The following table sets forth the

status of the use of proceeds from the IPO as at 31 December

2018:
HZE2018%F 20184
12A31H 12H31H
28 AIE REYAFKIE
Utilised up to  Unutilised as at
31 December 31 December
FRERIERR Use of Proceeds 2018 2018
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
() IERHERE ()  Enhancing sales channel
— W REBRENIT - Refurbishment and face lifting of
existing branches 9,145 55
—AE—E2EF~Eu - Development of a comprehensive online
web portal 17,400 -
(i BEHEHIEAREER (i)  Promoting brand image and recognition
PNGIESNE through market initiatives
-HRZINESREEEREN - Conducting marketing initiatives with focus
EIHEE on conventional media channels 9,300 -
-~ HEROERSEFLHE — Employing featured products or signature
REAHBEERE tours marketing campaigns with suitable
EIHEE spokespersons 8,100 -
—HEH A2 EN T2 — Launching reward and incentive scheme 9,844 1,656
(i) hNoR & 58 B AR i (i)  Strengthening operational infrastructure
—FBRETEEERTE — Improving management information system
ARUNEBTEEMER by implementing enterprise resources
planning system 13,900 -
—BLSBEHEMEREHE & - Arranging charter flights to destination not
b 2 BE B i served by scheduled flights 25,400 -
—REI R BELREENEE — Attracting and recruiting experienced
employees 5,800 -
(iv) ZRGINGIBEIRTT (iv) Developing overseas wedding tours 5,700 -
v) FEEEZES KREM—MR DA (v For working capital and other general
R corporate purposes 9,500 -
114,089 1,711

R2018F12A31H  RB A E X AHBEEMEREF
BEEABBEHMEBITHOBRITERE -

As at 31 December 2018, the unutilised IPO net proceeds were

deposited in interest-bearing bank accounts with licensed banks in

Hong Kong.
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FITEZRBRITEERRETERY FEITZBRG
HH  EEARERTEBANARDETRDZ30% °
AR 9 B AR AT B 3 AR 1 R BR AN 2 EL A B AR A AT I R Bk
B zEREMAIHBEIT CROHBEES T SHAR
BEEAARABEETKEEEHITROBB10% (ETF R
EBEERE (TERARQR A A2014F11 5186
MBI ETR) EITEM A e R B sk 31T 2 EMARG) -
B150,000,000/% f& 17 © Br JEE AR R RIIR R AR R A gt
A T RIPMEM21E B AR RIEERETEAZESE
BSBRERLERBETERSFHTRAUERTZ
BHBHETESBBRREAHEBRTROEE1% -

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders on 13 November
2014 which shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the date of listing of the shares of the Company (i.e. 28
November 2014), subject to early termination by the Company in a
general meeting or by the Board. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to provide incentives to Eligible Person (as defined
below) and is established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions the Eligible Person have had or may have made to
the Group. Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer
to grant an option to any employee, or any secondee, consultant,
agent, representative, adviser, customer, contractor of the Group
or any affiliates; or any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture
partner, supplier of goods or services to the Group or any affiliates
or any employee thereof (“Eligible Person”).

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time. The maximum number
of shares available for issue under options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme or other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue immediately following completion of the IPO
(but taking no account of any shares which may be allotted or
issued pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment option (as
defined in the prospectus of the Company dated 18 November
2014)), being 50,000,000 shares. The total number of shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to each
Eligible Person in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
number of shares in issue as at the date of grant unless approved
by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

20184 % Annual Report 2018 049
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050 =Z=E¥ERARAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined
by the Board provided that it shall not be less than the highest
of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option
is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of 10 years from that date. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted.

No option was granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018. No share
option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
Year under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 50,000,000 shares
representing approximately 9.95% of the issued share capital of
the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Details of the connected transactions (including the CCTs) entered
into by, and/or subsisted between, the Group and the connected
persons of the Company during the Year and which are not
exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules are set out
below:

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS SUBJECT TO ANNUAL REPORTING
AND ANNUAL REVIEW REQUIREMENTS

Certain CCTs in respect of the leasing to the Group (as tenant)
by Great Port (Note 1) as landlord for the occupation or use
of certain premises, car parking spaces and advertising area
subsisted during the Year (including Silver Fortune Plaza 2101-2
Lease Agreement 2017, EGL Tower Lease Agreement 2017,
EGL Tower 10B Lease Agreement 2017, Chevalier House Lease
Agreement 2017 and China Plaza Lease Agreements 2017, all of
which were defined below). As disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 30 October 2017, the aggregate annual cap
of the CCTs for the Year (“Annual Cap”) is HK$16,700,000. As
the highest applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules
in respect of the Annual Cap exceeded 0.1% but was less than
5%, the CCTs and the Annual Cap are therefore exempted from
the circular and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
but are still subject to the annual reporting and annual review
requirements under the Listing Rules. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 30 October 2017 for further
details.

Set out below are the details of the CCTs which are required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rules 14A.49 and 14A.71 of the Listing
Rules. Each of the rentals under the respective agreements was
determined based on arm’s length negotiations between the
parties and is fair and reasonable, on normal commercial terms
and comparable to and are on terms no less favorable than the
prevailing market rent as confirmed by an independent property
valuer engaged by the Group.

20184 Annual Report 2018 051
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2018F &5
F%  HEREE ANRBRERES ARERSH ANEE HERXZER X5 EH (B7)
Transaction ~ Counter Party, Consideration
Name, Date and Term of the Agreement  Party within  Nature and Description of for 2018
No. and Rental the Group the Transaction Transaction Purpose (HK$)
1 T EHFER2017F10 A0 % 4] B NEHRETHT RS NEERESTHER 815,520
([ B RE%2101-210 & 3k (20176 ))
BE PR BRI RH B ES21182101-2
MEHR :2017F 11 A1AE TREAERELN 6997 FREMWE
2019F12A31H
A 67,9607 T
Lease agreement signed on 30 October EGL Tours Property leased by Great Port to EGL Tours For using as a branch office
2017 (“Silver Fortune Plaza 2101-2 Lease
Agreement 2017”) The premises of a total gross floor area of
approximately 1,699 sq.ft. located at Units
Term: From 1 November 2017 to 2101-2, 21/F, Silver Fortune Plaza, No. 1
31 December 2019 Wellington Street, Central, Hong Kong
Monthly rental: HK$67,960
2 MERHR2017F10A308 57 R NEMABTHIREE AHE AR FELR 11,247,840
(IRBEESHERS (20174)]) AREEMERERS
EENEREESSRFEES()10BARC
MEHR : 2017511 A1H ZU K128 158 K162 BRBEEREY
Z2019%12A318 45,816 F HFIRA M : (i)21815 18F 2352
BEUHWE: RIMEEE
A7:987,320% 7
Lease agreement signed on 30 October EGL Tours Property leased by Great Port to EGL Tours For using as its head office,

2017 (‘EGL Tower Lease Agreement 20177

Term: From 1 November 2017 to
31 December 2019

Monthly rental: HK$937,320

052 =Z=EiERARAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

car park spaces and for
(i) the premises of a total gross floor area  rental of signage at external
of approximately 45,816 sq.ft. located at
Units A & C on 10/F, whole floors of 12/F,
15/F & 16/F; (i) the premises located at car
park nos. P15, P18 to P23 on 2/F; and (iii)

signage at external wall of EGL Tower, 83

wall for advertising

Hung To Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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20185 &%
R HEER BERBRRES AEERSFH ANHE HERIXZER X5EH (Br)
Transaction ~ Counter Party, Consideration
Name, Date and Term of the Agreement  Party within ~ Nature and Description of for 2018
No. and Rental the Group the Transaction Transaction Purpose (HKS)
3 THEWERN2017F10A30A %3] RRE NEBRETHTRERE DA A (2 35 552,000
([RHEREZ10BEE HZ (20176F)])
BB LR IE B3 R E510EBE R
HEMR 2017F11A1HE BEEEA2300F A ROME
2019F12A31H
A8 : 46,000/ 7T
Lease agreement signed on 30 October EGL Tours Property leased by Great Port to EGL Tours For using as its head office
2017 (“EGL Tower 10B Lease
Agreement 2017") The premises of a total gross floor area of
approximately 2,300 sq.ft. located at Unit
Term: From 1 November 2017 to B, 10/F, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road,
31 December 2019 Kowloon, Hong Kong
Monthly rental: HK$46,000
4 HEHZEN2017F10A30A 7] RRiE NEMAETHTREE UHEBERERRATH 2,062,584
([E+XERERZ (20174)]) £
ERNBARRERSSIFETAESED
TEHR 2017F11 818 % 2°3 4 56FREEEELG3066TF IR
2019%12A318 GIEVES
AT 171,882% T
Lease agreement signed on 30 October EGL Tours Property leased by Great Port to EGL Tours For using as a tea party
2017 (“Chevalier House Lease room and the branch
Agreement 2017”) The premises of a total gross floor area of  office
approximately 6,366 sq.ft. located at Units
Term: From 1 November 2017 to nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6, 5/F, Chevalier
31 December 2019 House, 45-51 Chatham Road South,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
Monthly rental: HK$171,882
20185 %R Annual Report 2018 053
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2018F &5
F%  HEREE ANRBRERES ARERSH ANEE HERXZER X5 EH (B7)
Transaction ~ Counter Party, Consideration
Name, Date and Term of the Agreement  Party within  Nature and Description of for 2018
No. and Rental the Group the Transaction Transaction Purpose (HK$)
5 MO EHER2017F10A308 & T RBBERTHE DERARETETRRERTH ORF) NEERERMBEERR 1,950,684
(G [hERSHEERZ (20175)]) (&=F) AR AT BEREERO
BREAT
EHREHR 2017511 A1AE RPIAEH IOt K B R2-6B5%E A2 A 5 730-
2019F12A31H 8045 () 10EMENE L2 EEE 44,460
FHROME (i TBEHEERERD
@AM 167,757 BT 1,159 77 RE M %
Two lease agreements signed on EGL Tours Property leased by Great Port to EGL Tours For using as the Macau
30 October 2017 (Collectively, the “China (Macau) (Macau) Company Limited office and call centre
Plaza Lease Agreements 2017”) Company
Limited

From
1 November 2017 to
31 December 2019

Term for each lease:

Aggregate monthly rental: MOP167,757

W1 REOTRA—FHEERTESFRAL Tt BEL
R R 54 5 B #926.70% 0.90% * 23.08% 52.9.95%
PR DR - ST E FH RS A E 1T4960.63%M K
R R RELTRAAETRAVTESOBRE
A°

LRBERERHE NG E MK M E35()() 8 &

RGP IXNTHRERGRZEE-RETIARE-

054 =H=EiERAR~AT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

(i) the premises of a total gross floor area of
approximately 4,460 sq.ft. located at Units
M &N, 10/F, and (i) the premises of a total
gross floor area of approximately 1,159
sq.ft. located at Shop B, G/F, Nos. 730-
804 Avenida da Praia Grande, Nos. 2-6B
Avenida de D Joao IV, Macau

Note 1: Great Port is a company owned by Mr. Yuen as to approximately

26.70%, Ms. Lee as to approximately 0.90%, Mr. Huen as to

approximately 23.08%, Mr. Leung as to approximately 9.95%,

being all of the Executive Directors. The Executive Directors

together controlled approximately 60.63% voting power of Great

Port, and therefore Great Port is an associate of the Executive

Directors under the Listing Rules.

The above CCTs are included in “Rental paid to a related company

— Great Port” in the related party transactions disclosed in note

35(a)(i) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Save as disclosed above, no other related party transactions
conducted in the Year as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction which is required to be disclosed
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above,
no transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding
company or any of their respective subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or an entity connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, (i) no contract of significance was
entered into by, and/or subsisted between, the Company or
any of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (i) there is no contract
of significance in relation to the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above CCTs entered into by the Group and have confirmed that
these CCTs were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to
or from independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s external auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s CCTs in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”,
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The external auditor issued its unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
transactions disclosed in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Details of the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 57 to 72 of this annual
report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Details of significant event of the Group after the reporting date are
set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at
the 2019 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 22 March 2019




EEERER
ARBRACEERAELFEHENER M - ARAR
HAOZEHEKFOEEERRE TEBAURNEEE
AREFREAEERBSEFNEERACELR -

RAFE EFERRARECEM LTRAME145
2 EERTR 2RI BT FAEM ST AR

EENHEHRH

AR FE R LR A 10T B B Al A R
BAREFETEFRINTATA - EREEELA
BEH PREERARENAFEEAMHERGEE
ST B A B 0 AR

EEEMNREREERE

EFERAARMEROEE 3 REWRE LB
BRUBRR EFEETEREAEAKEARE R
REEFEOESN -

IR RATHAR
RIBEEEIATRMTRMEXEA2.116 EFHEITHR
RENBERARED  WAEHE— ARKRE - RAF
B ETEBRERRXRELET MARRITRAER —
BRIz EFefBETRRIAEEEEERAR
B HYed AEEENHE NERERHAE AR
A 2 38 B R 1 th & A DASR Rl AR B AL

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report
of the Company for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed in
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading
the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate image
with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the Year, the Board is of opinion that the Company has
applied the principles and complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership, guidance and strategic decisions
to the Group’s activities and oversees its financial performances.
The Board has delegated its powers to the management for the
Group’s daily management and operations.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. During the Year,
the role of the Chairman is performed by Mr. Yuen Man Ying while
the office of the chief executive officer of the Company is vacated.
The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of the Group’s
management from time to time and should candidate with suitable
knowledge, skills and experience be identified, the Company will
make appointment to fill the post as appropriate.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises four Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. At least
one of the Independent Non-executive Directors possesses the
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise, which complies with the requirements of
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. During the Year, the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors represents more than one-
third of the Board. As such, there exists a strong independent
element in the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement. The Board comprises the following Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

Mr. Yuen Man Ying, the Chairman and Executive Director, is
the spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun, an Executive Director. All of the
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok
Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun, are interested
in the Company’s shares through their interest in Evergloss, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. All of the Executive
Directors have interests in the shares of Great Port, which has
certain transactions with the Group which constituted CCTs.
Please refer to the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management”, “Report of the Directors — Directors’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” and
“Report of the Directors — Connected Transactions and Directors’
Interests in Contracts” on pages 73 to 76 and pages 40 to 42 and
pages 51 to 55 of this annual report respectively for more details.
Save as disclosed above, the Directors have no other financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with one

another.
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INDEPENDENCE OF
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-

INDEPENDENT NON-

executive Directors an annual written confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to the relevant guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL

professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. During the Year, each of the
Directors (namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen,
Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun, Mr. Chan Kim Fai,
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming) has participated
in appropriate continuous professional development activities
by ways of attending trainings, reading materials or conducting
academic research relevant to (i) the Company’s business
operation; (i) directors’ duties and responsibilities; and (i) the
Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has renewed his/her service
agreement with the Company on 20 November 2017 for a term
of three years commencing from 28 November 2017. Each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has renewed his/her letter
of appointment on 20 November 2017 for a term of three years
commencing from 28 November 2017.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors are governed by the Articles of
Association. The Articles of Association provides that any director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at each AGM, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least once every
3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Any
Director who has not been subject to retirement by rotation in
the three years preceding an AGM shall retire by rotation at such
meeting. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
and so that as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

Accordingly, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen and
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric shall retire at the 2019 AGM. All of the
retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the same meeting.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board
should meet regularly and board meetings should be held at least
four times a year.
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If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
Director shall abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions and
he/she shall not be counted as a quorum in the Board meeting
discussing the matter concerned.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS

Set out below are details of the attendance record of each Director
at the Board meetings, committee meetings and general meetings
of the Company held during the Year:

HE/ BAE3ENH
Attendance/Number of Meetings Held
= BRER =4 3]
BRRBERE Ezeen ZE®EE ZE®EE ZEgez ZE8E;
Risk
Annual Audit  Management Nomination ~ Remuneration
General Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
HITEF Executive Directors
EXERE Mr. Yuen Man Ying 1/1 5/5 - - 11 2/2
BE2EE Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen N 5/5 - - - -
R EEE Mr. Leung Shing Chiu 1/ 5/5 - 2/2 - -
ERut Ms. Lee Po Fun il 5/5 - - il 2/2
BUHNTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
BRiRIESL £ Mr. Chan Kim Fai il 5/5 3/3 2/2 il 2/2
Rolb it Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric 11 5/5 3/3 2/2 11 2/2
EBHRL Ms. Wong Lai Ming 11 5/5 3/3 2/2 11 2/2
REBFXE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ARABRERBEFRES ANQREEEHERRETER
MEZFE - ANRRHKIAHAMREAF KNS R20184F5
BA25HE77 ([2018FREAFARE]) -

Ro018FRRBFAE L RASHBAEANEET
F(DRESEIRNESZEENMBEIRELKE)
ERRAEERERINEZEAHEE LB XS 712018
FREBAFARG L BEEEHUEANRAZRRED I
IEEFRETRR - KERRER AN FEFRET
BERROERF -

BREGREN AR A LB -

The AGM of the Company is an important forum in which the
management of the Company can engage with the Shareholders.
The most recent AGM of the Company was held on 25 May 2018
(2018 AGM").

At the 2018 AGM, all Directors in office on the meeting date,
including the Chairman of the Board and all the chairmen and
members of the Board Committees, attended the meeting along
with senior management and the external auditor. At the 2018
AGM, separate resolutions were proposed for each issue and
were voted on by poll. The procedures for conducting a poll were
explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken.

The voting results are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. All the Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available to Shareholders on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board Committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 13 November 2014
with specific written terms of reference in accordance with
the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises a total of three members, all being Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim Fai (Chairman), Mr. Tang
Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, (i) reviewing financial information of the Group; (i)
monitoring of the relationship between the Group and its external
auditors; (i) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems; and (iv) developing
and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance
with legal and regulatory requirements and requirements under the
Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year. During
the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the internal control
systems, the Company’s CCTs, the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, the Company’s results and consolidated financial
statements and to make recommendations to the Board on the re-
appointment of auditor and approval of the engagement letter of
the auditor.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to perform
the corporate governance function. The responsibilities of the
Audit Committee on corporate governance function are set out in
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. During the Year, the
Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management and
the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on
13 November 2014 with specific written terms of reference. The
Risk Management Committee comprises a total of four members,
being one Executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim
Fai (Chairman), Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
include reviewing the Company’s enterprise risk management
framework, and the guidelines, policies and procedures for risk
assessment and risk management and reviewing the effectiveness
of the risk management function.

The Risk Management Committee held two meetings during the
Year. During the Year, the Risk Management Committee reviewed
the internal control of the Group and reviewed the Company’s
high-level related risks and key emerging risks and the controls
in place to mitigate such risks, reviewed the Company’s surplus
cash management, and provide recommendation to improve the
Company’s surplus cash management for the Year for submission
to the Board for approval.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 13 November
2014 with specific written terms of reference in accordance with
the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
comprises a total of five members, being two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman) and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Kim Fai, Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board, making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year.
During the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity) of the Board, assessed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, recommended to the Board
on the re-election of all retiring Directors at the 2019 AGM and
reviewed the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee.

As the nomination policy of the Company, the Nomination
Committee will (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of
the Board at least annually based on objective criteria with
due regard to the benefits of diversity as set out in the Board’s
diversity policy and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy; (b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; and (c)
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the managing director (if applicable).
Please refer to the sub-section headed “Board Diversity Policy” of
this report for details of the Board’s policy on board diversity.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 13 November
2014 with specific written terms of reference in accordance
with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee comprises a total of five members, being two Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim
Fai, Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric (Chairman) and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
the Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a set of formal and transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy; (ii) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the Executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the
Year. During the Year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
the remuneration package of the individual Executive Directors
and senior management as well as reviewed the remuneration of
Independent Non-executive Directors for submission to the Board
for approval.

REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the senior management of the Company
then in office by band for the Year are as follows:

AE

Number of

7 B 48 731 Remuneration band individuals
Z %1,000,0007 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1
1,000,001 JT 2,000,000/ T HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has established a board diversity policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. Diversity of Board
members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All the Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun has
provided annual confirmations in respect of the compliance with
non-competition undertakings (the “Undertakings”) given by them
in favour of the Company pursuant to a deed of non-competition
undertakings dated 13 November 2014. The Independent Non-
executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance by each
of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun with the
Undertakings during the Year. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there
is no breach by any of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man
Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee
Po Fun of the Undertakings given by them.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the remunerations paid or payable to the external
auditor in respect of its audit services and non-audit services
provided to the Group were approximately HK$2.2 million and
approximately HK$0.6 million, respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the
Year. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 77 to 83 of this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board recognises that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems play a key role in the identification,
evaluation and management of risks faced by the Group, the
assurance of continued compliance with laws and regulations
by the Group, and the provision of reasonable assurance on
the Group against material misstatement, error, loss or fraud.
The Board appreciates that the Group is exposed to risks in
achieving its business objectives and strives to maintain such
risks at acceptable level through the design, implementation
and monitoring of effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are established
within the Company and its subsidiaries for facilitating effective
and efficient operations, for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use, for maintaining proper accounting records, for
ensuring the reliability of financial reporting and information, and
for ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
These systems are designed to meet the Group’s particular
needs and to minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed,
and are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks
to achieve business objectives and by their nature, can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatements or losses.
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The key elements of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems include the assessment and evaluation
of risks, the development and continuous updating of responsive
procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control procedures
to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is also adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that
affect the achievements of its objectives.

During the Year, the Board, through the Risk Management
Committee, reviewed the continued effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems covering all material
aspect of controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The review covered the following areas:

- foreign exchange risk management
- surplus cash management

During the Year, the Company also engaged an independent
professional consultant to conduct an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The review covered the following items within the Group:

hotel management
- procurement, accounts payable and payment
- human resources and payroll

Relevant applicable recommendations made by the consultant
during the Year have already been implemented in stages by the
Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures
and practices.

As a result of the above review, the Board is satisfied that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
adequate and effective and have complied with the CG Code
provisions on internal control throughout the Year and the
Company has an internal audit function.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Group
conducts its affairs with close attention to the inside information
provisions under the SFO and the Listing Rules. The Directors and
senior management are responsible for determining whether any
particular information is inside information and overseeing and
coordinating disclosure of inside information of the Group. They
are also responsible for taking reasonable measures to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group from time to time and that
disclosures are made and/or announcements are published
on a timely basis in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations, and before such information is fully disclosed to the
public, they shall ensure the same is kept strictly confidential. The
Directors are also committed to ensure that information contained
in announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact,
or false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in
view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may propose or declare the payment of dividends
after taking into account, among other things, the results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition, operating and
capital requirements, the amount of distributable profits, reserves
available for distribution based on HKFRSs, the Articles of
Association, applicable laws and regulations (including the laws
of Cayman Islands) and other factors which the Directors deem

relevant.
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The Company currently, subject to the factors and considerations
above, pay annual dividends of not less than 50% of the Group’s
consolidated profit attributable to the Shareholders. Any dividends
declared will be in Hong Kong dollars with respect to the Shares
on a per Share basis, and the Company will pay such dividends
in Hong Kong dollars. Other distributions, if any, will be paid to
the Shareholders by any means which the Directors consider
legal, fair and practicable. Any distributable profits that are not
distributed in any given year may be retained and be made
available for distribution in subsequent years. To the extent profits
are distributed as dividends, such portion of profits will not be
available for reinvestment in the Group’s operations.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The role of the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) is performed by Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy. The
Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is responsible
for facilitating the Board’s processes and communications among
Board members, with Shareholders and with management.
The Company Secretary received at least 15 hours of relevant
professional training to update her skills and knowledge during the
Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communications between the Shareholders and the Board.
An AGM shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, an EGM
shall be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong, which is presently situated
at 15/F, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such

requisition and signed by the requisitionist(s).

meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles
of Association for putting forward a resolution at an EGM. The
requirements and procedures are set out above in the paragraph
headed “Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting”.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

No amendment has been made to the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.

On behalf of the Board

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (“Mr. Yuen”), aged 67, is the founder of the
Group and was appointed as the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company on 24 July 2014. Mr. Yuen initiated
the set up of the Group in 1987. He is also the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Board. Mr. Yuen serves as the managing director
of EGL Tours and as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Management
Group Company Limited (“EGL Management”), i-Evertravel
Company Limited (“i-Evertravel”), EGL Tours (Macau) Company
Limited (“EGL Macau”), EGL Tours (Japan) Company Limited
(‘EGL Japan”), EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited (“EGL Nippon”),
EGL Holdings (Asia) Limited (“EGL Asia”), EGL Investment
Group Company Limited (“EGL Investment”), EGL Investment
(China) Company Limited (“EGL China”) and other subsidiaries
of the Company. He is also a director of Evergloss, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. He is responsible for major decision
making of the Group, overseeing tours and hotel operation
development, promoting the Japanese market, itinerary planning
for tours to Japan, supervising and training tour escorts and
planning air charter of the Group. Mr. Yuen has over 30 years of
extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism industry. Mr.
Yuen is the spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun, an Executive Director.

Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen (“Mr. Huen”), aged 61, was appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company on 24 July 2014. Mr. Huen
joined the Group in 1987. Mr. Huen also serves as a director of
EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL Macau, EGL
Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment, EGL China
and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of
Evergloss, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Huen
is the spokesman of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing
development of the Group, public relations, specialised gourmet
tours, hotel operation and the subsidiaries of the Company in
Macau and Shenzhen respectively. Mr. Huen has over 30 years of
extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism industry.
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Mr. Leung Shing Chiu (“Mr. Leung”), aged 64, was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 24 July 2014. He
is also a member of the Risk Management Committee of the
Board. Mr. Leung joined the Group in 1988. Mr. Leung serves
as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL
Macau, EGL Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment,
EGL China and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a
director of Evergloss, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
He is responsible for managing the receiving services for outbound
tours in Japan, frontline sales, customer services, accounting and
administration matters of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 30 years
of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism industry.

Ms. Lee Po Fun (“Mrs. Yuen”), aged 60, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 24 July 2014. She is also
the member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Board. Mrs. Yuen joined the Group in 1987.
She is also serves as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Management,
i-Evertravel, EGL Macau, EGL Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL
Investment, EGL China and other subsidiaries of the Company.
She is also a director of Evergloss, a substantial shareholder of
the Company. She is responsible for overseeing the information
technology department, human resources development and the
overall tour operations of the Group. Mrs. Yuen has over 30 years
of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism industry.
Mrs. Yuen is the spouse of Mr. Yuen Man Ying, the Chairman and
an Executive Director of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai (“Mr. Chan”), aged 60, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 13 November 2014. He is also the chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Committee of the
Board and a member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Board. He is responsible for
overseeing the management of the Group independently. Mr. Chan
is currently an independent non-executive director of Magnificent
Hotel Investments Limited (stock code: 201), Shun Ho Property
Investments Limited (stock code: 219) and Shun Ho Holdings
Limited (stock code: 253) (all these three companies are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr. Chan has also
served as the sole proprietor of lvan Chan & Co, CPA since 2001.
Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and CPA Australia.

Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric (“Mr. Tang”), aged 73, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
13 November 2014. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Board and a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Risk Management Committee of
the Board. He is responsible for overseeing the management
of the Group independently. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of ASM Pacific Technology Limited (stock
code: 522), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Tang was qualified as a Chartered Accountant in
Canada and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Ms. Wong Lai Ming (“Ms. Wong”), aged 59, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 18 November 2014. She is also a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Risk Management Committee of the Board. She is responsible
for overseeing the management of the Group independently.
Ms. Wong has over 23 years of experience in the legal industry.
She is currently Of Counsel of King & Wood Mallesons, Beijing
office. Ms. Wong is a practicing lawyer in the PRC and is a non-
practicing solicitor in Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon (“Mr. Cheang”), aged 54, was appointed
as the financial controller of the Group on 1 April 2004. He is
responsible for supervision and management of the Group’s
financial issues. He joined the Group in June 2001 as a finance
manager before being promoted as the financial controller of EGL
Tours in April 2004. Mr. Cheang has over 25 years of extensive
accounting and financial experience, in which 10 years in another
public listed company (whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange), with latest position as accounting
manager. Mr. Cheang graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor degree in social sciences in November 1988 and
later obtained a master degree of science in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2001. Mr. Cheang
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a Certified Finance and Treasury
Professional Senior of the Finance and Treasury Association
Limited.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy (“Ms. Wong”), aged 57, was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on
28 August 2014. She is responsible for the company secretarial
matters of the Group. Ms. Wong has been the company secretary
of EGL Tours since September 2006, being responsible for its
general company secretarial affairs. Ms. Wong has over 30 years
of experience in the accounting, audit and tax industry. Ms. Wong
received a diploma in accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan
College in July 1984 and a bachelor of law degree from Peking
University through long distance learning in July 1996. Ms. Wong
is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EGL
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 221, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Revenue recognition and associated contract liabilities

(refer to notes 4(j) on the significant accounting policies, 7 and 24
to the consolidated financial statements)

The Group’s travel and travel related services business (“Travel
Related Business”) includes the following revenue streams with
different revenue recognition basis.

The Group’s revenue from provision of package tours and travel
bus services is recognised over time in which the control of
services are transferred to the customer because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as it performs.

Revenue from provision of ancillary travel related products and
services, sales of air tickets, hotel accommodation and hotel
packages is recognised at a point in time when the booking
services or tickets are delivered to and have been accepted by
the customers. The Group is the agent in these transactions and
the revenue is recognised on a net basis. Where the Group acts
as a principal in certain transactions, including sales of tickets
and merchandise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the control of the products is transferred to the customers, being
when the goods are sold to the customers, there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customers’ acceptance of the
goods, the customers have obtained the physical possession or
the legal title of the goods and the Group has present right to
payment.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuea)

Revenue recognition and associated contract liabilities
(Continued)

During the year, the Group recorded revenue derived from the
above travel related services provided and products sold of
approximately HK$1,709,390,000 (2017: HK$1,622,004,000). As
at 31 December 2018, the Group had customer deposits received
from Travel Related Business of approximately HK$141,842,000
which are recognised as contract liabilities. The corresponding
amount of HK$126,350,000 for last year has been reclassified
as contract liabilities as of 1 January 2018 upon the adoption of
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customer”.

We have identified revenue recognition for the Travel Related
Business as a key audit matter because revenue is one of the
key performance indicators of the Group and because it involves
highly customised information technology systems to record the
transactions and certain manual procedures to determine the
appropriate recognition point, all of which give rise to an inherent
risk that revenue could be recorded in the incorrect period or could
be subject to manipulation.

In addition, inappropriate recognition of revenue could result in
misstatement of the contract liabilities received as recorded at the
reporting date.

Our Response

Our procedures in relation to this key audit matter included:

o Performing review of overall information technology general
controls and application controls;

° Performing test of controls and substantive testing on
revenue cycle;

o Conducting analytical procedures on revenue;

o Scrutinising manual journals related to revenue to assess the
timing of revenues recorded; and

o Testing on sampling basis on the customer deposits
received as at the reporting date by tracing the receipts to
the supporting documents and reviewing the recognition of
revenue in the subsequent reporting period in accordance
with the respective recognition policies of the respective
services provided or products sold.

201843 Annual Report 2018 079



BN [/ 75 & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 1% BRI S
Independent Auditor’'s Report

FHRPZHMER

ERRUHMENAZRE - EMERNBE SQRAF
BAAEMER  ETBIRRA M B RE MR M= BE
HE -

BMESAMBHRRIELNBERY TREREMBER
MmEFITRA & H H A E R B R TR AL EER

RRMBZEAMBRRE  RANEERMELME
B tmZEEEMERNRE RGP BERRIBLFANE
TRERTMEZNENFEEANTRARFEEAN
SRR - ERBFIEETH T WRMARSZEM
EREEERERRL RABBREXFE -FLL - 3
PIst BB R E G 2 =R -

EENGAMBRRAEREZER

EXFRERBEBLESQTMRASEENN (BFBMBR
FEAD) REFE (RBGRD) HEEER REREEM
RN RREEGEA M B REK  RAEERERRLENRA
BRERIT  IAEAR B MR 2 BN 7 A N IRGF Sl R
AR B B A RRER AL

B EMBRRE EFAAENE EEEFEL
LW UHEERABATHRREESELLEEHNE
H-BRHEFEER EREBBRAFILEE KR
ZIMREEAL ) B RITTEOINE - BRIBERAMSELE
REWHNEE-

EENAREEE BERENMBEHRSARE ERZER
EHHBEERTEE ESEVHRERRIEL

080 =misERBERAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control;

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control;

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;

20184 %% Annual Report 2018 081
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern;

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Hung Yun, Andrew

Practising Certificate Number P04092

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
H E2018F12 31 H IE FE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
g2 FTET FHT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
L§ Revenue 7 1,776,614 1,624,584
& AR Cost of sales (1,461,325) (1,332,817)
ER Gross profit 315,289 291,767
H A R a5 5 Other income and gain, net 7 9,590 14,096
HEMX Selling expenses (86,413) (98,224)
TIBA 2 Administrative expenses (204,690) (167,760)
FE{R B E N R ELE Share of results of associates 3,081 2,148
RERE R A Z EmRE Impairment on interest in an associate 16 - (3,839)
BhE K AR Finance costs 8 (3,913) (370)
BR P45 B¢ A& Al Profit before income tax 8 32,944 37,818
FEgEiEe,/ (FAX) Income tax credit/(expense) 9 2,120 (9,314)
FERA Profit for the year 35,064 28,504
HBnEHosr EEZ85MN Other comprehensive income, that
Hib 2wl : may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
BMEBINEEHIE N ZFE Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations 2,974 5,929
FEGIRE B INGE & A T HY Share of exchange differences on

& X =& translation of foreign associates (325) 921
ReEnEH P 2ITE Effect on cash flow hedge, net of tax

MR8 (2,055) =
FEHEMEARRKE Other comprehensive income for the year,

IRk 18 net of tax 594 6,850
FEHWEHEE Total comprehensive income for the year 35,658 35,354
UTATEEFEERF: Profit for the year attributable to:

ZIN/NEIE7Z =N Owners of the Company 34,817 28,559
FEFE IR HE o Non-controlling interests 247 (55)
35,064 28,504

084 =misERERAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



meBm MEMEE W SR
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
EHZ=2018F12 A31H IF FZ For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Bt it FH& T T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

DT ALHEEZENEEEE: Total comprehensive income

attributable to:
ViN/NEIETZ N Owners of the Company 35,523 35,132
FE5E AR 5 Non-controlling interests 135 222
35,658 35,354
RAREE AELER 2 Earnings per share for profit attributable

SREF to owners of the Company

—EARREE (B - Basic and diluted (HK cents) 10 6.93 5.68

20184 %% Annual Report 2018 085
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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M2018F12831H As at 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Viokz3 FHET FAET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
IERBEE Non-current assets
Wz - B KEE Property, plant and equipment 14 440,994 387,472
rEIR Construction in progress 15 32,782 4,578
AL El/NEIE Interests in associates 16 10,611 9,242
RERRIBEE Deferred tax assets 17 8,301 1,528
A SEENES Deposits and prepayment 20 2,669 6,657
495,357 409,477
REEE Current assets
rE Inventories 18 4,273 9,906
B 5 el ER Trade receivables 19 10,079 4,296
e TENZ R EMEIWE  Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 20 162,115 128,411
JE U Bt 28 N B BR 3K Amount due from an associate 16(c) 2,348 562
AT Y 5] F 18 Tax recoverable 1,994 55
HIRIRITFR Pledged bank deposits 21 6,307 29,583
RITTFERREFRE Cash at banks and on hand 21 230,003 263,370
417,119 436,183
nBEE Current liabilities
g SRR Trade payables 22 58,749 53,152
FEETHRIE - EWET & & Accruals, deposits received and
H fth fE AT BR other payables 23 64,140 187,536
EHARE Contract liabilities 24 150,215 —
FEASTBSE 28 A B BR 3K Amounts due to associates 16(c) 3,900 3,478
THIERE R Provision for taxation 3,175 6,344
RITENR Bank borrowings 25 34,836 19,690
315,015 270,200
REBEEFE Net current assets 102,104 165,983
HEERABER Total assets less current liabilities 597,461 575,460

086 F=misERARAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
2018412 A31H As at 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Bt FET FAT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
B Provision 26 779 =
RITREK Bank borrowings 25 234,802 231,241
BEEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 17 1,674 5,258
MTESmMIA Derivative financial instruments 27 2,055 =
239,310 236,499
EEFHE Net assets 358,151 338,961
Ex EQUITY
ARAREE A Capital and reserves attributable to
BihERK A owners of the Company
[N Share capital 28 50,245 50,245
s Reserves 29 304,770 285,909
355,015 336,154
IR ER Non-controlling interests 34 3,136 2,807
e AR Total equity 358,151 338,961
REE=S On behalf of the Board of Directors
RNHE 2 &
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
HWITES HWITES

Executive Director

Executive Director
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Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

H E2018F12 31 H IE FE For the year ended 31 December 2018

consolidated statement of financial position.

088 =misiRBERAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

KARERAELL
Attributable to owners of the Company
Ba  ROEE SO0EE EERE SHERE MRS REEAN @it kEREz  BER8E
Foreign Non-
Share Share Merger ~ Statutory exchange  Hedging  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  earnings® Total interests equity
TiEx TiEx Tir T Tix TiEn TR T Tix Ti#n
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2017512A318 K At 31 December 2017 and 1
2018F1R818 January 2018, as originally
BREZ5 presented 50,245 145,335 (58,214) 975 251 - 197,562 336,154 2,807 338,961
MBRERABHHBRE  Initial application of HKFRS 15
B ZE155 = - - = - - (6,613) (6,613) - (6,613)
W2018F1A1AKEN 2 Restated balances at 1 January 2018
s 50,245 145,335 (58,214) 975 251 - 190,949 329,541 2,807 332,348
FRER Profit for the year - - - - - - 34,817 34,817 247 35,064
Rt 2HY % Other comprehensive income
BERINEBMERZE  Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - - 3,086 - - 3,086 (112) 2,974
[EEHREGINEEDFH  Share of exchange differences on
Ei=E translation of foreign associates - - - - (325) - - (325) - (325)
Rengdnzy e Effect on cash flow hedge, net of tax
MEHE - - - - - (2,055) - (2,055) - (2,055)
FERANGAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 2,761 (2,055) 34,817 35,523 135 35,658
N Appropriation - - - 70 - - (70) - - -
FERERTE Capital injection from
non-controlling interests = - - = = - - = 194 194
BERRE (HE11) Dividends paid (note 11) - - - - - - (10,049) (10,049) - (10,049)
#2018512831A At 31 December 2018 50,245 145,335 (58,214) 1,045 3,012 (2,055) 215,647 355,015 3,136 358,151
®2017F1A1H At 1 January 2017 50,245 145,335 (68,214) 872 (6,322) - 189,204 321,120 2,585 323,705
FERF Profit for the year - - - - - - 28,559 28,559 (55) 28,604
Bt 2HY Other comprehensive income
BEENEBHERZE  Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - - 5,662 - - 5,662 217 5,929
EEREEIMNEER Share of exchange difference on
ERER translation of foreign associates - - - - 921 - - 921 - 921
FERENEAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 6,573 - 28,559 35,132 222 35,354
s Appropriation - - - 103 - - (103) - - -
RS (A1) Dividends paid (note 11) - - - - - - (20,098 (20,098) - (20,098)
®20175128318 At 31 December 2017 50,245 145,335 (68,214) 975 251 - 197,562 336,154 2,807 338,961
o SEEBEBAESMBIRAETIS [FEE] - * The total of these accounts represents “Reserves” in the
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EH Z=20185F 12 A31H IE FZ For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
FH& T FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
RETBHEENEERE Cash flows from operating activities
Bk BT 15 %5 B 4 Al Profit before income tax 32,944 37,818
R Adjustments for:
M- EMEEITE Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 41,370 14,959
B & A AR Finance costs 3,913 370
REE & N A 2 #2252 M EETIE Impairment loss on interest in an associate = 3,839
FLEWA Interest income (358) (1,185)
HEME  BEREE Loss on disposal of property, plant
BT R and equipment, net - 943
JEAGE & N Rl A Share of results of associates (3,081) (2,148)
LEESEHAIMEEN T  Operating profit before working
capital changes 74,788 54,596
FER D Decrease in inventories 5,642 6,326
B 5 e UARIE N Increase in trade receivables (5,638) (2,072)
sle AN EEMEWEE  Increase in deposits, prepayments and
o other receivables (30,797) (6,091)
JRE U5 8 25 X ) BR FRE 0 Increase in amount due from a
related company - (115)
JiE W BgE i /1 | BR 3K (Increase)/decrease in amount due from
(38 hn) k> an associate (1,786) 4,141
Z 5 M BRIZ N Increase in trade payables 5,619 4,932
JEAt B N b BRI AN Increase in accruals and other payables 3,645 8,492
BHABEM, ORd) Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities
(2017F  BEWEFEI &) (2017: customer deposits received) 15,078 (9,764)
JE TS A B BR 3K Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to
#am Crd) associates 422 (1,421)
EBEEANES Cash generated from operations 66,973 59,024
BT ATE Income tax paid (11,925) (12,134)
AL T EL R S FRE Net cash generated from operating activities 55,048 46,890
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Consolldated Statement of Cash Flows
H E2018F12A31H [EFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
g2 FTET FHT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
RETBHEENREEARE Cash flows from investing activities
BEME WEK&E Purchase of property, plant and equipment (80,064) (36,097)
LEWE  BE REED Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
Fr 1S 38 and equipment - 241
TRHEEZIER Payment for construction in progress (28,126) (175,943)
EIIRITIFERUR D (1) Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 23,248 (7,122)
BRHB A=A LH Decrease in fixed deposits with
EBEFEFUR A original maturity over three months = 9,463
REEE R R M A LB )£ & ZE Capital injection into an associate
iR l/NE]| upon its incorporation - (594)
B U B & R R A% B Dividend received from an associate 1,387 =
2 W F B Interest received 392 1,251
RE LB TR 2 FEE Net cash used in investing activities (83,163) (208,801)
METHEENRESARE Cash flows from financing activities
B E Dividends paid (10,049) (20,098)
RTT 8 RPT1S FIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 239,377 199,968
EEBRITER Repayment of bank borrowings (228,525) (2,192)
EAFE Interest paid (3,308) (1,148)
FE T2 I e i?Tl ‘& Capital injection from non-controlling interest 194 =
BIETE (FTH) E4E)  Netcash (used in)/generated from
B FEE financing activities (2,311) 176,530
iﬁ%&ﬁ% ZEY Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
W) G nFEEE cash equivalents (30,426) 14,619
HNEETE R B 5 & Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (2,941) (2,662)
FHNRERASZEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 263,370 251,413
FRASREBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 21 230,003 263,370

090 =@misERBERAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EH Z=20185F 12 A31H IE FZ For the year ended 31 December 2018

1.

— &

RBEERAERAR ([RREF])R2014F7 A24
HERSHESEMX Y AERE2EREEAA -
AR B EE S BRI 45 Clifton House, 75 Fort
Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman lIslands o H £ B & B R E S JLEE
BR U2 76 Bl {8835 S 12 [E 151518 o

RATHIRNDN2014F11 A28ANEBAHME X 5
FrERAR ([BXAT])ER M-

ARAMEBXHA/REER  EWB AR E
EXBENGFE M BERKRMIEESS -

ARARNERENGEER AR RRKEEREES
RAR (MBRER])  —FKREBARRTSE
gD AVA: PN

HZE2018F12A31B L FEMNGZEE M BRER
20193 A22HEE =S RZ I -

1.

GENERAL

EGL Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 24 July 2014 as
an exempted company with limited liability. The address
of its registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. Its
principal place of business is located at 15/F, EGL Tower, 83
Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 28 November 2014.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company
is Evergloss Management Group Company Limited
(“Evergloss”), incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2018 were approved by the board of directors on
22 March 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
H E2018F12A31H [EFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. FAFEBUMBHREER

@) FRAFTET S ACNE 5T & B 53 2Rl —
2018F 1.51H4EXL
ARRIREWB AR (TXEHEEAER])
RAFEBEREMATEESFAIASHE
MBI SR BB B WMEER ZF
ERIFEBRAEER2018F1 1B 2%
Fia 2 FE R 2 B Rk :

BEMBmELEN 2HIA
FO5%

EREHBREEDN RAXFPEANHKE
E155%

ERHBRERD REFPE&ANKE (HE
E15%% (1557 7B B T S AR B 351 55%
) MEE)

&5 (BB 5 IER S RIBHNKE

RERBZE

2) -2k

ki
EEMIEREEDN UROAERIAFRHH
258 ({BFTA) HERITE
EREMBRERER BB ERFE8E (&
20145 22016  FIA)  RELRARA
B2 F U BhENRE
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) have
applied for the first time the following new or amended
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which are relevant
to and effective for the Group’s financial statements
for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January

2018:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers
Amendments to Revenue from Contracts with
HKFRS 15 Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Amendments to Classification and Measurement

HKFRS 2 of Share-Based Payment
Transactions
Amendments to HKAS 28,

Investments in Associates and

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016

Cycle Joint Ventures
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EHZ=2018F12 A31H IF FZ For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.

BN EESMFHREEDN 2)

@

PRANFT ] LASNE 5T & BB 7 #7 &5 2E Bl —
201814

=y e EREIN — M T A
BEMBHRE LR ERN2018F1 1A

2R FEERRE B G ERFE395%
(e TR - BRAKIE] EETE2®RIT A
SHEENMB=@FE: )2 EKTE:
QURE : RQEIFEETERIE - 5201851 A1
HEFRMNBE B BREENFSHREERA
EESHEREEZH -AM HYTEY
REEEVBBRRANBERZEMIAZDH
NEBELEEATE-

() ZEBITANSERSE

BEMHERELRNESREAN LREE
BEEETEESRAGBIR
RETEMIREMTE - R - HBUB KA
ER G ERIEISREHAIFA EIH
TREE BERREYREAIHHE
TRMEENDBER - RMF YT

SENFEIRUAKEEHCRAE
MEFRRLBEATE -FEUH

SEAFSREAEEEREEN
KR ENFEFIWT -

2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement for annual years
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together
all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: (1) classification and measurement; (2)
impairment; and (3) hedge accounting. The adoption of
HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018 has resulted in changes
in accounting policies of the Group. However, it does
not have significant impact on the classification and
the amounts of financial instruments recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

(0 Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

HKFRS 9 basically retains the existing
requirements in HKAS 39 for the classification
and measurements of financial liabilities.
However, it eliminates the previous HKAS 39
categories for financial assets of held-to-maturity
financial assets, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The adoption
of HKFRS 9 has no material impact on the
Group’s accounting policies in relation to financial
liabilities. The impact of HKFRS 9 on the Group’s
classification and measurement of financial assets
is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H E2018F12A31H [EFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continueq)

()

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade
receivables (that the trade receivables do not
contain a significant financing component in
accordance with HKFRS 15), an entity shall,
at initial recognition, measure a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), transaction costs. A financial asset
is classified as: (i) financial assets at amortised
cost (“amortised costs”); (i) financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”); or (i) FVTPL (as defined in above). The
classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9
is generally based on two criteria: (i) the business
model under which the financial asset is managed
and (i) its contractual cash flow characteristics
(the “solely payments of principal and interest”
criterion, also known as “SPPI criterion”). Under
HKFRS 9, embedded derivatives is no longer
required to be separated from a host financial
asset. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument is
assessed as a whole for the classification.
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2. RNEBUHHRMEER ) 2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)
@) IRAFTE] A IS ] BB R 2Rl — (@) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
2018F1H1HLX (&) effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)
BB IR R — o T A (/&) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)
) B IAMNSIERGE (&) () Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)
fir <& B0 & 2= Rl e -5 & DA TS R I8 {644 A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if
B EmiEEAIRAABET AEBZE it both of the following conditions are met and it
AlZ e/ E E IR HK AT has not been designated as at FVTPL:
e REBERATFEZEMEEMN e It is held within a business model whose
WEEHREREEEEN & objective is to hold financial assets in order

to collect contractual cash flows; and

° ZEMEENA NIETIRENE o The contractual terms of the financial asset
EHHELARAEARE RFE give rise on specified dates to cash flows
NRFENRSRE ° that meet the SPPI criterion.

HEBIRE RS AT MERYE A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it

B EiEEAIRAABET AEBZE meets both of the following conditions and it has

Bz EERERAADBE AHEME not been designated as at FVTPL:

W 5=

o REBEAFFEZEBLIEEN . It is held within a business model whose
WMeEHNHEERERLESRE objective is to be achieved by both
EEREMN: K collecting contractual cash flows and selling

financial assets; and

° ZEMEENSNIETRENE . The contractual terms of the financial asset
THHELARTAEALRES NAE give rise on specified dates to cash flows
NFIRENEERE - that meet the SPPI criterion.
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2. FAEBUBREER ) 2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)
@) FRAARTE]BANEE] & B R 53 & 2R — (@) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
20184F 151 H4£3% (#) effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)
BB IR EI — 2 T A (&) HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)
0 =HTAMNSERGE (&) () Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)
THEFRRBERARAER itz The following accounting policies would be
SREBE: applied to the Group’s financial assets as follows:
BEAA RHEKATENERE Amortised Financial assets at amortised cost
EELEERAERR =L costs are subsequently measured using
= o F B WA BN the effective interest rate method.
KEE A RREREBR T Interest income, foreign exchange
TR o (E A A 4% 1 FERR B gains and losses and impairment are
BB H T LARE recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
e on derecognition is recognised in

profit or loss.
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2.

BN EEMBEHREEDN 2)

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@) FRAARTE] BANE 5] BB 58 & 2R — (@) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
2018F 1 H1HZER (&) effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)
Z R - E R Qe — o mt T A (45) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)
() SR T AMAIERE (&) (i) Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continueq)
TREFMAEER2018F1 51 BIRE The following table summarises the original
EAETEREIR 2 RET =55 measurement categories under HKAS 39 and the
RARIE B U iS55 B RO < #at new measurement categories under HKFRS 9 for
SERFNZESsREE: each class of the Group’s financial assets as at 1
January 2018:
REEBET REFBHK
HERIZE395E WMEERIZER
REEBHK 720184 #2018%F
BEEEEBETEL |EERFER 18182 18182
TREE 5395 2 B E I Z R fREE fREE
Carrying Carrying
amount as at amount as at
Original New 1 January 1 January
classification classification 2018 under 2018 under
Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
FAET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B H R KRR BHMA 4,296 4,296
Trade receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost
A& M AR B R R BIHAA 45,451 45,451
Deposits and other receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost
JE U Bt & A B BR AR B e R 4 35 PR 562 562
Amount due from an associate Loans and receivables Amortised cost
BRRITER KRR BHMA 29,583 29,583
Pledged bank deposits Loans and receivables Amortised cost
ROIFRREFRE ERR B B 3R PR R 263,370 263,370

Cash at banks and on hand

Loans and receivables

Amortised cost
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@ A
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continueq)

()

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 9 did not have a
significant impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets.
Trade receivables, deposits and other receivables
as well as amount due from an associate
are held to collect contractual cash flows
and are expected to give rise to cash flows
representing solely payments of principal and
interest. The Group analysed the contractual
cash flow characteristics of those instruments
and concluded that they meet the criteria for
amortised cost measurement under HKFRS 9.
Therefore, reclassification for these instruments
is not required. These financial assets continue
to be measured at amortised cost and are
subsequently measured using effective interest
rate method.

There was no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities as at 1 January 2018, as
the new requirement under HKFRS 9 only affect
the accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at FVTPL of which the Group did not
have any as of that date.
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2.

RAEBMBREED 2

@ BRANETE] SLARIEE] & BB s R & 2E Rl —
ﬂﬁaiﬁﬁfﬂéufﬂ

i) EHEEHEE

T%ﬁmiﬁf’éﬁﬂ%i&%ﬁﬂu%sa%ﬁ$%
B e R E R X BB S A2 RIS 3957
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the
Group’s impairment model by replacing the HKAS
39 “incurred loss model” to the “expected credit
. HKFRS 9 requires the
Group to recognise ECLs for trade receivables,

losses (“‘ECLs”) model”

financial assets at amortised costs including cash
and cash equivalents earlier than HKAS 39.

Under HKFRS 9, the ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12-month ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
the ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between all
contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group has elected to
apply HKFRS 9’s simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors, current creditworthiness
of the debtors and the economic environment.

For other financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12-month ECLs. The 12-month ECLs is
the portion of the lifetime ECLs that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Presentation of ECLs

Loss allowances for financial assets measured
at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Impact of the ECLs model

As mentioned above, the Group applies the
HKFRS 9’'s simplified approach to measure
ECLs which adopts a lifetime ECLs for all
trade receivables. To measure the ECLs, these
receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
No additional impairment for these receivables as
at 1 January 2018 and during the year ended 31
December 2018 is recognised as the amount of
additional impairment measured under the ECLs
model is insignificant.

Other financial assets at amortised cost of the
Group including deposits, other receivables and
amount due from an associate. No additional
impairment for these financial assets as at 1
January 2018 and during the year ended 31
December 2018 is recognised as the amount of
additional impairment measured under the ECLs
model is insignificant.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -

effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continueq)

(i) Transition
The Group has applied the transitional provision
in HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9 was generally
adopted without restating comparative
information. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new ECLs rules
are therefore not reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, but are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position on 1 January
2018. Based on the management’s assessment,
there was no material difference in the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9
recognised in retained earnings and reserves as
at 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customer

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts”, HKAS 18 “Revenue” and related
interpretations. HKFRS 15 has established a five-
step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at the amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer.
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customer (Continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the
cumulative effect method with practical expedients.
The Group has recognised the cumulative effect of
initially applying HKFRS 15 as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings at the date of
initial application (that is, 1 January 2018). Under this
transition method, the Group has elected to apply this
standard retrospectively only to contracts that were not
completed contracts as at 1 January 2018. As a result,
the financial information presented for 2017 has not
been restated.

The following table summarises the impact, net of tax,

REBF 2 FNEHROZE (NBRIE) : of transition to HKFRS 15 on the opening balances of
retained earnings as follows:

FHET

HK$’000

#2017%F12 831 B R & & 7 Retained earnings as at 31 December 2017 197,562
EREEREME MR 2 Increase of contract liabilities in relation to

EXOR=Erg il customer options for additional goods or services (6,613)

R2018F1 A1 B & EHIRE B F| Restated retained earnings as at 1 January 2018 190,949
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customer (Continued)

The details of the nature and effect of the changes on
application of HKFRS 15 are set out below:

Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue from provision of package tours
and travel bus services is recognised when the
services are rendered by the Group. Revenue from
provision of ancillary travel related services, sales of
air tickets, hotel accommodation and hotel packages
is recognised when the services are rendered by
the Group as an agent on a net basis. Where the
Group acts as a principal in certain transactions,
including sales of tickets and merchandise, revenue
is recognised at a point of time when the control of
the products is transferred to the customers, being
when the goods are sold to the customers, there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the goods, the customers have obtained
the physical possession or the legal title of the goods
and the Group has present right to payment. Revenue
from hotel room rental is recognised when the services
are rendered.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customer (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15,
customer obtains control of the promised goods or

revenue is recognised when the

services in the contract. This may be at a single point
in time or over a period of time. HKFRS 15 identifies
the following three situations in which control of the
promised goods or services is regarded as being
transferred over time:

o When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

o When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in progress)
that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced; or

o When the entity’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not
fall into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15
the entity recognises revenue for the sale of that goods
or services at a single point in time, being when control
has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
is only one of the indicators that is considered in
determining when the transfer of control occurs.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customer (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a significant
impact on when the Group recognises revenue from
package tours, FIT Products, ancillary travel related
products and services, hotel room rental.

Based on the management’s assessment, revenue
arising from package tours and travel bus services is
recognised over time as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefit provided by the
Group’s performance as the Group performs. This
means that if another travel agent was to take over
providing the remaining performance obligation to
the customer, it would not have to substantially re-
perform the work already completed by the Group. For
revenue from hotel room rental, the Group transfers
control of service over time and, therefore, satisfies a
performance obligation and recognises revenue over
time, when the hotel guest simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the hotel.

Also, in respect of transactions where the related
consideration is concluded to be recognised as
revenue over time, the Group has determined that an
input method is an appropriate method to measure the
Group’s progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation satisfied over time.

Revenue from FIT Products and ancillary travel
related products and services which involved just
sales of air tickets, hotel accommodation and hotel
packages, transportation tickets and admission tickets
are recognised at a point in time when the booking
services or tickets are delivered to and have been
accepted by the customers.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customer (Continued)

Principal versus agent considerations

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to determine whether
it is the principal in the transaction or the agent on
the basis of whether it controls the goods or services
before they are transferred to the customer. Prior to
the adoption of HKFRS 15, based on the existence of
credit risks and other factors, certain revenue of the
Group is concluded that they have an exposure to the
significant risks and rewards associated with certain
sale arrangements to their customers, and accounted
for the contracts, such as sales of package tours and
hotel room rental, as if they were acting as a principal.
In applying the new guidance, the Group determined
that it controls the goods or services before they are
transferring to customers, and hence, is a principal in
these contracts. Similarly, the Group has reassessed
the principal and agent relationship for the sales of FIT
Products and certain ancillary travel related products
and services of which revenue was recognised on
net basis as the Group acted as an agent prior to
the adoption of HKFRS 15. The Group determined
that they continue acting as an agent for these
transactions and recognises the revenue on net basis.
The Group concluded that the adoption of HKFRS 15
has no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December
2018 in this respect.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customer (Continued)

Customer options for additional goods or services

The Group provides discount vouchers to customers
when they acquire package tour services for future
consumption. Under HKFRS 15, the total consideration
is allocated to the discount vouchers and goods or
services based on the relative stand-alone selling
prices with reference to the discount given, the
likelihood of redemption as evidenced by the Group’s
historical experience. As a result, adjustments have
been made to the opening balances as at 1 January
2018 to reflect an increase in the contract liabilities
in relation to the discount vouchers of approximately
HK$7,920,000, a corresponding increase in deferred
tax asset by approximately HK$1,307,000 and a
decrease in the retained earnings of approximately
HK$6,613,000. For the year ended 31 December
2018, there were no material changes on contract
liabilities and revenue in relation to the discount
vouchers.



RE BRI

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

EHZ=2018F12 A31H IF FZ For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.

BN EESMFHREEDN 2)

@

PRANFT ] LASNE 5T & BB 7 #7 &5 2E Bl —
201841851 H 454 (#)

CEBIFE 1555

b
iy
03
T
op

0l

PN

=N 0N=V={:0E=2 7
RIBBBM B REERNF165  EAEEE
REBEEZ ERPXNRERENE
KXNRELSEC T HE  ARA/EH
BEMFERMER HREBATFPRITE—N
BH BUAARKNEEREXRANEBFES
Slo-HBZMER FHBEENNENEE
HENABTAFRERERT-

A BIEREFRI] BENE O&H
ERERA MBSO R T [ 30R 2 WA
T RhEMENKI B T2

RREH R REZEZE  AEEER2018
FIARIEHEF D FAR - HREAE S
WA 2ERI 21555 - 201851 H1H - &
BA#A) 5127,217,00058 T8 [ FEETRUE ~ B
e kEMEMNE-BRERFII2IROHE
RBENEE-

2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customer (Continued)

Presentation of contract liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a contract liability, rather than
a payable, is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. For a single
contract with the customer, either a net contract asset
or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

Previously, contract balances relating to “Customer
deposits received” were presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position under “Accruals,
deposits received and other payables”.

To reflect these changes in presentation, the Group
has made the reclassification adjustment as at 1
January 2018. As a result of the adoption of HKFRS
15, “Accruals, deposits received and other payables
— Customer deposits received” amounting to
approximately HK$127,217,000 as at 1 January 2018
is now classified as contract liabilities.

20184 %R Annual Report 2018 109



BN [/ 75 & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BT IR ERR M 5
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
H E2018F12A31H [EFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. B EBMBHREEDN 2

@

BRANFTE] LASIE ] &5 B R TR & 2Rl —
2018F 1 A1HZEX (&)

258 ERFE15% — K HEFE AL
ﬂﬁ ";f,/’ﬁ (A

TR B R 5 B B B 7 R 55 R B 155
HWIRGRFZ ENEBOTE NBRHIE)
mT

2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -

effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with

Customer (Continued)

The following table summarises the impact, net of tax,
of transition to HKFRS 15 on the opening balances of

retained earnings as follows:

FESTRIR

2T EeR
BREE H{th FE 1T BR
Accruals,
deposits
received
Contract and other
liabilities payables
(Htit24)
(note 24)
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
R2017F12 H31 B Wy 4 84 Balances as at 31 December 2017 = 187,536
BNk Reclassification 127,217 (127,217)
HEFREEMERMIRASHFAZE Adjustment on customer options for
additional goods or services 7,920 -
201851 A1 B W& &4 Balances as at 1 January 2018 135,137 60,319
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(@

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customer (Continued)

The following tables show the impact on each
individual line item of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018
following the adoption of the HKFRS 15. Line items

B/NEF R MBS RE - that were not affected by the changes have not been
included, and therefore the line items disclosed do not
add up to the sub-totals and totals below.

HZ2018F12A3ALLEE
Year ended 31 December 2018

RENE B RnE B

BBRELER  BEREER
F155A  F15HRMNTE 2ReH

Before Impact of

SARBEREMEE Consolidated statement of profit or loss and adoption of adoption of
hEk (BE) other comprehensive income (extracts) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15 As reported
THT THT THT
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
W Revenue 1,784,492 (7,878) 1,776,614
BR RS BEAT & R Profit before income tax 40,822 (7,878) 32,944
EHES Income tax credit 820 1,300 2,120
EERA Profit for the year 41,642 (6,578) 35,064
RARHEE ARLRF Profit attributable to owners of the Company 41,395 (6,578) 34,817
THNERE Total comprehensive income 42,236 (6,578) 35,658

NG b 2= DN Total comprehensive income attributable to

ZHNELE owners of the Company 42,101 (6,578) 35,523
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2.

HRANEEBMFHREED &) 2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@) R A E ] BB B & Rl — (@) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
2018F 1 H1H4EX (4&) effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)
B ERFE16% — K EE A A HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with

Customer (Continued)

R2018F12831H
As at 31 December 2018
BIRHELEN  BEREER
F15%8 BISENFE EREHE
Before Impact of
SEARKMRRR (HE)  Consolidated statement of adoption of adoption of
financial position (extracts) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15 As reported
FET FET FTET
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
ERTIEEE Deferred tax assets 7,001 1,300 8,301
FRBEELE Total non-current assets 494,057 1,300 495,357
REEE Current liabilities
[E:r 7R BEMGET & R Accruals, deposits received and other payables
Hip iR 206,477 (142,337 64,140
AHNBE Contract liabilities = 150,215 150,215
TEEEAE Total current liabilities 307,137 7,878 315,015
hBEEFE Net current assets 109,982 (7,878) 102,104
BEFE Net assets 364,729 (6,578) 358,151
iy Equity
[ Reserves 311,348 (6,578) 304,770
ANRHEE ARLRER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 361,593 (6,578) 355,015
ERAE Total equity 364,729 (6,578) 358,151
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customer (Continued)

Basic earnings per share has decreased by HK1.3
cents in 2018 as a result of the adoption of HKFRS
15. The adoption of HKFRS 15 has no impact on the
net cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities on the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Amendments to HKFRS 15 - Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS
15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations; application
of principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual

property; and transition requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these consolidated financial statements as the Group
had not previously adopted HKFRS 15 and took up the
clarifications in this, its first year.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HK(FRIC)-Int 22 — Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

The interpretation provides guidance on determining
the date of the transaction for determining an exchange
rate to use for transactions that involve advance
consideration paid or received in a foreign currency
and the recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability. The interpretation specifies that the
date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part thereof) is the
date on which the entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
the payment or receipt of advance consideration.

The adoption of this interpretation has no material
impact on these consolidated financial statements
as all the times the Group determines the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 - Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; share-based payment transactions
with a net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled.



ARE B IS R R I 5
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
#H E2018F12 531 H L& Z For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. RMNEEMBRLER &) 2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@) FAFTE] AR (EE] BB SR & B R —

201841851 H 454 (#)
B BB IR PERIZE 29 (1E5TK) — LA R 7
BEBT X ZHDIERE (F)

RAZFBIAALARHEZETRA M BRE
EERE  TIRRNAEE L EES T AR
NREBININBRSHEEZR IR E
BRERNBABFREERENOARN B
AWK S-

25 B 7K 2 & 2E BI[20144F 220164 78 2
ZFENE—FBEDEERFE285% (15T
X)) REBELFIREELENKE

REEREBRBRBEMTNZZTEIAES
T8 B AT MARRRE 2 BB BN B IEE &
HEk - B BEEA S ER F285 [R
ERNTIREELENRE ] MBI &
MEAREREARERERAAEBENE
HEE AR AE XN AIHSMBEEA

ARAELEN L ARREE-

RMZFEI AU ARHZFHEMHRERE
ERE RRAKELIERREAKE -

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 - Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions
(Continued)

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these consolidated financial statements as the
Group does not have any cash-settled share-based
payment transaction and has no share-based payment
transaction with net settlement features for withholding
tax.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 28 “Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures” clarifying that a venture
capital organisation’s permissible election to measure
its associates or joint ventures at fair value is made
separately for each associate or joint venture.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on

these consolidated financial statements as the Group is
not a venture capital organisation.
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(b) EEE KR EXB G BARNEE] B (b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been
BRI IR ER issued but are not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been

AN B8R W R A HI R /] AR IERT BB
B 705 s o R R SRR R (B B A5 R B AR R
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R AREARBEIRER RS

issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group:

BB mEER HE HKFRS 16 Leases'
£16%5%

&5 (ARG KERE mEHEENTHEE ML HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
REZEY) Treatments'
— 2B E235

BB ERIFE158 EpN: Amendments to Definition of Material?

REEG TR

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

ELVACCHES)

BB S AR B ERIE NS Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
FOFE (BT AN) HKFRS 9 Compensation’

EES AL REEENTI RS &A% Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
5£285% (BaIA) f R B RS HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures'

BB RS £ XTSRS Amendments to Definition of a Business®
F35% (BRI A) HKFRS 3

BEA RS %R BB RS ER Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 3,
2015 220174 F35 (B5]AK) - HKFRSs 2015-2017 Business Combinations'
BE 2 e EBEH Cycle

BREM B mELER B ERFE125% Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 12,
20155 E20174 (IBETAR) - B8R HKFRSs 2015-2017 Income Taxes'
BE 2 e Cycle

BB B REER BB TR E235% Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 23,
2015 Z£20174F (B3TAKR) &3 HKFRSs 2015-2017 Borrowing Costs'
BE 2 FE e B A Cycle

BB RS EL| BB EEHREE N 75 Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
F10RMES BELECREELR HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
@SR 285 EAEBE! HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?
(BETA)

FmiEEREMR AR EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020
S Effective for business combinations and asset

acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2020

4 The amendments were originally intended to be
effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017. The effective date has now been deferred/
removed. Early application of the amendments continue
to be permitted.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of
the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability,
and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability
into a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also,
the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially
measured on a present value basis. The measurement
includes non-cancellable lease payments and also
includes payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly
different from the lessee accounting for leases that are
classified as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

Application of HKFRS 16 will result in the Group’s
recognition of right-of-use assets and corresponding
liabilities in respect of its operating lease arrangements.
These assets and liabilities are currently not required
to be recognised but certain relevant information is
disclosed in note 36(b). As at 31 December 2018,
the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of approximately HK$105,428,000.
The directors of the Company made an assessment
of the impact of adopting the above standard to
the Group. It indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and
hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term
leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. The new
requirement to recognise a right-of-use asset and a
related lease liability is expected to have a significant
impact on the amounts recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position. However,
the adoption would not have significant impact on the
Group’s financial performance.

Except as described above, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the new or
amended HKFRSs below will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12 “Income Taxes”, by providing guidance over how
to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for
income taxes. Under the interpretation, the entity
shall determine whether to consider each uncertain
tax treatment separately or together based on
which approach better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax
authority will examine amounts that it has a right
to examine and have full knowledge of all related
information when making those examinations. If the
entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with
its tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or the
“expected value” approach, whichever better predicts
the resolution of the uncertainty.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at FVOCI if specified conditions
are met instead of at FVTPL.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to long-
term interests (“LTI”) in associates or joint ventures
which form part of the net investment in the associates
or joint ventures and stipulates that HKFRS 9 is applied
to these LTI before the impairment losses guidance
within HKAS 28.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small,
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.

non-urgent

They include amendments to HKFRS 3 which clarify
that when a joint operator of a business obtains
control over a joint operation, this is a business
combination achieved in stages and the previously held
equity interest should therefore be remeasured to its
acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 12 which clarify
that all income tax consequences of dividends are
recognised consistently with the transactions that
generated the distributable profits, either in profit or

loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 23 which clarify
that a borrowing made specifically to obtain a qualifying
asset which remains outstanding after the related
qualifying asset is ready for its intended use or sale
would become part of the funds an entity borrows
generally and therefore included in the general pool.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of
Material

The amendments clarify the definition of material
and align the definition used across the HKFRSs.
Information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements, which provide financial information
about a specific reporting entity. Materiality depends
on the nature or magnitude of information, or both. An
entity assesses whether information, either individually
or in combination with other information, is material in
the context of its financial statements taken as a whole.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business,
with the objective of assisting entities to determine
whether a transaction should be accounted for as
a business combination or as an asset acquisition.
An entity shall apply these amendments to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and to asset
acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that
period.

Earlier application of these amendments is permitted,
including in annual reporting periods beginning before
18 January 2019 (the date of issuance of these
amendments). If an entity applies these amendments
for an earlier period, it shall disclose that fact.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

@)

(b)

()

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
which collective terms include all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA. The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis, except for a
derivative financial instrument, which is measured at fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

@

®)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiaries is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee, (i) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee and (iii)
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable during the
year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the
asset transferred they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the interest in
an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@

(€

Foreign currency translation

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arisen,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off costs over their estimated useful lives, using
a straight-line basis, at the rates shown below per
annum. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of the reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Hotel building 2%
Leasehold improvements  30% or over the lease term,

whichever is shorter

Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Freehold land is not depreciated.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

@)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represented hot spring bath
building and hotel building under construction and is
stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well
as borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these
costs ceases and the construction in progress is
transferred to the appropriate class of property, plant
and equipment when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended
use are completed. No depreciation is provided for in
respect of construction in progress until it is completed
and ready for its intended use.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integrated part of the total rental
expense, over the term of the lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

n A

Financial instruments (accounting policies

applied from 1 January 2018)

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant
financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There is
only one measurement category into
which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

n A

Financial instruments (accounting policies

applied from 1 January 2018) (Continuea)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method.
Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances
for ECLs on trade receivables
and financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12-month ECLs: these are
the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that
result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit
risk.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

n A

Financial instruments (accounting policies

applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continueq)

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the

assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure
loss allowances for trade receivables
using HKFRS 9’s simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based
on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that
is based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors, current creditworthiness
of the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the
ECLs are based on the 12-month
ECLs. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

n A

Financial instruments (accounting policies

applied from 1 January 2018) (Continuea)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 30 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset
to be credit-impaired when: (1) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or
(2) the financial asset is more than 90
days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired
financial assets is calculated based
on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset. For non-credit-
impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

n A

Financial instruments (accounting policies

applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial
liabilities, depending on the purpose
for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
are initially measured at fair value, net
of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including trade payables, accruals,
other payables, amounts due to
associates and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense
is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Derivative financial instruments are
recognised initially at fair value. At
the end of each reporting period
the fair value is re-measured. The
gain or loss on re-measurement to
fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, except where the
derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting, in which case recognition
of any resultant gain or loss depends
on the nature of the item being
hedged (see Note 4(h)A(vii).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

n A

Financial instruments (accounting policies

applied from 1 January 2018) (Continuea)

(v)

(V)

(Vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instrurments

Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial
asset when the contractual rights to
the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred
and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised
when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(vii)  Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial
instrument is designated as a hedge
of the variability in cash flows of a
recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed
future transaction, the effective
portion of any gains or losses on
re-measurement of the derivative
financial instrument to fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately
in equity in the hedging reserve. The
ineffective portion of any gain or loss
is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition
of a non-financial asset or non-
financial liability, the associated gain
or loss is reclassified from equity to
be included in the initial cost or other
carrying amount of the non-financial
asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition
of a financial asset or a financial
liability, the associated gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss
in the same period or periods during
which the asset acquired or liability
assumed affects profit or loss (such
as when interest income or expense is
recognised).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial instruments (accounting policies

applied from 1 January 2018) (Continuea)

(vii)  Cash flow hedges (Continued)

(Continued)
(h) A.
() B

When a hedging instrument expires,
or is sold or terminated, or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria for
hedge accounting, hedge accounting
is discontinued prospectively, any
cumulative gain or loss remains in
equity at that time is accounted
for according to the nature of the
underlying transactions (as discussed
above) once the hedged cash flow
occurs. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that has been
reported in equity is reclassified to
profit or loss immediately.

Financial instruments (accounting policies

applied until 31 December 2017)

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial
assets at initial recognition, depending
on the purpose for which the asset
was acquired. The Group’s financial
assets are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets. Regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. A regular
way purchase or sale is a purchase
or sale of a financial asset under a
contract whose terms require delivery
of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation
or convention in the market place
concerned.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h)

B.

Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

()

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market.
They arise principally through the
provision of goods and services to
customers (“trade debtors”), and also
incorporate other types of contractual
monetary assets. Subsequent to
initial recognition, they are carried at
amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of the
reporting period, whether there is any
objective evidence that financial asset
is impaired. Financial asset is impaired
if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset and that
event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

° significant financial difficulty of
the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a

default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h)

B.

Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continueqd)

(1)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

° granting concession to a debtor
because of debtor’s financial
difficulty; and

° it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.

Loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of financial asset
is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When any part
of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for the relevant
financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial
liabilities, depending on the purpose
for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
are initially measured at fair value, net
of directly attributable costs incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h)

B.

Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

(i)

(v)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including trade payables, accruals,
other payables, amounts due to
associates and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense
is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

B. Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continueqd)

(v)  Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

(vi)  Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial
asset when the contractual rights to
the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred
and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with
HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised
when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the first-in-first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

0)

A.

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers
is recognised when control of goods or
services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, control
of the goods or services may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the
goods or services is transferred over time if
the Group’s performance:

o provides benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed
to date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

0

A.

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continueq)

If control of the goods or services transfers
over time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the
goods or services.

When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the customer a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. Where the
contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised
under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For
contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

0)

A.

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

()

()

(i)

Package tours

Revenue for package tours is
recognised over time in accounting
period in which the control of services
is transferred to the customer because
the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes benefit provided by the
Group’s performance as it performs.
Payment is made to the Group before
the customers enjoy the tour services.

Hotel room rental

The Group provides hotel
accommodations, food and beverage
and other hospitality in Japan.

The Group self-operates its hotel.
Revenue from hotel room rental
is recognised over time in the
accounting period in which the hotel
accommodation services are provided
to the customer.

Sales of FIT products, ancillary travel
related products and services

Revenue from provision of ancillary
travel related products and
services, sales of air tickets, hotel
accommodation and hotel packages
is recognised at a point in time when
the booking services or tickets are
delivered to and have been accepted
by the customers. The Group is the
agent in these transactions and the

revenue is recognised on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

0

A.

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continueq)

(i)

(iv)

Sales of FIT products, ancillary
travel related products and services
(Continued)

Where the Group acts as a principal
in certain transactions, including
sales of tickets and merchandise,
revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the control of the products
is transferred to the customers,
being when the goods are sold to
the customers, there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the
customers’ acceptance of the goods,
the customers have obtained the
physical possession or the legal title of
the goods and the Group has present
right to payment.

The Group does not provide any
sales-related warranties. There is no
right of return by customers under
the Group’s standard contract terms,
except for sales of certain train
tickets.

Travel bus services

The Group owns its travel buses in
Japan. Travel bus service revenue
is recognised over time in the
accounting period in which the travel
bus services are provided to the
customer.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

0)

A.

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(v)

Other income

Commission income is recognised
when the goods or services on which
the commission is calculated are
delivered.

Interest income is accrued on a time
basis on the principal outstanding at
the applicable interest rate.

Contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with
a customer, the Group obtains right
to receive consideration from the
customer and assumes performance
obligations to transfer goods or
provide services to the customer.
The combination of those rights and
performance obligations give rise to a
net asset or a net liability depending
on the relationship between the
remaining rights and the performance
obligations. Contract liabilities are
recognised for services to be provided
to customers represented by the
excess of consideration received from
the customers according to agreed
customer billing schedules over
cumulative revenue recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

0

B.

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
sales of goods, rendering of services
and the use by others of the Group’s
assets vyielding interest, net of rebates and
discounts. Provided it is probable that
economic benefits will flow to the Group
and revenue can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised as follows:

Revenue from provision of package tours
and travel bus services is recognised when
the services are rendered by the Group.

Revenue from provision of ancillary travel
related services, sales of air tickets, hotel
accommodation and hotel packages is
recognised when the services are rendered
by the Group as an agent on a net basis.
Where the Group acts as a principal
in certain transactions, including sales
of tickets and merchandise, revenue is
recognised upon transfer of the significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the
customers. This is usually taken as the
time when the tickets and merchandise are
delivered and the customers have accepted
the tickets and merchandise.

Revenue from hotel room rental is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Commission income is recognised when the
services are rendered by the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0)

(k)

B. Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

Interest income is recognised on a time
basis on the principals outstanding at the
applicable interest rates.

Rebate from a supplier is recognised as
income when the Group’s entitlement to
the rebate is established in accordance with
the terms of the subscriber agreement, i.e.
when the booking of the corresponding
travel item is confirmed.

Income tax

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

(m)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
on hand as well as short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to
be settled wholly before twelve months after the end
of the reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short-term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Defined contribution retirement plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity.



RE BRI

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHZ=2018F12 A31H IF FZ For the year ended 31 December 2018

4., FTEEFHEHR &)

(m) /E,Sfﬁf/(f‘“’)

&
RZEE R %%ﬂﬁ@?ﬁz E+¥|JE”]1EEEB'@
REENRBIESRKEBENGE ([REEE
2l AEEMEEAERNETEENINE
ERRIBE—BER - HRTDVIREEELRS
CHREBADLLERBECTEMRENES
5 i 1 AR R 4E o fi B RRSTERT K Bl
AR EBEREE WERHBTE AEH
HEMDRFFARB B ERREEE - 815

JFQUE’JQFE@ZF%lﬁE SNE R VA

TRA - AEERBRBLEELNE
Iﬁ%%’\i\ﬁ BTEEMA-

aF

AR B R PIRE A SZ VBT B 2 71 & A (A3t
TRFERAMEENEEREESIELY
TR AEEEENRAREEE AEE
BMEE I NEBEE A HRERIKER - &
NERERLRFAEHBS-

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment
of the fixed contribution. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries to
the maximum mandatory contributions as required
by the MPF Scheme. Liabilities and assets may be
recognised if underpayment or prepayment has
occurred and are included in current liabilities or current
assets, respectively, as they are normally of a short-
term nature. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
Macau makes monthly contributions to the social
security fund managed by the relevant authority of the
local government, which undertakes the retirement
obligations of the its employees. The Group has no
obligation for payment of retirement benefits beyond
the monthly contributions. The contribution payable is
charged as an expense to profit or loss as and when
incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

According to the existing relevant regulations in
Taiwan, a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
Taiwan is required to participate in the retirement plan
or scheme operated by the government of Taiwan
(the “Taiwan Scheme”) for the provision of pension
benefits to its employees. The Taiwan subsidiary is
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll
costs to the Taiwan Scheme to fund the benefits. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

The subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Japan
have established defined contribution plans for its
eligible employees. The assets of the plans are held in
separate trustee-administered funds. Contributions to
the plans by the Group are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ monthly basic salaries. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary which
operated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government (the
“Central Pension Scheme”). This subsidiary is required
to contribute certain percentage of employees’ salaries
to the Central Pension Scheme. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

All contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees and
when they fall due under the relevant regulations.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;
o construction in progress; and
° interests in associates

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
HKFRS.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

()

(e,

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the asset,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i

(if

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

@

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

@iy dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the employee share option reserve within
equity. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into
account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of the reporting period
so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions
are factored into the fair value of the options granted.
As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@

(r)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where equity instruments are granted to persons
other than employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of goods or services received
is recognised in profit or loss unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised. For
cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is
recognised at the fair value of the goods or services
received.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to be ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest charges and other
costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

() Depreciation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and
equipment in accordance with the accounting policies
stated in note 4(e). The estimated useful lives reflect
the management’s estimates of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from
the use of these assets. The management reassesses
the estimated useful lives at the end of the reporting
period.

(i) Impairment of receivables

The Group determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
provision matrix is determined based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics and is adjusted for forward-looking
estimates. The ECLs of other receivables is based
on the 12-month ECLs. In making the judgement,
management considers available reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information such as actual
or expected significant adverse changes in business
and customers’ financial position. At every reporting
date the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed by the management.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(1)

(v)

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

Significant judgements are required in determining
the amount of the provision for tax and the timing
of payment of the related tax. Where the final tax
outcomes are different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination is made.

Classification of freehold land, hotel building
and construction in progress

As disclosed in notes 14 and 15 in respect of the
freehold land, hotel building and construction in
progress of the hot spring bath building and hotel
building, these items are not classified as investment
properties as the Group retains significant risks of
running the business, i.e. exposure to variation in
the future cash flows generated by the operations.
Although the Group has outsourced day-to-day
administrative functions to a hotel management
company, the Group is not a purely passive investor.
Accordingly, management considered that these items
should be classified as owner-occupied property. Once
the construction in progress is completed, it would be
transferred to property, plant and equipment.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(v)

(Vi)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and construction in progress

Judgement is required in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to
sell or value-in-use, which is the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions used to determine
the level, if any, of impairment, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group’s financial condition and results of operations.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
as at FVTPL

The financial instruments at FVTPL are valued by
independent professional qualified valuers at the end
of each reporting period. Such valuation is based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from the actual results.

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the item above, please refer to the
applicable notes.
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has identified its operating segments based on
the regular internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision-makers about allocation of resources to
assess the performance of the Group’s business.

The Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers different
products and services and requires different business
strategies. The following summary describes the operations
in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

° Travel and travel related services business (“Travel
Related Business”)

o Hotel operation (“Hotel Business”)

Management assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on the measure of segment results which
represents the net of revenue, cost of sales, other income
and gain, selling expenses, administrative expenses and
share of results of associates directly attributable to each
operating segment. Central administrative costs are not
allocated to the operating segments as they are not included
in the measure of the segment results that are used by the
chief operating decision-makers for assessment of segment
performance.

Segment assets include all assets with exception of
corporate assets, including interests in associates, cash
at banks and on hand, and certain prepayments and
other receivables which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of operating segments as these assets
are managed on a group basis. Likewise, segment liabilities
exclude corporate liabilities, such as certain other payables,
which are not directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segments and not allocated to segments.
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6. DEPEE (&)

@ EXEDH

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segments

TREAE B TS THIE ¥ st
Travel
Related Hotel
Business Business Total
FE T FHE T FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HZE2018F12831H For the year ended
LEFE: 31 December 2018:
U &= Revenue
REINDE P From external customers 1,735,154 41,460 1,776,614
R E Dz W Inter-segment revenue (25,764) 25,764 =
EIES e Reportable segment revenue 1,709,390 67,224 1,776,614
] 2} 5 B Reportable segment
wmFL(EE) profit/(loss) 39,345 (2,142) 37,203
ME -MENREREITE  Depreciation on property, plant
and equipment 11,891 29,479 41,370
FE{R B E N R ELE Share of results of associates 3,081 = 3,081
A& B A Finance costs 891 3,022 3,913
FrEfifx,/ (%) Income tax expense/(credit) 4,237 (6,484) (2,247)
AE2RDEEE Reportable segment assets 422,460 487,814 910,274
AE2HmoEBEE Reportable segment liabilities 272,964 278,473 551,437
NEFFERBDEE Additions to non-current assets 3,375 105,692 109,067
JE(EEE 2 NAIEEFE  Share of net assets of associates 10,611 = 10,611
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6. DEPERE (&)

@ XBEDE (&)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

T2 48 BA 275 B FE T FES
Travel
Related Hotel
Business Business Total
FAT FAT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B E2017F12831H For the year ended
LEFE: 31 December 2017:
Y &= Revenue
REINBEP From external customers 1,622,004 2,580 1,624,584
A 23R 5 U I Reportable segment revenue 1,622,004 2,580 1,624,584
A2®|D T Reportable segment
wFL (E1E) profit/(loss) 54,571 (7,805) 46,766
YE  BENRMEITE  Depreciation on property, plant
and equipment 10,227 4,732 14,959
JE(R Bt & N B LA Share of results of associates 2,686 = 2,686
=59 Finance costs 49 321 370
Frigfi m sz Income tax expense 7,473 1,597 9,070
AE2EWoEEE Reportable segment assets 456,029 387,152 843,181
Mo HEE Reportable segment liabilities 250,274 252,185 502,459
RBIERBEE Additions to non-current assets 18,169 195,054 213,223
JE(REt S N T A EEE  Share of net assets of associates 9,242 = 9,242
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6. SEB|E A 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
b) FIZHE W B BERBEZ (b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
#ER profit or loss, assets and liabilities
2018 2017
FHET BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Y Revenue
A 2D EU Reportable segment revenue 1,776,614 1,624,584
e s Consolidated revenue 1,776,614 1,624,584
2018 2017
FE T FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
R P 15 %6 B 2 A& A Profit before income tax expense
Al 2 ¥ 265 F Reportable segment profit 37,203 46,766
JE(REEE N R R Share of results of an associate - (538)
Hh s R EiE Other gains and losses 4 26
REEE R R 2 =R E Impairment on interest in an associate - (3,839)
RO B Unallocated corporate expenses (4,263) (4,597)
Br TS 7 5 S AT AR & i A Consolidated profit before
income tax expense 32,944 37,818
2018 2017
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
AZ2MDEEE Reportable segment assets 910,274 843,181
ApBLEHEE Unallocated corporate assets 2,202 2,479
mAmEE Consolidated total assets 912,476 845,660
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6. DEPERE (&)

(b)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

O Z2# 72z B BENEEZ (b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

¥R (&) profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)
2018 2017
FE T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000

=N Liabilities

AE2moBasE Reportable segment liabilities 551,437 502,459
ROBEEEAE Unallocated corporate liabilities 2,888 4,240
mEBAaE Consolidated total liabilities 554,325 506,699

() HlEEF
TREVNAKERANBEP WS MGEE
REEMELEHAEE ((FENFRBE
EDIMISERBEEN T

()

Geographic information

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers and non-current
assets other than financial assets and deferred tax
assets (“Specified non-current assets”).

RENDEF MK E RENFERBEE
(REFREHES) (RERFEHES)
Revenue from Specified

external customers non-current assets

(by customer location) (by physical location)

2018 2017 2018 2017
THER TAT TR FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

B RRM Hong Kong and Macau
(FrfEsh) (place of domicile) 1,703,859 1,615,931 13,098 17,433
=N Japan 69,372 5,083 461,423 375,309
Hity Others 3,383 3,570 9,866 8,550
1,776,614 1,624,584 484,387 401,292

FEMNES2EREERBEERL  #E
REB D & 5&E K B FE A O b B T €

The place of domicile is determined by referring to the
place that the Group regards as its hometown, has the
majority of operation and centre of management.
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(@)

(e) Disaggregation of revenue

Information about a major customer

The Group did not have any single customer
contributed more than 10% of the Group’s revenue
during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

e B A B S 7 BIRER @t
Travel Related Business Hotel Business Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
TET FTHT TET THT TET THT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TEREDS Primary geographical markets
HEMRMN Hong Kong and Macau
(FrEs) (place of domicile) 1,703,859 1,615,931 - - 1,703,859 1,615,931
AR Japan 2,148 2,503 67,224 2,580 69,372 5,083
Hity Others 3,383 3,570 - - 3,383 3,570
1,709,390 1,622,004 67,224 2,580 1,776,614 1,624,684
W 25 R B Timing of revenue recognition
5 i 26 At a point in time 212,527 164,102 - - 212,527 164,102
FersfeE Transferred over time 1,496,863 1,457,902 67,224 2,580 1,564,087 1,460,482
1,709,390 1,622,004 67,224 2,580 1,776,614 1,624,684
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7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN,

NET

Revenue includes the net invoiced value of package tours,
ancillary travel related products, and hotel room rental and
ancillary services; the net proceeds from free independent
travellers (“FIT”) packages, individual travel elements
(together with FIT packages referred to as “FIT Products”)

and ancillary travel related services. The amounts of each

significant category of revenue recognised during the year

are as follows:

2018 2017
FH& T FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
& Revenue
IRAT Package tours 1,496,863 1,457,902
BHTEmM (#:E) FIT Products (note) 22,720 28,065
a5 B 14 bR 1T 4B BE B o R TS Ancillary travel related products and services
(Ktzz) (note) 189,807 136,037
B E % 5 M E B AR 7S Hotel room rental and ancillary services 67,224 2,580
1,776,614 1,624,584
HA WA & W& 58 Other income and gain, net
b 5 U 55 0% KB Exchange gain, net 6,117 10,225
BRI A K Handling income and
2 Y A forfeited fees from customers 582 607
AT BOR B A Interest income on bank deposits 358 1,185
£ 8 7 1= 40 Rebate from a supplier 1,552 1,356
HIEWA Sundry income 981 723
9,590 14,096
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7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN,
NET (Continued)

Note: The Group’s revenue from FIT Products and certain ancillary
travel related products and services is considered as cash
collected on behalf of principals as an agent, and thus
recorded on a net basis. The gross proceeds received and
receivable are as follows:

2018 2017

TExT FE T

HK$’000 HK$’000

B U K e WL FT 15 SR IE 42 KR Gross proceeds received and receivable 360,216 392,380

TREBVNEBESRUERREEFANNEL

The following table provides information about trade

BRENER - receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers.

120185 20184

12831H 1H1H

As at As at

31 December 1 January

2018 2018

FHET BT

HK$’000 HK$’000

ZSRRER (H719) Trade receivables (Note 19) 10,079 4,296

GREE (Hite4) Contract liabilities (Note 24) 150,215 135,137
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8. MREREHAIEF 8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
BRATSHADEMNGHRATER S Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging:
2018 2017
FHET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$’000
1% 25 6 %7 Auditors’ remuneration 2,193 1,877
BRAERAZNFERR Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 25,553 29,135
Y BB REETE Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 41,370 14,959
HEME  BERK Loss on disposal of property, plant and
[E5 18 F 58 equipment, net = 943
MATEENEEHREHS Operating lease rental in respect of:
- — Premises 28,029 27,137
YN - Office equipment 3,623 2,511
— IR E — Travel buses 60,789 64,320
A& B AR Finance costs
—RITEREENFERIZ — Interest expense incurred on bank
(Hiit25) borrowings (note 25) 4,039 1,553
B ERIECZERNEE — Less: Imputed interest capitalised into
ME (Het15) construction in progress (note 15) (126) (1,183)
3,913 370
EEKAN (BIEMFE122 Employee costs (including directors’
EEEHH) - emoluments in note 12):
—HFe kHEMEYEN — Salaries and other benefits in kind 131,234 142,931
—RIRET B K — Retirement scheme contributions 5,847 6,235
137,081 149,166
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9. FBEHESE FHX

9. INCOME TAX CREDIT/EXPENSE

2018 2017
FHE T FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEATR I — BB REH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
—ARFETIB — Tax for the year 3,992 6,053
—BAFE (B8 TEEE — (Oven)/under-provision in respect of
prior year (364) 234
3,628 6,287
BIEABi1E — R B/ Bt Current tax - Macau Complementary Tax
—AREERIA — Tax for the year 123 319
EEARIIE - AEE RIS EFTEH  Current tax - Taiwan Profit - Seeking
Enterprise Income Tax
—AREEHIE — Tax for the year 549 421
BNEARIIE — A ANRIBH Current tax - Japan Profits Tax
—RFEETI — Tax for the year 2,467 =
IEFE B 1E Deferred tax
—-RAFEEFEEZ (5FA) — (Credit)/Charged to profit or loss
Bk (HtaE17) for the year (note 17) (8,887) 2,287
(2,120) 9,314
BEHSHEREBARIHERNZER RHES The group entities incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
HENEBARAHEAMKRYNEREE  H the BVI are tax-exempted as no business is carried out in the
RUENHENENLBEAR A RS ETER Cayman lIslands and the BVI under the laws of the Cayman
R R TIIE - Islands and the BVI respectively.
HZE2017FE12A31 B IFEE - FEMNER JHiEE Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
ST HERE B i A #916.5%5T & - 3 £2018F 12 A 31 estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 December
HIEFE @ (H5THEFEF A # & 2,000,000/ JTi% 2017; and at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of estimated
8.25%=tEEENBEH » M{Hst BT R % A 83 assessable profits and at 16.5% for the portion of the
2,000,000/ 7T K ZB 7 Bl 1Z16.5%5T & ° estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million for the year

ended 31 December 2018.
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FRETE-

REERBEDEMSTIRER EZENH B
A A R B SR b F3225% (20174F : 25% ) Ay
FRRAE-EH E2018F12A31IH L FE AEE
AR ERNE QB EE A Gt R SR
(2017 : &) »

BE2018F12A31ALFE s B2 EXME
BOIRIRR & /8 & @ rO Mt B8 A 7] 60 fb 5t FERF B
MIE17% (20174 :17% ) IR R 5T & -

REAZEENHBARASMARHNBERME
e BERMEGCER (TXHBIBAFNE
Bl ZEHERAFERRITAZ RERE
PIEBKEREEMERMENTLHIA%ELD
34.6% (20174 :31% ) - AR AL BN E 2017
F12A31 8 L FERERE B AN G BT S
)+ BRI 43 42 R (4R B AR 1S R BB 4 o

<l

INCOME TAX CREDIT/EXPENSE (Continued)

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% (2017: 12%)
on the estimated assessable profits of a subsidiary operating
in Macau for the year.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25% (2017:
25%) on the estimated assessable profits of a subsidiary
operating in the PRC for the year. The Group has no
estimated assessable profit arising from the subsidiary
operating in the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: Nil).

Taiwan Profit — Seeking Enterprise Income Tax is calculated
at 17% (2017: 17%) on the estimated assessable profits
of a subsidiary operating in Taiwan for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Subsidiaries operating in Japan are subject to national
corporate income tax, inhabitant tax, and enterprise tax
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “Japan Profits Tax”) in
Japan, which, in aggregate, resulted in effective statutory
income tax rates ranging from approximately 31.1% to
approximately 34.6% (2017: 31%) for the year based on the
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof. No provision for Japan Profits Tax has been provided
for the year ended 31 December 2017 as the Group has no
estimated assessable profits arising in Japan.

20184 %% Annual Report 2018 169



BN [/ 75 & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WIN

iR IR M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
H E2018F12A31H [EFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

gl

FiEHikeE X

BRERMEATENMEHAY RS
T

9. INCOME TAX CREDIT/EXPENSE (Continuea)

BplEspa

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates:

2018 2017
THET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
B FT 13 5L B 7 Profit before income tax 32,944 37,818
BB BFEHE16.5% Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
(20174 : 16.5% ) 5T E M FLIB 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) 5,436 6,240
REMBEMEEENHIE AR Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries
ZRERE 2 S E operating in other jurisdictions (914) (1,430)
NAMBIRE OB BT E Tax effect of non-deductible items 1,253 2,093
BARKEENRE T2 Tax effect of non-taxable items (2,799) (3,245)
RERTHEEENHETE Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised 369 (85)
AERBTEEENTBLE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 938 5,379
BEARERTIEEENE A Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised (2,847) -
iﬂ?\iﬁﬁﬁﬁwfﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ RER & Tax effect of previously unrecognised tax
BEEFIBEEENTETE losses now recognised as deferred tax
assets (3,986) -
BRABE Lﬂff S 7 T8 A5 R Effect on deferred tax balances resulting from
FTELEMNFE an increase in applicable tax rate 475 =
BAEFE (B8 TERE (Over)/under-provision in prior year (364) 234
HAt Others 319 128
Fries (Ee) FHx Income tax (credit)/expense (2,120) 9,314
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10. BiRAEF

11.

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

2018 2017
FB T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
27 Earnings

RRNFEB A B Profit attributable to owners of the Company 34,817 28,559
2018 2017
T8 I A%
000 ‘000

BHEE Number of shares
LB E B Number of ordinary shares 502,450 502,450

HZE2017F K2018F12A31 B ILFE » NA AW
EEEBERGD WEREERFEEREALRER

Diluted earnings per share were the same as the basic
earnings per share as the Company had no dilutive potential

FHIEE o shares during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.
Iz 2 11. DIVIDENDS
2018 2017
FET AT
HK$’000 HIK$’ 000
BT B AR BB AR 1AL Interim dividends of HK1 cent
(20174 : 27%84L) (2017: HK2 cents) per share paid 5,024 10,049
Bt EFERAREFRIEN Final dividends of HK1 cent
(20174 : 27%4l) (2017: HK2 cents) per share paid
in respect of previous year 5,025 10,049
10,049 20,098

BEEEBRRERARETRABM (2017F 178
i) RERSGIREEERRBFASEB - #
KR B W AR ZELE M RERIEEMNRE -

The directors have recommended a final dividend of HK4
cents (2017: HK1 cent) per share which is to be approved
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed

dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these

consolidated financial statements.
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12. EEFH N

12.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

EEHNIFRELT : Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows:
HeREM MiER
ENEA RERA
ne (Hita) (Hib) BARGHEIER &3t
Salaries Discretionary
and other and
benefits performance  Retirement
in kind bonuses scheme
Fee (note a) (note b) contributions Total
TER TER TER TER TiER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
2018
HITEE Executive directors
RXH Yuen Man Ying - 1,976 896 93 2,965
BEZ Huen Kwok Chuen - 1,615 768 77 2,460
2 8 Leung Shing Chiu - 1,661 768 74 2,503
B Lee Po Fun - 1,605 768 74 2,447
- 6,857 3,200 318 10,375
BUHHTEE Inclependent non-executive directors
R Chan Kim Fai 195 - - - 195
Bt 1 Tang Koon Hung Eric 179 - - - 179
=2EH Wong Lai Ming 168 - - - 168
542 - - - 542
542 6,857 3,200 318 10,917
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12. EEFHM 2)

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

HekEM WiE Rk
ENET REEL
ik (Hiita) (Hiztp) BRI EIE 5T w@ar
Salaries  Discretionary
and other and
benefits  performance Retirement
in kind bonuses scheme
Fee (note a) (note b)  contributions Total
FTAT THET FTABT THEL THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2017
HiTEZE Executive directors
RXE Yuen Man Ying - 1,886 1,036 90 3,012
w2 Huen Kwok Chuen - 1,555 888 74 2,517
2K 4 Leung Shing Chiu - 1,587 888 72 2,547
FEAR Lee Po Fun - 1,527 888 72 2,487
- 6,555 3,700 308 10,563
BUIRTEE Independent non-executive directors
PR fex v Chan Kim Fai 186 - = = 186
B 1 Tang Koon Hung Eric 171 - - = 171
=2BH Wong Lai Ming 161 = = = 161
518 - - - 518
518 6,555 3,700 308 11,081
Hiita - ERBEAREFESEKE N ENRDTH Note a: Being “Salaries and other benefits in kind” paid or
TEEZ [ REMEYREAN] payable to executive directors of the Company in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Group.
Kiztb - BIERRIAEATIZXZAREBRRIRL K H Note b: The discretionary and performance bonuses are

MEESHEMEE -

NEE2017E K2018FE12A31R ILFEE  HhEE
EREEMAEE -

determined by reference to the Group’s performance

and approved by the remuneration committee.

No directors waived any emoluments during the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017.
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13. AZESHMAL

AEBLAZRSFHMALH  HH (20176 0
B)RERAES WENME IR EXHE12
Mo T—% (Q017F: —H) AL T :

13. THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2017: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note
12 above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2017: one)
individual were as follows:

2018 2017

FET FAET

HK$’000 HK$'000

FekEMEYREF Salaries and other benefits in kind 931 1,013
E1E MR IRIELL Discretionary and performance bonuses 390 321
IRRETEI R Retirement scheme contributions 18 18
1,339 1,352

RRFMFEEEATHHFMEELT

The emoluments of the highest paid non-director fell within
the following band:

2018 2017

A" AE

Number of Number of

individual individual

1,000,001 7T £1,500,0007% 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 1

ENEEAFEREREAR (TREAATE
) HHBEDT

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management (excluding directors of the Company) were
within the following bands:

2018 2017

AE AH

Number of Number of

individual(s) individual(s)

= 21,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 1
1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 1
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14. Y% - B KR

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

KAKE 8
Tt BEET HENFEE BRF BREE nE HEXE Eoh
Freehold Hotel Leasehold Office Computer Motor Furniture
land building  improvements equipment equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
TEL TEL TEL TER TAL TEL TEL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2017%1518 At1 January 2017
e Cost 120,604 - 40,046 12,814 36,513 8,752 7,00 225,749
2itHE Accumulated depreciation - - (34,607) (11,624) (25,928) (883) (5,648) (78,690)
REFE Net carrying amount 120,604 - 5,439 1,190 10,585 7,869 1,372 147,059
BR017E12A3ALEE For the year ended
31 December 2017
ENEERE Opening net carrying amount 120,604 - 5,439 1,190 10,585 7,869 1,372 147,059
REBIREA (H#15) Transfer from construction
in progress (note 15) = 132,607 78,800 1,965 = = 547 213919
HE Additions 9,721 - 2,130 3,203 2,786 12,579 5,678 36,097
& Disposal = = (1) = = (1,173) = (1,184)
ik Depreciation = (442) (7,491) (539) (3,226) (2,642) (619) (14,959)
L Exchange adjustment 5,497 425 276 20 10 290 2 6,540
EXEEFE Closing net carrying amount 135,822 132,590 79,143 5,839 10,155 16,923 7,000 387,472
W2017F12B31 R At 31 December 2017 and
20181A1A 1 January 2018
B Cost 135,822 133,034 120,240 18,008 39,309 20,089 13,266 479,763
ZithE Accumulated depreciation - (444) (41,097) (12,164) (29,154) (3,166) (6,266) (92,291)
REFE Net carrying amount 135,822 132,590 79,143 5,839 10,155 16,923 7,000 387,472
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14. Y% BB RE (2)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continueq)
KA%E GER
1it BERT HENEHE BARE ERRE RE BEkE @it
Freehold Hotel  Leasehold Office Computer Motor Furniture
land building improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
iR TiEn TiEx TER TiEx TiEn TiEn TiEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HR22018512A31BLEE For the year ended
31 December 2018
ENEEFE Opening net carrying amount 135,822 132,590 79,143 5,839 10,155 16,923 7,000 387,472
HE Additions 72,102 4,448 1,793 408 1,205 - 859 80,815
ik Depreciation - (2,816) (27,869) (1,535) (3,264) (4,108) (1,778) (41,370)
AR Exchange adjustment 6,696 4,268 2,290 133 7 492 191 14,077
EXRREFE Closing net carrying amount 214,620 138,490 55,357 4,845 8,108 13,307 6,272 440,994
20185125311 At 31 December 2018
A Cost 214,620 141,784 124,618 18,560 40,520 20,703 14,333 575,138
Zithe Accumulated depreciation - (3,294) (69,261) (18,715) (32,417) (7,396) (8,061) (134,144)
REFE Net carrying amount 214,620 138,490 55,357 4,845 8,103 13,307 6,272 440,99

2018512 H31 8 A& B E 5 5l & #f R E %
1B 49140,255,000/% 7T (20174 : 126,289,000/
JT) * 138,490,0007% 7t (20174 : 132,590,000/
7T ) }.8,861,000/% 7T (20174 : 10,937,000/% 7T )
IR BANH K A ZERE L i B R T MR E AE
RASEEERORITHER (HIFE25) -

176 =EEERAER-DE EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

As at 31 December 2018, freehold land, hotel building
and motor vehicles of the Group located in Japan with a
net carrying amount of approximately of HK$140,255,000
(2017: HK$126,289,000), HK$138,490,000 (2017:
and HK$8,861,000
HK$10,937,000), respectively, were pledged to secure the
bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 25).

HK$132,590,000)

(2017:
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15. EE I

15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

2018 2017
FB T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
M1A18 At 1 January
FHRAE Opening carrying amount 4,578 39,466
NE Additions 28,252 177,126
HEEME  BEREE Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(HiaE14) (note 14) = (213,919)
HE 5, 38 B Exchange adjustment (48) 1,905
M12A31H At 31 December 32,782 4,578
M2831H At 31 December
(DN Cost 32,782 4,578
REOREEE Accumulated impairment losses = =
BREFE Net carrying amount 32,782 4,578

R2018F12 AT HMERTREE SN A A HEE

BB RA AE RBEET

Construction in progress as at 31 December 2018 mainly

represents hot spring bath building and hotel building being

constructed in Japan.

HE2018F12A31BIFEE HEF B L For the year ended 31 December 2018, imputed interests of
126,0007% 7T (20174 : 1,183,000 7t) (&L approximately HK$126,000 (2017: HK$1,183,000) (note 25)
B)EERER/RERTIE - were capitalised in construction in progress.

REE2017F12A31H IEFE A B A KBRE &
EBFEIEHKAEBARA (AR BEEER
ERE) BEBEYE - BE M&E-

to property, plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the construction
of hotel building in Osaka, Japan was completed and the
related costs including capitalised interests were transferred
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16. REtE R R 16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2018 2017
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
JEIH B EFE Share of net assets 10,611 9,242
JiE L B = X B BR 3R Amount due from an associate 2,348 562
JE AT B & A B BR AR Amounts due to associates 3,900 3,478

(a)

20174 2018512 H31 B Hy Bt & A 7] 5F

EmT

AEER

Bl
i 2
Place of
incorporation/

Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2018 and

2017 are as follows:

R T i R i
Bok
Percentage of
interest held

Name of company operations indirectly  Principal activities

RRERTHBEER AR ([EGLER]) E40i] 38% MEBRMEASIRITE

EGL Tours Korea Co., Ltd. (‘EGL Korea”) Korea Provision of inbound package
tours in Korea

KA BHEGLRE (TEGLHRAE]) =N 38% MAARABREAFIRTE

Kabushiki Kaisha EGL Okinawa* (‘EGL Okinawa”)  Japan Provision of inbound package
tours in Okinawa, Japan

et BRE ([BRE]) AR 1% REXREEMIRTE

Niti Niti Travel Co., Ltd. (“Niti Niti Travel”) Japan Provision of local package

* X A AR

178 =EiERAER-DE EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

*

tours in Japan

English name for identification purpose only
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6. MEHE

NEIER (&)

R20176 12208  AEEE—ZHIE=FRN
BAMY HAFE Z#HERRETEEKANAR
IR E HIRTTE o Bt A Al AL = 201812 A 31
HEFEERBEER-

REZ2016F 12831 IEFE  AEBURSR
83,666,000 Tt —EBULE =T WEE XX
T(EB)BEREERAR([EEXRT]) (—
RAREBEMK LR FEES —KE2ERBA
A AR 20% Em AW E AR 2 EFEXEB R
RABFERE - EZRAREEHEERTR
BEEAFE ] BRIRE AR AR E QA #E
HoMNEE2017F12A31BILEFE - EEXEXTH
FARMBEAARRREZEFTR AN R ARKAT8E

AR ERE - EHit - REERTHMBEEZEAL
3,839,000/ T B FA20174F 52 & R B ° 1201846

16.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

On 20 December 2017, the Group set up Niti Niti Travel with
an independent third party in Japan. The primary business of
this associate is provision of local package tours in Japan.
The associate has commenced its business during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
acquired 20% equity interest in Guideme (Hong Kong)
Network Technology Company Limited (“Guideme”), a
company which was incorporated in Hong Kong and had a
wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC, from an independent
third party for a cash consideration of HK$3,666,000.
The primary business of this associate was holding an
investment in the PRC. The directors considered that the
Group only had significant influence in Guideme and thus the
investment was accounted for as interest in an associate.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, Guideme

BooR REEREBIBTHA—BBYLE=HH was underperformed and the directors of the Company
EHERBE NN SRS - BEBES ARl 2 I considered that the investment might not be recoverable
HEBIBETNERNERIBRFER - in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the entire interest in
Guideme of approximately HK$3,839,000 was fully impaired
in 2017. On 29 June 2018, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest in the associate to an independent third party
with consideration HK$1. Gain on disposal of the associate
in amount of HK$1 was recognised in profit or loss during
the year.
FrAEZEBMEATHEER/NN Bt EFRE All these associates are of small scale and, accordingly, the
HEHARERMS T TTEEK- directors considered they are immaterial to the Group.
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BNTIRES (&) 16.

b HEEHEE

16. HABE INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)  Summarised financial information

©

TXYHEYERAEREABENEZ AR 28 Set out below is the summarised financial information
BRI E of the associates which are accounted for using equity
method:
EXXT EGLEEH EGLY 48 AHE @t
EGL EGL Niti Niti
Guideme Korea Okinawa Travel Total
THER THET THET THx THET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B ZE2018F12H31H For the year ended
LEE 31 December 2018
AEEBENREE:  Aggregate amount of the
Group'’s associates:
— &R ~ Profit or loss - 8,374 56 (299) 8,131
—HEt2ERE - Other comprehensive
income - (842) 19 (30) (853)
FHEKEBE Total comprehensive income - 7,532 75 (329) 7,278
EXAT EGLEE R EGLMH 4 =R=F Bt
EGL EGL Niti Niti
Guideme Korea Okinawa Travel Total
TAT THT TAT THT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BZ2017F12A31H For the year ended
THEE 31 December 2017
AEEHENABE Aggregate amount of the
Group’s associates:
—a M EE ~ Profit or loss (2,684) 6,415 654 - 4,385
—Hin2EKE ~ Other comprehensive
income - 2,427 2 - 2,425
ZHNZEHE Total comprehensive income (2,684) 8,842 652 - 6,810

FEUR / FE{HHE 2 A A BR

BEKEER-

RBEER 2ER

180 =EmiE®RAERLT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

(¢) Amounts due from/to associates are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.
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17. BEEBIEREE &f&

RAFENMBEFEEINEERAEEMAE

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

Details of the deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

FESHFBWOT : and movements during the current and prior year are as
follows:
B
I EN BRAE
k% EEIR Hity (Hst) @st
Tax losses
Property, carried
plant and Construction forward
equipment in progress Other (note) Total
FET FET FAET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
201761818 At 1 January 2017 (1,923) (130) (430) 1,189 (1,294)
RAFERBZFAN/ Credit/(charged) to profit or loss
(k) (H7z9) for the year (note 9) (2,479) 118 (265) 339 (2,287)
BE B Translation adjustment (120) ®) 21) - (149)
R2017F12A318 K At 31 December 2017 and
2018F181H 1 January 2018 (4,522) (20) (716) 1,528 (3,730)
RAFEBZFAN/ Credit/(charged) to profit or loss
(fkr) (Haz9) for the year (note 9)
—EERBOTREER - Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 4,607 (66) 467 3,403 8,411
- HEEHHTE - Effect of change in tax rate 256 () 21 203 476
4,863 (70) 488 3,606 8,887
REB B KRS ER Adjustment of deferred tax asset
FIORABRELERBEE pursuant to HKFRS 15 - - 1,307 - 1,307
kS Translation adjustment 26 @] (17) 156 163
M2018%F12831H At 31 December 2018 367 (92) 1,062 5,290 6,627
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17.

EERMEESE Q& #)

AT B 3RE 77 m B R IR SR DT

17.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (Continued)

The following is the analysis of deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

2018 2017

FET FAET

HK$’000 HK$’000

BEETIREE Deferred tax assets 8,301 1,528
BERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 1,674 5,258

RAREHR AEEREBELETEEBLD
11,125,000/ 7T (20174 : 12,483,000/ 7T ) * A
1R HA PR VEHE B 2 AR IS 1R Y 8 B B SR 2R FE AR T
Fl| o 7N 62 B IR R AP B EE A B TA 5 18 493,688,000/
JC (20174 : 2,150,000/8 70 ) i§ ALE A EIH - LA
KA B N E A 518 4919,526,00078 7t (20174F ¢
21,226,000/ 70 ) A JLE A EIHR - A4 45 R SR fE
AR c RBEBHBARIKBARMBAREELZ
118 B 1B R iR 2 R IE R I & B 9 Kl 497,904,000
7 7T (20174F : 9,262,0007 7t ) & #911,537,000
BT (2017F - &) cmAMB T 2B IWEE 8
FEEE PBRBRNEME QR EE 2 RIBE
BRAEREHBEE DHRZEAARARR
PRASP] BE EE A FE AR B s AR SH A TR /& 48 o

182 =EmiE®RAER-LE EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$11,125,000
(2017: HK$12,483,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. The Group also had tax losses
arising in the PRC of approximately HK$3,688,000 (2017:
HK$2,150,000) that will expire in five years and losses
arising in Japan of approximately HK$19,526,000 (2017:
HK$21,226,000) that will expire in nine years for offsetting
against future taxable profits, respectively. Deferred tax
assets have been recognised for tax losses arising from a
subsidiary in Hong Kong of approximately HK$7,904,000
(2017: HK$9,262,000) and from a subsidiary in Japan of
approximately HK$11,537,000 (2017: Nil). Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of the remaining
tax losses, including the tax losses arising from the other
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, the PRC and Japan, as it is not
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised in the foreseeable future.
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18. & 18. INVENTORIES
2018 2017
FHET FATT
HK$’000 HK$’000
A E RS m Merchandise for sale 4,273 9,906
19. % 2 FELISC;H\E 19. TRADE RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 EYER Trade receivables 10,079 4,296
WEZEZAH NEEHR AEBRREZE The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are
SREBERMRE DT T not impaired as at the end of the reporting period, based on
invoice date, is as follows:
2018 2017
FET FH&IT
HK$’000 HK$’000
0-90&% 0 - 90 days 9,672 4,200
91-180K 91 - 180 days 326 56
181-365K~ 181 — 365 days 81 5
B iA365K Over 365 days - 35
10,079 4,296
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19. BEZEWER &)

AEEELTESEPEEHNBER B A10
RKEQOK - BEZNHA AEBRBEZESHE
W BRI BRE D ATAA T ¢

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group has a policy of granting trade customers with
credit terms of generally 10 days to 90 days. The ageing
analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are not
impaired, based on due date, is as follows:

2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RE AN ROR(E Neither past due nor impaired 1,347 2,788
BELR=EAH Past due within three months 8,334 1,433

MR ==EA2ME Past due more than three months but
within six months 317 40

BHAR SR ZE—F 2 Past due more than six months but

within one year 81 35
10,079 4,296

M2018F12A31H MM &S EERK A il
FZHEMEAE AT ARENE S ERIRSE
AEBYURFEM MESHEASEEERITN
REEAEH-— KM s AEELTREZSH
BRACMERIEAMEARSE -

AEEEREB MBS REERIFW PR ARG
EERBREEBRELBE ZRELFY
BB ZRERRAFRATRMEEBIRRE-
RIAERHEERR ESRUEREREXEBRE
EREFUERASHRES R -BREEEETE
AT L& R - R2018F12A31H  AAREE
RANEZRERECRIFENBRHAEEBEYL
REK-

184 =EmiE®RAERLDE EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December
2018 was the carrying amount mentioned above. Trade
receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to
a large number of independent customers that had a good
track record of credit with the Group. In general, the Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permit the use of
lifetime ECLs provision for all trade receivables. To measure
the ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
ECLs also incorporate forward-looking information. As at
31 December 2018, the directors of the Company consider
ECLs against the gross amounts of trade receivables is
immaterial.
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20. Fl & AR H U iR

20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
FE&T FHETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
IERBEE Non-current asset
& (Kita) Deposits (note a) 2,669 =
BEWE WEMEEBEEMNRK Prepayment for acquisition of property,
(Hatb) plant and equipment (note b) = 6,657
2,669 6,657
RBEE Current assets
H {th 2 Uk BR Other receivables 14,728 33,835
& (Kita) Deposits (note a) 11,670 11,616
TEfT K Prepayments 135,717 82,960
162,115 128,411

RS R AEENRSEERRT LS RREK
REVEREE - AR EW EF A TR RIEER-

pise

(a) ZEBEEELH2,771,0008 T B —REFE
AE RETARAR (KB NEERS
(20174 : 2,771,000/ 7T ) - ZIEE BEER %
BEREEHEREE-

(o) ANEEFUEEBAFBEOIELHE—FBELE
= HR2017F10A23R ] L EE i REA
970,000,000 E [E * E F10%# £ {E97,000,000 B
(1HE M 496,657,000/ 7T ) B T8 14 I 720174
12A31 8% AN K - WEERFANTHK H &
BO T A

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is

the carrying amounts of each class of receivables mentioned

above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

Notes:

(@)

The amount included rental deposits paid to a related
company, Great Port Limited (“Great Port”), of approximately
HK$2,771,000 (2017: HK$2,771,000). The amount due is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable at the end of the rental
periods.

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party for acquisition of four parcels of
land in Okinawa, Japan at a consideration of JPY970,000,000
on 23 October 2017 of which 10% of the consideration in
the amount of JPY97,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,657,000) was prepaid and recorded as prepayment as
at 31 December 2017. During the year, the acquisition was
completed and the remaining balance was paid.
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21, IRIERITEFURRITERRERFHSE 21. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AT

BANKS AND ON HAND

2018 2017

F#ET TAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

RITIF K Cash at banks 227,896 286,996

EFRE Cash on hand 8,414 5,957

236,310 292,953

o ERERITE K Less: Pledged bank deposits (6,307) (29,583)
HRAEMBRRAR ZBITERE Cash at banks and on hand per consolidated

EFRE statement of financial position 230,003 263,370

AEENREMRESEVREERSRRNTE
RA R ZEF K BRRITFERMIRBITNIS
PR B MG HRITF 5K FA2018F 124318 »
HERMRNF0.15%%E2.75% (20174 : 0.001%
E3%) ' REEHAR A=A AR -

M2018F12H31H  AN&E B H T RITF KL
6,307,000/ 7T (20174F : 29,583,000/ Jr ) 1 ##
RIBIT EAMRRASRENETE = FHAE
RENAVIEIRY) R A EBIRTTIE TR ELR

186 =mirE®RAER-LE EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents comprise bank
deposits carrying interests at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates and short-term bank deposits carrying
interests at prevailing market interest rates ranging from
0.15% to 2.75% (2017: 0.001% to 3%) per annum as at 31
December 2018, with an original maturity of three months or
less.

As at 31 December 2018, certain bank deposits of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$6,307,000 (2017:
HK$29,583,000) were pledged to banks as securities for
letters of guarantee issued to certain third parties on behalf
of the Group and as securities for bank borrowings of the
Group.
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N

22,

23.

E 5 ESTER 22. TRADE PAYABLES

Z 5 FETEE Y= B HIAR b2 B AN [B) 4L B 7 A Ak 9 (6% The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
REBRMAE  BEA1KXIS0K - BEEESNR terms agreed with different suppliers, which normally range
EMEDCBEHBEHE—3) NilEHK - from 1 day to 30 days. Based on the receipts of services and
REBE FENENERHBRTWOT : goods, which normally coincided with the invoice dates, the
ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end

of the reporting period is as follows:
2018 2017
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
0-90K 0 - 90 days 55,105 50,039
91-180K 91- 180 days 2,117 2,178
181-365K 181 — 365 days 1,339 495
B #E365K Over 365 days 188 440
58,749 53,152

EstFIE - BT 2 R EBESER 23. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND

OTHER PAYABLES

2018 2017

FHET AT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE & ZRIE Accrued expenses 13,406 14,069
BWRFERI € (Mit24) Customer deposits received (note 24) = 127,217
E At & 1+ BR Other payables 50,734 46,250
64,140 187,536
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SHaE 24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
H2018%F 20184 20174
12A31H 1A1H 12H31H
(Bi5#2(a))
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
(note 2(a))
FERT FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHEEELR: Contract liabilities arising from:
TR AR B 5 7 Travel Related Business
—IRKITE - BERTEMK — Sales of package tours, FIT Products
IRITHBEEMEE and travel related products 141,842 126,350 =
—REEFTHH — Unexpired discount vouchers 7,878 7,920 =
B IE %5 Hotel Business 495 867 =
150,215 135,137 -

HANABSEBREEZ —RUIERDT

BHRBERRANEPIRERER LEMEERE
HMABBERFE  WIEP ZEMR -

AEEFAHRN —F AR & an IR FH IR A
BIIREANABZHRTER-

188 =mirE®RAERLE EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities are as follows:

Travel Related Business

Sales of package tours, FIT Products and travel related
products

Contract liabilities represent advance payments received
from customers for services that have not yet been
performed to the customers or the control of the products
have not been transferred to the customers.

The Group expects to deliver the goods or services to satisfy
the remaining obligations of these contract liabilities within
one year or less.
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sHIAE ®) 24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)
Vigi:Zi=lz Y A D) Travel Related Business (Continued)
K ] Unexpired discount vouchers

AEERETEFPREKRERBERTHNSG X
SERUHESEE AN RKMFBEEINITE
RIRITHBER CEAERN UREHZEHE
BOHBEBLEERZRRRENAE -GHNA
BEREPHENL IR AE MRS X E H B B i
RS o

12018128318  HELEERE BT H15H 78
R TRAORBHR S BEIEEEE RT,878,000%
TOHARZENNEFERHAA-_+THMEA K&
BN =+ HE R AERZURES -

B Jo T
AHBaEAENAAEFRMBEREMEE TS
Z TR

AEBERAR —FHUARRBRBUABTZES
WBBEZHR &R

The Group provides discount vouchers to certain customers
for travel related business. The Group determines this offer
represents a material right to purchase additional package
tours or travel related products in the future two years
and recognised as a contract liability based on the relative
stand-alone price of the performance obligations in the
contract. The contract liability recognises as revenue when
the customer redeems it for goods or services or when it
expires.

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation in connection to the unexpired discount vouchers
is HK$7,878,000 and the Group will recognise this revenue
within 24 months as the discount vouchers are effective for
24 months.

Hotel Business

Contract liabilities represent advance payments received
from customers for hotel services that have not yet been
rendered to the customers.

The Group expects to deliver the services to satisfy the

remaining obligations of these contract liabilities within one
year or less.
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24. EH&AaE (&) 24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)
BAIE EEE) Movements in contract liabilities
2018
FET
HK$’000
1 A1 H & Balance as at 1 January 135,137
AR BN FE W= Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
(GTAFTEHARE) recognising revenue during the year that was
MmiEK & BB EZmD included in the contract liabilities at the beginning
of the year (131,441)
A b 5% AR B8 2 7% OB JE ¥ 75 Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
(TERERALRFEEE®ER A KE billing in advance of Travel Related Business and
ZIBH)BREMERE L Hotel Business, excluding those recognised as
B & 2180 revenue in the current year 146,519
M12A31 B 8 &4 Balance as at 31 December 150,215
Hist: REBEYIBERS ST BRELERNE155EM Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative
HHA 222K WHN2018FE1 A1 A AR FEN 4 effect method and adjusted the opening balance at 1 January
oM BE B ERELRNF155RE RE Bl 2018. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously
B4 (fF23) 22O EHDEE [A44 included as “customer deposits received” (note 23) have been
BEl- reclassified to “contract liabilities”.
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25. RITER 25. BANK BORROWINGS
2018 2017
T FETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
B Current

RITE K BT Bank borrowings, secured 34,836 19,690

IR E Non-current
SRITER BHEA Bank borrowings, secured 234,802 231,241
269,638 250,931

MR20184F12 5318 » 49269,638,0005% 7T (2017
F : 250,931,000/ 70 ) B 2R 17 18 X5 LA B BR A

As at 31 December 2018, the bank borrowings of
approximately HK$269,638,000 (2017: HK$250,931,000)

B #49287,606,000/% 7T (20174F : 269,816,000/%
TL)RE T BE REZEERR (MiE14) o
AN - SRTT 18 BE P 496,585,000 7T (20174 -
8,060,000 7T) Il — R B AMB A Gl#— & IE
ZRRAR R 2 WD FEAEHE R o

2018512 A31H » NREEE R & KBRPIIRT
METER —RRITHBE INERERAGE
AREEHOFE R4 85 /R142,438,000% 7T -
ZEMERUATERER:

o ARFAREMEHLEER:

s RXEEAE BEERLE RRHEERT
B AL RENBEALER:

e #95,609,0008 T AL E AR N7 REA -

were secured by charges over certain property, plant and
equipment with aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
HK$287,606,000 (2017: HK$269,816,000) (note 14). In
addition, among these bank borrowings, an amount of
approximately HK$6,585,000 (2017: HK$8,060,000) was
also secured by a property of a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary in Japan.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group accepted the facilities
letter issued by banks in Hong Kong and Macau offering
for grant of guarantees, general banking facilities, foreign
exchange facilities and corporate credit cards in aggregate
amounts of HK$142,438,000 and the facilities were secured
by:

° corporate guarantees provided by the Company;

personal guarantee provided by Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr.
Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee
Po Fun;

a charge over deposits owned by the Group of
approximately HK$5,609,000.

20184 %% Annual Report 2018 191



BN [/ 75 & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WIN

iR IR M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
H E2018F12A31H [EFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

25. SRITIERK (&)

R2018F12A31H IR 17 & W IR AN -

RITERNGRAEE (MREEENEERR
ERA) 5T & - IR BIR A SRR SHAR AT

=-°

RITEREBREAEBRFANE1.22%E1.67%
(2017F :119%E1.67% ) H#IHK AT =
FAREEEHEF B 126,000 7T (20174 -
1,183,000/ 7T ) °

REREHR  |RITERBBER TXAAREBEE
HHEIEE -

25. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, none of the bank borrowing has
been drawn down.

The bank borrowings are initially measured at fair value,
net of directly attributable costs incurred and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

The bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using effective interest rate of 1.22% to
1.67% (2017: 1.19% to 1.67%) per annum and imputed
interest of approximately HK$126,000 (2017: HK$1,183,000)
was incurred during the year.

At the end of each reporting period, total bank borrowings
were scheduled to repay as follows:

2018 2017

FET FAET

DATAT (M) - Analysed into (note): HK$’000 HK$’'000
—F R Within one year 34,836 19,690
—FEETHEAMRE Over one year, but within two years 29,176 25,850
MEAEETNBEBRARTE Over two years, but within five years 85,607 77,381
FEFLAE Over five years 120,019 128,010
269,638 250,931

Kt BRERRDPISHRBIVIRER G EMESOESE Note: The amounts due shown in the repayment schedule are
B HEIB R - based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

192 =EiERAERLT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

agreement.
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25. SRITER (&) 25. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)
R2018F12 A31 H W RITEFEBHY| W T - Details of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2018 are

stated below:

g ZilpS BRR
Principal Interest Repayment
amount rate terms
TER
HK$’000
B EFEMER Loan denominated in Japanese Yen (*JPY’) 263,053 FREA=EAH ZART-FREE
RARTEAEFE

i EEF%1.00%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 12 years

Offered Rate

+1.00% per annum

NBEFENER Loan denominated in JPY 6585 ETEFANRIL2%  BREFAEE
Fixed rate Payable within

1.2% per annum 5 years

R2017FE12 A31 B RITERFEBHY WO T - Details of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2017 are

stated below:

N Gp ERER
Principal Interest Repayment
amount rate terms
TET
HK$'000
ABEFEHER Loan denominated in JPY 242871 FMER=MAH ART_FRER
RRARITRAERE
£ 7%1.00%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 12 years

Offered Rate
+1.00% per annum

M B EEFHEMER Loan denominated in JPY 8,060 M E1.2% BARIFRER
Fixed rate Payable within
1.2% per annum 5 years

20184 %% Annual Report 2018 193



BN [/ 75 & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WIN

iR IR M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
H E2018F12A31H [EFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

26.

27.

E

M2018F12A31H 3L B AWM B EW 2 IB1EK
RATEH BB s - TR B HEEGRR A E AL RE
BEZHEEMEZERERDOMETHAE - ZK
RERBEEREUILZFABERTE  F 2T
EBREGEEREELERBEEENKAGR -

TEEMIA

MR2018F12H3 1R AEEBEBFEREEEAEN S
¥E #9233,899,0007% 7T ( 493,300,400,000H &)
(20174 : 8 ) B R B B )E B) & & 58 A1) 3R 32 B DARK

ﬂf/ﬁz@)ﬁEZISETEEWETTF?MJ%% o %I
B R2019F1 H4B A% - [E)m B Hi 22023412
A318 -

MN2018F12A31H » NE B ER % %%IJM?HH
BHEBRNRESRERRTE MAALEED
2,055,000/ 7T (20174 : &) PN EZRIEIL -

201812 A1 A R B AR X = B A R (EE
H—RBUEEGEMAREZSERTEERA
AfEHEE FXREHNAABEAREEF K
AERAERBHANITHINEETLRE B
HEMRKIEREOESRIE N 2 HETE
B o
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26.

27.

PROVISION

As at 31 December 2018,
reinstatement cost of a leasehold property in Japan, which

there is a provision for

relates to the estimated cost of restoring the leasehold
property to its original state at the end of the lease in
accordance with the lease terms. The cost is recognised
as leasehold improvements and is depreciated over the
remaining term of the lease. The main uncertainty relates to
estimating the cost that will be incurred at the end of the
lease.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding
floating-to-fixed interest rate swap with a notional contract
amount of approximately HK$233,899,000 (approximately
JPY3,300,400,000) (2017: nil) to reduce the impact of
interest rate fluctuation on the secured bank borrowings in
Japan. The swap will start on 4 January 2019 with a maturity
date on 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recognised such
interest rate swap contract as an effective cash flow hedge
with fair value of approximately HK$2,055,000 (2017: nil)
deferred in equity.

The fair value of the outstanding interest rate swap as at 31
December 2018 was valued by Roma Appraisal Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuers. The fair value of
interest rate swap is the estimated amount that the Group
would receive or pay to terminate the swaps at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account observable interest
rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap counter
parties.
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28. A& 28. SHARE CAPITAL
£ 4= gk}
Number Amount
T A% FAT
‘000 HK$’000
EE Authorised
R EEO. 18 0.2 ZiH R Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
R2017F1 818 2017F & At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017
2018412 A31H and 2018 1,000,000 100,000
£ 4E] -
Number Amount
T A% FAT
000 HK$’000
EERTRBEZEER Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid
M2017F1 818 - 2017F &k At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017
201812 831H and 2018 502,450 50,245
29. f#fE 29. RESERVES
REBHEHEEH  EBENGEEREREH RN - Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set
BaNREEEERENNAT: out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The natures and purposes of reserves within equity are as
follows:
B Share premium
NEBEIRHD S BERIEAN N T =TI H P18 KB The share premium account of the Group represents the
BARAANRDETIROEBEZES - excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of

the Company’s shares issued.

A HEE Merger reserve
NEELHEBERHEBAT IR ERARAKE The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
[ B A T8 B 3T AN E(E 2 PRy =58 o between the investment costs in subsidiaries and the

nominal value of the issued share capital of the Group’s
subsidiaries.
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29. % (2

SME (165
AEBENIMNERBRREBINEBERBE QRS
ARB2INEEHEL Z5 -

B A

R B B IEREN E4NAVIETEIR € R = 4
TR SR RERTEH IR RE8 A
RIS REHPTNEPTAERAABEZR ZFE
AR D -

JEEE
AEENEERBERERFIEMR LN —RER
MEBLR RRERTHE ORF) BRARRAE
BEEMKH —KBRMBAR ELRITH
Pin BR R BB -

RERM (EAH) $37716 MB AR AR L &
o5 BB R FIEREERME BEEREBEIZ
N AP AB0% K9 7K F » 7320174 2018412 A 31
B AEMEEDNERRRANS0% 25 F
EE TR RED IR

RIBEEREER AR — KR A EEMKILZ
BB A R ZB B E10% MR & ME RIEE M
EERBEINRERZARIBRABKFE-

BIEF B QAL BRERITHE ORI BRAF
(R BEEMASZZHBRAR) BRFEELAERE
FA(EEEBTEFEEEREZ)BELE10%EEATE
HET ErACHREEHBEINEEEMELD
50%0F - RIFB R G ELE — T BE - X EF B
A AREKEBEFEEBERIEMNEMERN- K
M ZELERBEESNERTEDABRREREZR
#35 A T & R H50%7K F - B 220174 K% 2018
F12A31 B IEFE - BRIk T ORI AR A
AR ELERT
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29. RESERVES (Continueaq)

Foreign exchange reserve

Foreign exchange reserve of the Group represents the
exchange differences on translation of the foreign operations
and associates into presentation currency of the Company.

Hedging reserve

Hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of
the cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging
instruments used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent
recognition of the hedged cash flow in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges in note
4(h)A(vii).

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve of the Group is contributed by EGL Tours
(Macau) Company Limited, a subsidiary incorporated in
Macau and limited by quotas, and Hit Travel Service Co. Ltd,
a subsidiary incorporated in Taiwan and limited by quotas.

Under the Macau Commercial Code Article 377, a subsidiary
is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of profit after
taxation to the statutory reserve until the balance of the
reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of the company’s
share capital. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
statutory reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiary’s share
capital. Statutory reserve is not distributable.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, a subsidiary
of the Company incorporated in Taiwan is required to set
aside 10% of its profit after taxation to the statutory reserve
until the balance of the reserve reaches a level equivalent to
the company’s share capital.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, EGL Tours
(Shenzhen) Company Limited, a subsidiary incorporated
in the PRC, is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory net profit after taxation (after offsetting any prior
years’ losses) to the statutory reserve fund. When the
balance of the statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of
the entity’s registered capital, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or to increase the registered capital.
However, such balance of the statutory reserve fund must
be maintained at a minimum of 50% of the registered capital
after such usages. For the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017, there was no profit generated by EGL Tours
(Shenzhen) Company Limited.



%

m

T e M IE R
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZ=2018F12 A31H IF FZ For the year ended 31 December 2018

T B

30. BARHERTE

A m) B A e B e AT &) ([R1811) 2014411
HA13HERERH#LE -

A&

H2014F11 A28A® FEIMB R A TF 1R
Birdl EEZ2REMNBEELHEMNEERSEET
MEEERBARAROHOEL  RBETER
LTHESE: ((AREROARELEREZZHH
HATEBSE X P B SRR TR & - (i) A R R BR D
REEFLEREZZHBHAT @SB EH
REFBHREMTOFHKRTE: R(iRHOEE:
BRHBREZENAINRENBEHE -+ /\BRE
o

ERGHBRERERESMHAA (AME2014
FI1A28B BT THF) 2 HBHMLA AT ETHE B
BROBRENTERREEEBEELMEHELD
B AN AR AR A e B TR R I %
HEHEAS T F 28 A RRPRIEZ IR
BR °

AR EITE T EM S F BT A M AR TERE
R #E 3 [R) AR X B3R RS AR R AR (AT HL 4t BB AR A 51 81 7T
EREMEREMK TERITORNDBESE R TF
HBBREERBERENMLBIITKNERRALR
BITRMA10% (ETFH RBEREERDBITH
E{aB& 17 ) + B150,000,0004% °

AEERBAFEHEBERT SR L FWER
1 - FA20174F X 2018F12 A31H » B AL ] 1R &
TR A M ARITE IS AR - BB ARESL A T 15
BATAWERESKERRAE LIRERREF] -

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted by the
Company was approved by the shareholders on 13
November 2014.

A summary of the Scheme is set out below:

The Scheme became effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 28 November 2014. Under the Scheme, the
directors shall, in its absolute discretion select and make an
offer to any eligible participants to subscribe for shares of
the Company at a subscription price being not less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of the offer of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (i) the nominal
value of the share. The offer of a grant of options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer.

The options granted shall be exercisable in whole or in
part in the effective option period (i.e. 10 years from the
commencing date on 28 November 2014). The exercise
period of the options granted is determined and notified by
the directors to the grantee thereof at the time of making an
offer provided that such period shall not exceed the period
of 10 years from the date of the grant of the option is made,
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted at any time under
this Scheme together with options which may be granted
under any other share option schemes for the time being
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue immediately following the
completion of the global offering and the capitalisation issue
(but taking no account of any shares issued upon over-
allotment), being 50 million shares.

No share options were granted under the Scheme during
the current and prior years. As at 31 December 2018 and
2017, there were no outstanding options granted under the
Scheme. Share options do not confer rights to the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

20184 %% Annual Report 2018 197



BN [/ 75 & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WIN

=)

iR IR M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
H E2018F12A31H [EFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

31. BikwHE

AEBERBEEAGMELAESHEATERHE
B B20005F12 A1 B A% 2 38§l 1 R & 2 5 8
PI2ER—EBEBRESTALEZRES
g RHABREBHI -BEARESITE EE
HEESZEEBEMEARZ5%E B MZT 2R
(XEREEBABBEABKTE) BEREHEALR
EBRA30,0008 T o s RS AT B MR KBIEFF T
BEMA-

REERBESEN AEETBREESAR
ATEFMBETEOLERM /& HER
B A H) S R RET 8l o

RAFE - REB B EHFKEEEL5,847,000
BT (20174 : 6,235,000/ 70 ) ° ANFEHEE R UL
HIRAT KR AR -
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31.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority in Hong Kong, with effect from 1 December 2000,
the Group participates in the MPF Scheme operated by an
approved trustee in Hong Kong and makes contributions for
its eligible employees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income. The cap of
monthly relevant income is HK$30,000. Contributions to the
MPF Scheme vest immediately.

In addition to the MPF Scheme in Hong Kong, the Group
is also required to contribute a certain percentage of
employees’ monthly basic salaries to the defined contribution
retirement schemes in Macau, Taiwan, the PRC and Japan.

During the year, the aggregate amounts of employer’s
contributions made by the Group were approximately
HK$5,847,000 (2017: HK$6,235,000). No forfeited
contribution was available for offset against existing
contributions during the year.
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32. ANRZMBHRRRRFHE

@ ARFZHBENIE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

2018 2017
k=3 FBT FHE T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
EERERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current asset
KRB AR ZKRE Investment in a subsidiary 61,198 61,198
RBEE Current assets
TET 3K Prepayments 484 419
JE W B 8 A & BR 3k Amounts due from subsidiaries 35(c) 173,200 122,532
Al Y [0 7 78 Tax recoverable 232 55
BOIERREFRE Cash at banks and on hand 30,602 92,933
204,518 215,939
HREAE Current liabilities
FE ST FRIE K A fth JE T HR Accruals and other payables 6,016 7,946
JEAST BT 8 A &l BR 3k Amount due to a subsidiary 35(c) 1,100 1,100
7,116 9,046
REBEEFE Net current assets 197,402 206,893
EEFE Net assets 258,600 268,091
= EQUITY
[ Share capital 28 50,245 50,245
i Reserves 32(b) 208,355 217,846
M ER Total equity 258,600 268,091
REREEFE On behalf of the Board of Directors
RN H 2 5K &l
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
WITES WITES

Executive Director

Executive Director
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32. KRB ZHBARR R RGEHE 2) 32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

b) ALEFERE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continuea)

(b) Reserves of the Company

B EE REBA HEt

Share Retained
premium earnings Total
FHET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
M2017FE1 818 At 1 January 2017 145,335 51,678 197,013
FE R Profit for the year - 40,931 40,931
BRBRE (Bat11) Dividends paid (note 11) - (20,098 (20,098)

R20175F12A31H K& At 31 December 2017 and

2018F181H 1 January 2018 145,335 72,511 217,846
FE R Profit for the year - 558 558
BRRE (Hit11) Dividends paid (note 11) - (10,049) (10,049)
R2018%12A831H At 31 December 2018 145,335 63,020 208,355
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33. MiB AR

MR2018F12A31H * KRR A THIKM B AR #EE
ZERNREBLUABRRAA

HE SRR
EEEHIMT

33. SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had direct or
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which

are private companies with limited liability, the particulars of

which are set out as follows:

Bl
ARETE K& ERTRARRE P15 B 1 TEXR
Place of
incorporation/  Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest  Principal activities
B fE3
Directly Indirectly
RREEEEEERAA HBERAHS 337,025M M7 - 100% - KREAEK
£ $£337,025% 1T
EGL Management Group BVI 337,025 shares totalling Investment holding
Company Limited United States dollar
("US$") 337,025
RRERITHBRDA Bt 3,315,0008% & MK - - 100% REKRTE BRTERREEY
£ 3,315,000/ 10 W AR B m 2 PR
EGL Tours Company Limited Hong Kong 3,315,000 ordinary shares Provision of package tours, FIT
totalling HK$3,315,000 Products and ancillary travel
related products and services
FRERITA (BAR) BB AT G 221 E AR - 100% IRfEEBAMLRRITE - B
& #0213 TERRESERTEEER
KR
EGL Tours (Japan) Company Limited Hong Kong 221 ordinary shares Provision of outbound package
totalling HK$221 tours, FIT Products and
ancillary travel related products
and services in Japan
BRETHERAR (MBRIRITHL]) &E 550,0008% & AR - - 100% EmER
& $£550,000/% 7T
i-Evertravel Company Limited Hong Kong 550,000 ordinary shares Inactive
(“i-Evertravel’) totalling HK$550,000
FOmERITA CRF) BB AT P 1,800,000 7T - 100% fREIRTE BHRTERREY
WIRITIEE E m KR
EGL Tours (Macau) Company Limited Macau Macau Pataca (“MOP”) Provision of package tours, FIT

1,800,000

20185 # Annual Report 2018
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33. BT (&)

33. SUBSIDIARIES (Continuea)

S,
A ped—gioks ERTRAERA FEft IR TEEH
Place of
incorporation/  Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest  Principal activities
BE#E i
Directly Indirectly
RRBERITHE CRIDBRAR" hE EBRRAARY - 100% T B ER AR A 1T
3,850,0007C
EGL Tours (Shenzhen) Company Limited® The PRC Paid up capital of Renminbi Provision of inbound and local
(‘RMB") 3,850,000 package tours in the PRC
RBEER(AR)BERAT EEABARES 100K - 51,0007 - 100% JRAER
EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited BVI 100 shares totalling Investment holding
US$1,000
¥ €4t Zipang. S. S* ([Zipang |) AA 380ME A 17« - 80% M AARRE KSR
£ #£19,000,0008 [
Kabushiki Kaisha Zipang. S. S$* (“Zipang”) Japan 380 shares totalling Provision of travel bus services in
JPY19,000,000 Japan
RBEBER (ZH)BRRF KBABARES 100K - 51,0005 - 100% JRAER
EGL Holdings (Asia) Limited BVI 100 shares totalling Investment holding
US$1,000
EVRITHRBBER AR =) 2,000,000 i 7 - - 62% RAEREARKITE
(MEumkiTat]) £ #£20,000,000%7 & ¥
Hit Travel Service Co. Ltd* Taiwan 2,000,000 shares totalling Provision of inbound package
(“Hit Travel”) Taiwan dollar 20,000,000 tours in Taiwan
RRERESEBRAA EBEARHES 100RR1M% & £100%T - 100% REER
EGL Investment Group BVI 100 shares totalling US$100 Investment holding
Company Limited
RBERE (ME)BERAT BB 1RERER A#1ET - 100% REER
EGL Investment (China) Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totalling Investment holding
Company Limited HK$1
BESBREBRAF EBEAREHS 1RRH /1%L - 100% REER
Ebisu Holdings Company Limited BVI 1 share totalling US$1 Investment holding
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33.

34.

MBAR (&) 33. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
HEmL
ARETE R ERIRARRAE 1t R fE TEXR
Place of
incorporation/  Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest  Principal activities
L &
Directly Indirectly
BEEREERAA 0 RERR 2#18T - 100% REEK
Ebisu Investment Company Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Investment holding
totalling HK$1
Ebisu Growth Limited* ( [Ebisu Growth |) B 7 B & 1 4510,000,000H - 100% #B BERLEANEE
Ebisu Growth Limited* (‘Ebisu Growth”)  Japan Paid up capital of Ownership, development and
JPY10,000,000 management of hotel in Japan
East Global Limited ([ East Global ] ) SN B # 2 $:7510,000,0008 - 100% %A FAEREERRBE
East Global Limited (“East Global’) Japan Paid up capital of Ownership, development and
JPY10,000,000 management of hotel in Japan
* HR A TR R * English name for identification purpose only
t EPBAEFMINEEE b # registered as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise under the
PRC law
REZE2017F12A31B IEFE - REBR20174F During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group set up
11 AR B AR S — R # KB A F]East Global © Bk a new subsidiary, East Global, in Japan in November 2017.
LA _EFriftdh - & 220174 2018F12 A31H Ik Except for the above mentioned, there was no other addition
FE - BEEMINELHMNB AR KL ENRB AR - or disposal of subsidiary for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017.
BEMB AT NBRERRBTENEBES - None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the reporting period.
FEERED 34. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
2018412 A31 H FE 4 Mk #E 75 48 58 493,136,000 The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2018
77T (20174 : 2,807,000/ 7T ) * H A ZipangdkE is approximately HK$3,136,000 (2017: HK$2,807,000),
7 % 2% FE {h E5 18 49538,0007%8 JT (20174 ¢ of which loss of approximately HK$538,000 (2017:
315,000/ 7T ) * M = 37 JR 17 4t FF 12 AR 4 = Bl J& HK$315,000) is attributable to the non-controlling interest
1l 2 7 #498,674,0007% 7T (20174 : 3,122,000/ of Zipang and profit of approximately HK$3,674,000
TT) © 5% E 0 FE R AN B HE B 100% 4 25 7O T B A (2017: HK$3,122,000) is attributable to the non-controlling
A ZIEEREEST TR ABEKXN interest of Hit Travel. The non-controlling interests of these

subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the Group are
considered to be immaterial.
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35. ABAR 5

BRAGEVMBERREMBOBEZRH MEH

S BEETET R BWT

>

@ RAFREAFETXS

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

/I,

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(a) Significant related party transactions during the

year
2018 2017
HiiE BT FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Y FEEARZES Rental paid to a related company
N (ol - Great Port i 16,629 16,017
PR RTE  BHRTEMSKR  Amount received for provision of
WENERITAHBE R R package tours, FIT Products and
REEBEEARME 25 ancillary travel related products and
services from a related company
—RE1T ~ Great Port (i) 126 169
—REER - Evergloss (i) - 49
FHIRERITE  BER{TEMKE  Costs charged by associates regarding
BRI TAEBEER R the provision of package tours, FIT
AR B2 A R M E 2 B Products and ancillary travel related
products and services
—EGL* 4B - EGL Okinawa (i) 27,772 27,065
—EGLE - EGL Korea (i) 33,239 30,990
S AR HERITIABEMR  Sales of travel related products and
KR services to associates
—EGL+ 48 - EGL Okinawa (il 3 3
—EGL%2 - EGL Korea (i) 3 3
RE—REAEQRZHEBER Purchases from a related company
—Hush Home Hong Kong - Hush Home Hong Kong Limited
Limited (i) - 3,160
RE—RBEDRLZ Advertising sponsorship income from
EEEBRA an associate
—EGLE - EGL Korea (i) 493 275
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3. AEBARXS (&)

@

©

©

RAFREREL KX (8)

Wit
() XHTFTHREQRZEEERIINESXER

BREPREASEEBEARECHE
R AR T -

() ZEXRSGDEREFETE K]

5
i'}
_\

ARFBATESERAEE BEE RELM
FULINAARETZERTURKERETZ
P HE o

Hush Home Hong Kong Limited 2 M — & &
BBRRENRR-

B EXPIREESI RAFERIEARAFER

EAATBFE] - AN R B S EALAAIBT B8 & R R AT
MEARREEZREARRIERAH -

FEEEANBZFH

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continuea)

@)

(b)

Significant related party transactions during the
year (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Rental expenses paid to a related company were
conducted in the normal course of business and in
accordance with terms of the lease agreements entered
into between the Group and the related company.

(i) The transactions were conducted on the basis of
mutually agreed terms.

The executive directors of the Company, Mr. Yuen, Mr.
Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee, are also directors and
have equity interests in Great Port.

The sole shareholder of Hush Home Hong Kong
Limited is a daughter of Mr. Huen.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Compensation of key management personnel

NEE BEERHEMTIEEIEASK S 2 The remuneration of directors and other members of
ST key management during the year was as follows:

2018 2017

THET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

# H (& B 18 A Short-term employee benefits 11,750 12,107

BBz Post-employment benefits 336 326

12,086 12,433

JEU, FE A< Y B8 R RIBR R
RERER -

REER 2ER

()

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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36. EAREEHEKRIE 36. CAPITAL AND OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS
@ BAEE (@) Capital commitments
ERAEENBEYE BENMXEUARE Capital commitments in respect of capital expenditure
BIRMNBARAR I 2 ERNEAENT of acquisition of property, plant and equipment and

construction in progress for the Group are as follows:

2018 2017

FET TExT

HK$’000 HK$’000

EEEOKER S Contracted but not provided for 33,318 64,707

MR2018F12 A31H » Lt EARFAYEFT ZER As at 31 December 2018, the capital commitments

BARBREFARER —BRTBEEEFTE above mainly related to the construction of hot spring
o bath building and a new hotel building in Japan.

120175124318 - WG R i 2 KB As at 31 December 2017, included in the capital

#7873,000,000H [& (#8 = 1 £959,914,000 commitments above was the remaining balance of the

BIr) (FRMFE20) MBI esE L consideration, as detailed in note 20, of approximately

BREPEN o JPY873,000,000 (equivalent to approximately

HK$59,914,000) for the acquisition of the land in

Okinawa.
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36. EXAREEHEKIE#)

©)

EETHEFRIE

1ERATHNA
AEEREBEEEREMEES TYWE B
BEREEE - HMEZYSHEBAAR—ERF
(2017F : —ERHF) °

AEBENAIHHEEEHRHER THARKRE
HEMNF@BENHAWT:

36. CAPITAL AND OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS (Continuea)

(b) Operating lease commitments
As leasee
The Group leases a number of premises, office
equipment and travel buses under operating leases.
The leases run for an initial period of one to five years
(2017: one to five years).

The Group had total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

follows:

2018 2017
F8&T FHTT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000

HEWME Rented premises
—F A Within one year 27,141 27,199
F_FEFERAF(SHEMTE) In the second to fifth year, inclusive 6,449 29,976
33,590 57,175

WARE Office equipment
—F R Within one year 2,839 2,911
F_FEFERAF(SEHEREMTE) In the second to fifth year, inclusive 11,270 4,776
14,109 7,687

HERES Rented travel buses

—F R Within one year 36,274 36,971
F_FEFERAF(SHEMT) In the second to fifth year, inclusive 21,455 40,841
57,729 77,812
B\ET Total 105,428 142 674
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37. EaAmEE

AEBESERBRERE:

(@) MRAKEFELLEZES UHERRR
B3 B 3 J 3 E A 5 00 & 75 KR 25

b) ZFAKENRERERE: N

© RIBAKERBRERENEHRES-

AEERBAEBRRESHREEARYGE B
BERBEENE B EERTRE EAH
RRERERE BHRLEARISYEREANG
B ARRRENEAGEBNB RO ®K AEH
ERARFAEMERBREEE -

AEBEEEAGERE RELBERRNHEFA
MEEZRREHBHEETAR RERIHAE
BARGER AEEARAEINTRRZBEEHE
FARRREEN BHTHR FEEBEREEER
EEPARE ©

AR EBEEGEZBBRER -R2017
F K2018F12H31B 2 EASE D AR
338,961,000/ 7T %358,151,0007% Tt * & 12 [ £
EREHEATHRBMRBIRERSE RA
BIRAR KT -

208 =mirE®RAERADT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives include:

(@) to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

(b)  to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholders’ returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, capital expenditures and strategic investment
opportunities. The Group does not currently adopt any
formal dividend policy.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debts or
sell assets to reduce debt.

Management of the Company regards total equity as
capital. The amount of capital as at 31 December 2018
and 2017 amounted to approximately HK$358,151,000
and HK$338,961,000 respectively, which the management
considers as optimal having considered the projected
capital expenditures and the projected strategic investment
opportunities.
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38. BA %5 b IR

AEEEREERBRETHEEGNXR - E8 BB
B2 RINERR -EFE TS ENDIT RHIE
EEEEAKRBEMERTSRR (BEMNER
SNEERZLEEARE) - EERRIABESR
o — MR &+ ANER B B B TR BRERAR <7 SR

@ FEE
ZK%..%E/_EW\HHEEW%'J?H PSS pE
BERITEFMERRERE 2FXER

20185 - AEBE KMEFE BT BER

ZIEE LD LA TE F BB o F| = L

RNNZXEMGBERAEBR 2R REE

ﬁﬁ’ﬁ?‘ﬁm I == 2 B AR DA S0 R B =8 B e AR
ERrEE | sk S i

AEBENRITERANRITERNRTH
BHRRBMARRERE M ERER - &
SEEERRAKE@RHRITAERN X
R TEKR TR ERITHEFRER L
EBREMEIAEE -

MR ERETIE MR L A HEERTAE
Hi#BEERFTE  AAEENFE
i ) K AR B8 i I iR 1 AN 49161,0005%5
70 (20174 : 14,000/87T) - EERETRZME
AL F) B 12 hn =k R 4> 496,000 7T (2017
F:59,00087T) REZ XS E =
MEMBOBELE -

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposures to interest rate, credit, liquidity and foreign
currency risks arise in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The board of directors meets periodically to
analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s
exposure to market risk (including principal changes in
interest rates and foreign currency rates), credit risk and
liquidity risk. Generally, the Group employs a conservative
strategy regarding risk management.

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from
bank deposits and cash flow interest rate risk arising
from bank borrowings at floating rate.

During 2018, the Group aims to maintain a suitable
proportion of fixed and floating rate borrowings in order
to stabilise interest costs. Interest rate hedging ratio is
determined after taking into consideration of the market
trend and the Group’s cash flow pattern. Interest
rate swap was employed to hedge exposures or to
modify the interest rate characteristics of the Group’s
borrowings.

The Group’s bank balances expose it to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The directors of
the Group consider the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk in respect of bank balances is not significant
as interest-bearing bank deposits are within short
maturity periods in general.

If the interest rates had been increased or decreased
by 50 basis points at the beginning of the year
and all other variables were held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group’s profit for the year
and retained profits by approximately HK$161,000
(2017: HK$14,000) and the capitalised interest on
construction in progress would have been increased
or decreased by approximately HK$6,000 (2017:
HK$59,000). The assumed changes have no impact on
the other components of equity.
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38. MBEKRERE &)

@ FIFEELE (&)
ENMALSE T RS AEEHENEET
B4 5 SRR R A 32 7 e BB 03T A o

b) 1=EELRE
CERABE-EARTAYXSHFES
(E 3T A BT H B T30 3 2 2 M Y
B E1E 2 B o

AEEHEZEREERREIZRENA
FEERRETRAEFPETEER ERNERE
HIRMER R EE 2 FREE (10K EE38()
Bhat) -

REEEHERE 5 ME A B YR IAE %
BEXEERRES - AN & B RE &R E [ E
MXZEFHREAREFRUSB 2R ZY
FHEIBZEFNEXREERR - AEE 2R
THEBRERRELE R -FE -BARE
BEERT AREYREEEGBEREE
R o
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

@)

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The increase or decrease by 50 basis points represents
directors’ assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the year until the end of next
reporting period.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under its terms and cause a financial loss to
the Group.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from granting credits to customers in the
ordinary course of its operations and is limited to the
carrying amounts of financial assets recognised at the
end of the reporting period, as summarised in note
38(f).

The Group’s trade and other receivables are actively
monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit
risk. The Group is not exposed to any significant
credit risk from any single counterparty or any group
of counterparties having similar characteristics. The
Group’s bank balances are deposited with major banks
in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC, Japan and Taiwan.
The Group has no other significant exposure to credit
risk.
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38. B ERER &)

(b)

EEER (&)
AEBEBEBM B RE LR FESRAF]H
M AR BEEEBRIEL BE %
AR BAEZREERAFERAEY
EEERRE AEE-—ERSBHESNEF
BRABRREEBENE ZRWIRTERE
BE-BHIRKE AMEEERD2EE
BABERENRERENHR - AHEE
f&ﬂﬁﬂ‘ﬁ%%‘fﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁk}wa@F&“Hﬁzﬁ%
DB — R BB BB NI 5T KAl E 1 E R
R RFTERBEEER REXHE19E
BiRE A RURCRARGEER RS
R RBE DR

B 5 FE W BR 1) T8 B &5 18 K ¥ 58 780K + 60
X Q0K HA I HRIBOOK L A 2 & BB BIlET
H50.5% 1% 5% K%10% - A FEE 5 &
WEE 2 EAIEE BB R EEs T EHRN
REBEEEEXETCESRINE 2B
FENERBESAETH ARAESRAEAF
EE SRR BRTREBBYTEKR

AEEEERBEEEDTHELAEEER
(@) - flan AEBEERRXZYH T
BREZBEROX ABHER A5E
ZABEREMEKRZEBEERRIETE
R AKBEFERMEKEZEERRB
PRRER LA AR KR IE 10 B 22 40 = b &K
At - RE+—EABREEHEEN &
EFRMRZAMEEBERY FTERAARF
B EFER B BT e il o

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime ECLs provision for all trade
receivables. The Group always measures the loss
allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. The ECLs on trade receivables is
estimated by reference to past default experience of
the debtor and current market condition in relation to
each debtor’'s exposure. The ECLs also incorporates
forward-looking information with reference to general
macroeconomic conditions that may affect the ability of
the debtors to settle receivables. To measure the ECLs,
the trade receivables have been grouped based on
share credit risk characteristics and the days past due
according to the ageing as disclosed in note 19.

Expected loss rate of trade receivables are assessed to
be 0.5%, 1%,
30 days, 60 days, 90 days past due and over 90 days
past due respectively. There is no change in the ECLs

5% and 10% for the amounts less than

rate for trade receivables during the year mainly due
to no significant change in the historical default rates
of trade receivables based on which the ECLs rate is
determined. The directors of the Company considered
the loss allowance provision for trade receivables was
immaterial during the year.

The Group takes into account the historical default
experience and forward-looking information, as
appropriate, for example the Group considers
the consistently low historical default rates of
counterparties, and concludes that credit risk inherent
in the Group’s outstanding other receivables is
insignificant. The Group has assessed that other
receivables do not have a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition and risk of default is
insignificant, therefore the ECLs for these receivables
were immaterial under the 12-month ECLs method and
no loss allowance provision was recognised during the
year.
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38. MBEKRERE &)

b EEELRE (&)
HHEEERBAEAF CER B BRI
BB R TR R R W R R 1 B
[ & AR DA R AN 5% B 9 e KRR TR A R R
ZRBEARR L BIE-

BB E QR R E ARRKSIBZE
ERE SRR 5HFERLERE RIS
PR AEBEHEAR I ZEFENE
HelEZEERRER B AKETER
ZEEBARWBRE| EEKREE-

AEERSTBZRERANRBERTFIHES
BeEAFRzeREE RAKELTE
HeRBEAEERR-

RAFE AEE-BETREEERE
BZEBRBEEIERR -

© REELEE
RBETRRSRAEEELZETHEB
ReHtemEESFSRAGBHERBZ
BEMmELNRER -

AEESARGERREMRESEYRE
BEA/ARIKY BRAKBZERHTE
EhEERERERPDIFE-
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

)

Crediit risk (Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

With respect to credit risk arising from the amounts
due from a related company and an associate, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from repayment
default of counterparties is limited as the counterparties
have good credit history and sound financial position,
and the Group does not expect any significant loss of
uncollected advances from these entities.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with cash at bank since they are
deposited with credit worthy financial institutions.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
throughout the year and are considered to be effective.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
other financial assets.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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38. B ERER &)

©

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

TRE)E T)Efr () (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
AREB BREATHERREAERREHALE The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
HEt R EEE R -AEB 2 REgESE expected liquidity requirements in the short and long
ERBEAEE T RS ERESREZE I terms. The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent
BITHEREFE - AEEFGRANTELEZE on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from
S1EBREBEECEERR- operations to meet its debt obligations. The Group
relies on internally generated funds as a significant
source of liquidity.
TRIIVREPARAEEIETESHEER The following tables show the remaining contractual
BERERIBSTE (BEFHANON XK maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
EE  ERNRE BERTRRTENR A Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, based on
RHF)BEORSRE A Em B B ML B undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
AXNHRERH- computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay.
L WENL
BORER —EHR BFEE BFEE
REE #2RLRE Rk mE If RENE
Total Within Over Over
contractual one year oneyear  two years
Carrying undiscounted oron  butwithin  but within Over
amount  cash flows demand  two years five years five years
TERL TER THER TAR TAR TAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20185 2018
FiTE: Non-derivatives:
BHEME Trade payables 58,749 58,749 58,749 - - -
e :+*”IE&HWE 48 Accruals and other payables 64,140 64,140 64,140 - - -
JE B2 ) Amounts due to associates 3,900 3,900 3,900 - - -
RITER Bank borrowings 269,638 271,598 35,236 29,532 86,378 120,452
396,427 398,387 162,025 29,532 86,378 120,452
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38. MFEREIR (&)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

© ImEELERE (&) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
—FNE RENL:
ANRER —EHR B ER  BETEH
REE £RENE Bl MmE nE RENE
Total Within Over Over
contractual one year one year two years
Carrying  undiscounted or on but within but within Qver
amount  cash flows demand two years five years five years
THT TR THT TR THT THR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2017% 2017
FiTE: Non-derivatives:
EHEME Trade payables 53,152 53,152 53,152 - - -
st AR E e R Accruals and other payables 60,319 60,319 60,319 - - -
FEfI B & A IR Amounts due to associates 3,478 3,478 3,478 - - =
RITIET Bank borrowings 250,931 253,022 20,082 26,203 78,179 128,558
367,880 369,971 137,031 26,208 78,179 128,558
@ M S (d) Foreign currency risk
SNERBIE—TEERITAEZ AN EBEKAH Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
BHESRERIINEE RSB E LRI EE value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
Z B e will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.
74“% E AR INE R - 5% E RS R B AFEAR The Group has foreign currency exposures. Such

EEENIEEE EBIRERTER
m&ﬁ&?ﬁ S IRTTAR B AR IS EE AR 2 IR
wm ARRBEEBEER 2 R & &)
MBS RRARRIS 2 B - NEE - REEL
53.1% (20174 : 51.5% ) Z B A} 498.0%
(20174 1 4.4% ) EFEFBUEAEEHE R
M EE 2 B EE

214 =EiERAERLDE  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

exposures arise from the revenue from provision of
package tours and travel bus services, ancillary travel
related services as well as costs of services consumed
in hotel accommodation and ancillary hotel related
services in currencies other than the group entities’
functional currency. Approximately 53.1% (2017:
51.5%) of costs and approximately 8.0% (2017: 4.4%)
of the Group’s revenue are denominated in currencies
other than the group entities’ functional currency for the
year.
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@ SMEEE (&)
AEERKHEMNERR - ZERRKER
BENMABZERANEAEEERNIEE
W2 ERGTE - ARERRE HRAINE
HECEBEERBBECREENT

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group also has foreign currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the balances of assets and
liabilities in currencies other than the group entities’
functional currency. The carrying amounts of the foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2018 2017
FE&T FHETT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
EE Assets
== JPY 45,054 32,971
AR RMB 6,247 37,026
51,301 69,997
=L Liabilities
AE JPY 30,221 25,957
AR RMB 96 237
30,317 26,194

EEEEBTIERIIEER 2 A
SNERR - EEEEHIAIHRE REXEE
RBERANEER ZIMNERR -

BRI TEETE NS ER EERR
AEEFRFI T 2N ERRALTERX

The management monitors foreign currency exposure
by closely monitoring the movements of foreign
currency rates. The management has set up a policy to
require group entities to manage their foreign exchange
risk against their respective functional currency.

The directors consider that the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk in respect of MOP is not
significant because MOP’s fluctuation with HK$ is
immaterial.
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38. MBEKRERE &)

@ SMEE SR (&)
TREJNAEASERRERHRAZERK
Rz SINEE R IR e B A K E
ZFEE MR RERI 2 AEE) - HURE
DMBRETHETNEER 2INEE
FHEMAEBE QA 2 FMAERR - TXEHE
TETAEBEEAENEN LR
MBI HRNB TR AR E R E - A
MEEMESEERFHARTE TREHR
HRRB ZENEXFRAEEEEAR
PE TR A BRSNS R - KRB IR E LB SNE
PE R BB 2 RN
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the Group’s profit for the year and retained earnings in
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period. The
sensitivity analysis includes balances between Group
companies where the denomination of the balances
is in a currency other than the functional currencies of
the lender or the borrower. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit and other equity where
the Hong Kong Dollar strengthens against the relevant
currency. For a weakening of the Hong Kong Dollar
against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit and other equity,
and the balances below would be negative. The 5%
rate is used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the possible
changes in foreign exchange rates.
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38. ARG EIE &) 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(@ SMNER S (F) (d)  Foreign currency risk (Continued)
DA TS 8 E D AT TR 35 3 45 F [E 1) 9N [ The following sensitivity analysis has been determined
RIBTETADLLEFSET  WHRBREEER based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign
BARE- exchange rates taking place at the beginning of the
reporting year and held constant throughout the year.
2018 2017
FERNRRERF FRRENRRBRF
#,/ Cfd) #m,/ ()
Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
in profit for the year in profit for the year
and retained earnings and retained earnings
H ARH H AR
THET TERT THET FET
JPY RMB JPY RVMB
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
EREZE: Changes in exchange rate:
BT R INEFES% HK$ appreciates by 5% against
the foreign currencies (619) (257) (293) (1,536)
I N B2 (5% HK$ depreciates by 5% against
the foreign currencies 619 257 293 1,536
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38. M REBREIE (&) 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
© LBl (e) Fair value
TREVBEALABESERIEAALBEY The following table provides an analysis of financial
R T EDHT: instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value
hierarchy:
F—: HERBEIBENERMS Z®R Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

B CRERE) :

F-M: BIE-—RAEEIHREN Z
BEXRBEZIAIERBARE
A REE (BIER ) sk (B
REER) &

markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

BE= BESBETIFEKETERD Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are
3% 7 8 A EUE (7 a] B i A not based on observable market data
) o (unobservable inputs).
20185 20174
12A31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
=L Liability M/
PTESMITA Derivative financial instrument Level 2 2,055 =
B ZE2018F 12 A31HILFE - TR 2 A& During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was
LEEA no transfers between levels.
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38. MR ERE &)

Y

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

HEFIE o i EERE EHE () Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

MBI RP 25 ZREEY RIAT
&l

TREERTRAGBER:

category

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position related to the following

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

2018 2017
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EREE Financial assets
REBHK AT ECEREE Financial assets measured at
(20174 : ER R FEUER) amortised cost (2017: Loans
(BREBROTEXAEEFRS) : and receivables) (including cash
at banks and on hand):
2 5 e BR Trade receivables 10,079 4,296
715 I H A FE Y AR Deposits and other receivables 29,067 45,451
JFE Lk B = X B BR 3R Amount due from an associate 2,348 562
EIRIRITF K Pledged bank deposits 6,307 29,583
RITEREEFRS Cash at banks and on hand 230,003 263,370
277,804 343,262
TREE Financial liabilities
REIEK AT EZ Financial liabilities measured at
SHBE: amortised cost:
B SRR Trade payables 58,749 53,152
JE & FRIR N H A A BR Accruals and other payables 64,140 60,319
JE TS & A | BR 3K Amounts due to associates 3,900 3,478
RITERK Bank borrowings 269,638 250,931
396,427 367,880
BERKRAALEBEFTAEERN Financial liability designated at FVTPL:
THAR:
FZIBH A 4 Interest rate swap contract 2,055 =
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3. MEFHMEL BB ZHER

39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

TREWAEEREETHMELABEEFH 2 5F The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

f& e

arising from financing activities.

RITIE

Bank

borrowings

(Htit25)

(note 25)

FET

HK$’000

R2017F1 818 At 1 January 2017 53,287
MERSREEE: Changes from financing cash flows:

LR 1T E RETIS RIE Proceeds from new bank borrowings 199,968

EERITEN Repayment of bank borrowings (2,192)

B E Interest paid (1,148)

BMERSMEZ A Total changes from financing cash flows: 196,628

VE 3R Exchange adjustments: 1,252

HMhE e : Other changes:

FERSZ Interest expense 370

HEMiENERE Other borrowing costs prepaid (1,789)

ERCERER Capitalised borrowing costs 1,183

H b B BB Total other changes (236)
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30. METHMELEEBEZHER &)

40.

39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

RITIER

Bank

borrowings

(Ht:#25)

(note 25)

FET

HK$’000

72017F12831 H K 142018F1 811 At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 250,931
MERSMEL B Changes from financing cash flows:

FTILIRAT 18 SRS 5KIE Proceeds from new bank borrowings 239,377
EEBRITER Repayment of bank borrowings (228,525)
ERNEAESS Interest paid (3,308)
BERSREF A Total changes from financing cash flows: 7,544
bE 0 F 2 Exchange adjustments: 7,661
H B &) R - Other changes:

A EBMAX Interest expense 3,913
HEMBENERE Other borrowing costs prepaid (388)

BERERE ﬁﬁ Capitalised borrowing costs 126
FER 7B Interest payable (149)
HihZEhmzs Total other changes 3,502
20185 12H31H At 31 December 2018 269,638

BEHPEER

7201993128 ' East Global Limited ( A2 &)
ZHEBEZ2ENE AR HE AR R EEN
RBEAFRENBIETLEEAN AHSEA
3,750,000,000H [& (48 & M #1262,500,000/%

JT) °

T B H R AR R R2019F3F12BHHAE

40. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 12 March 2019, East Global Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and an independent
contractor entered into a construction contract in relation to
the construction of a hotel in Okinawa, Japan in the contract

sum of JPY3,750,000,000 (equivalent to approximately

HK$262,500,000).

o

announcement dated 12 March 2019.

Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
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2019FF IR W BF KE
2019 AGM

A ERAA
Articles of Association
EEg

Board

RBERBRES
BVI

BEBERS
CCT{(s)
EERTAI
CG Code

AR A RFORB AR

Company or EGL Holdings

5=

Director(s)
BB BEIRITAL

EGL Tours

12k E 12

Evergloss

BT
FIT

B HB1TE M
FIT Products

RET
Great Port

AAREEBRBFRE
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company

KRB NRETKET REBEIABZEZAA
the amended and restated articles of association of the Company, as amended from
time to time

Exg

the board of Directors

REERRES
British Virgin Islands

AR BRASERAFERNBEATHER RKEHAZIIBREFBERER S
non-exempt continuing connected transaction(s) of the Company in respect of the
lease and/or tenancy leased by the Group from its connected person during the Year

EHRAIM S 4P EE B EE AT
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

RREERBR AR (MR 6882)
EGL Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6882)

EN/NETE: ==

the director(s) of the Company

RBRERTHBRAR] ARG zEEZEWE R A
EGL Tours Company Limited, being an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

REEEEBARLIR ARRAZHEBER (TR REHFLBEE)
Evergloss Management Group Company Limited, being an associated corporation
(as defined under the SFO) of the Company

BY B AR
free independent travellers

BHRTERRERKRETE

FIT packages and individual travel elements

RETAERRA BITEFTZIHEA

Great Port Limited, being an associate of the Executive Directors
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REE /NS D BN NG|

Group the Company and its subsidiaries

BT B BAETEY

HKD/HK$ Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

FEMBHREER EEGHMASRMN (FENBREERD)

HKFRSs Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants

BRARES RREERERAFAEE

IPO initial public offering of EGL Holdings

=i HE BAREESH

JPY Japanese yen, the lawful currency of Japan

Bl R BHEZERERAR BEEERR 2 —

Kwok Lai Kwok Lai Holdings Limited, being one of the shareholders of Evergloss

)5S MEERAR BEEERR 2 —

Likang Likang Limited, being one of the shareholders of Evergloss

AR A A PrRE 7 ET AR A

Listing Rules the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

R AE ST B FHRRAIMEIOPEM LR BEITAEFETESF R HNIRLETR

Model Code Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

RPITT RPT ORPDEE B

MOP Macau Pataca, the lawful currency of Macau

ABRIED R HE 5 Osaka Hinode Hotel ( KBREDFEE) - REBERBAER 2 & RHBEE

Osaka Hinode Hotel Osaka Hinode Hotel ( KERIZDFEJE ) , the Group’s first-owned hotel in Japan
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o
PRC

&5 R B A
SFO

B

Share(s)

BB AT 2
Share Option Scheme

B
Shareholder(s)

FAHR
sq. ft.

75 K
sqg. m.

Bk 22 PfT

Stock Exchange

REE

Year

hEARANE
the People’s Republic of China

BHEBERN (FEEPFET1E)
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

AR F A
the share(s) of the Company

RNATB20145F 11 A Ma B AR 2l
share option scheme adopted by the Company since November 2014

EESEIN
the holder(s) of the Share(s)

THR
square feet

Tk
square meter(s)

ERBMERSABERAA
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

HZE2018F12A31A L& E
the year ended 31 December 2018
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EGL Holdings Company Limited
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(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

R 1R%%E Stock Code : 6882

RREFER AR AT EGL Holdings Company Limited
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